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INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

Notes

31 December

2023

31 December

2022

JD JD

Assets

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 4 137,598,457 84,081,624

Balances at banks and financial institutions 5 46,206,056 73,657,044

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 6 7,088,366 3,544,932

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss 7 2,799 1

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 8 63,441,895 61,794,622

Financial assets at amortized cost 9 369,724,473 231,184,848

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost – net 10 1,060,853,398 849,619,656

Property and equipment- net 11 31,440,219 30,108,130

Intangible assets 12 3,815,941 3,063,082

Right of use of assets 14 4,068,172 4,108,272

Deferred tax assets 21 19,943,770 18,853,869

Other assets 13 71,343,006 67,858,416

1,815,526,552 1,427,874,496

Assets held for sale 50 145,188 145,229

Total assets 1,815,671,740 1,428,019,725

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

Banks and financial institutions deposits 15 52,081,563 38,730,800

Customers' deposits 16 1,178,579,654 881,704,812

Cash margins 17 56,464,360 36,433,056

Borrowed funds 18 257,376,326 224,968,902

Bonds 19 17,720,000 13,960,000

Lease liabilities 14 3,104,073 2,994,059

Sundry provisions 20 680,760 420,608

Income tax provision 21 8,228,335 9,383,036

Deferred tax liabilities 21 1,345,153 3,981,771

Other liabilities 22 27,660,513 19,992,148

1,603,240,737 1,232,569,192

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 50 335 2,360

Total liabilities 1,603,241,072 1,232,571,552

Equity

Bank’s shareholders equity

Authorized, subscribed and paid in capital 23 100,000,000 100,000,000

Statutory reserve 24 37,075,439 34,583,047

Financial asset revaluation reserve-net 25 8,766,780 6,435,777

Retained earnings 26 62,801,714 50,972,953

Total equity attributable to the Bank’s shareholders 208,643,933 191,991,777

Non-controlling interest 28 3,786,735 3,456,396

Total equity 212,430,668 195,448,173

Total liabilities and equity 1,815,671,740 1,428,019,725
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The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read 

in conjunction therewith.



INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2023

Notes 2023 2022

Continued operations: JD JD

Interest income 29 123,074,611 84,453,153

Interest expense 30 (70,396,821) (40,322,198)

Net interest income 52,677,790 44,130,955

Net commission income 31 20,017,850 14,011,105

Net interest and commissions income 72,695,640 58,142,060

Gains from foreign currencies 32 967,840 784,731

33 508,145 684,611

8 2,320,342 1,145,252

Other income 34 3,144,347 2,937,703

Gross Income 79,636,314 63,694,357

Staff Expenses 35 (20,313,782) (18,076,667)

Depreciation and amortization 11, 12 & 14 (3,667,863) (3,076,229)

Other expenses 36 (11,430,113) (9,242,351)

13

764,237 (651,323)

10 (11,283,195) (7,726,939)

37 (261,909) 1,463,558

Sundry provisions 20 (273,448) (17,427)

Total Expenses (46,466,073) (37,327,378)

51 -                         3,596,992

Profit before tax 33,170,241 29,963,971

Income tax expense 21 (8,170,189) (9,570,577)

Net Profit for the period from continued operations 25,000,052 20,393,394

Discontinued operations:

50 -                         (143,374)

Net profit 25,000,052 20,250,020

Attributable to:

Banks' shareholders 24,628,584 19,826,223

Non-controlling interest 28 371,468 423,797

25,000,052 20,250,020

JD/Share JD/Share

38 0.246 0.198
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The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall 

be read in conjunction therewith.

Bargain on purchase of a subsidiary

(Provision for) reversed from expected credit loss provision on 

financial assets and off-balance sheet items

Loss from discontinued operations – net after tax

Basic and diluted earnings per share from net profit attributable to the 

Banks' shareholders

For the year ended 31 December

Gains from financial assets at fair value through the statement of 

profit or loss

Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income

Reversal from (provision for) impairment of assets seized by the Bank 

in settlement of outstanding debts and the provision for assets seized 

in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan

Expected Credit Loss against direct credit facilities at amortized cost



INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHINSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022

JD JD

Net profit for the period 25,000,052 20,250,020

2,008,094 (189,098)

Total other comprehensive income items 2,008,094 (189,098)

Total comprehensive income for the period 27,008,146 20,060,922

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Banks' shareholders 26,636,828 19,637,189

Non-controlling interest 371,318 423,733

27,008,146 20,060,922
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For the year ended on 31 December

Net Changes in financial assets revaluation reserve 

– net after tax

The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 

statements and shall be read in conjunction therewith.

Other comprehensive income items that will not 

be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 

period:



INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2023

Reserves

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

As of 01 January 2023 100,000,000 34,583,047 6,435,777 50,972,953 191,991,777 3,456,396 195,448,173

Profit for the year -                             -                             -                             24,628,584 24,628,584 371,468 25,000,052

-                             -                             2,008,244 -                         2,008,244 (150) 2,008,094

Total comprehensive income -                             -                             2,008,244 24,628,584 26,636,828 371,318 27,008,146

-                             -                             322,759 (322,759) -                             -                        -                          

Dividend distributions (Note 19) -                             -                             -                             (10,000,000) (10,000,000) -                        (10,000,000)

Transferred to reserves -                             2,492,392 -                             (2,492,392) -                             -                        -                          

Effect of increase in investment in subsidiaries -                             -                             -                             15,328 15,328 (40,979) (25,651)

100,000,000 37,075,439 8,766,780 62,801,714 208,643,933 3,786,735 212,430,668

As of 01 January 2022 100,000,000 33,371,695 6,362,363 42,612,312 182,346,370 3,065,361 185,411,731

Profit for the year -                             -                             -                             19,826,223 19,826,223 423,797 20,250,020

-                             -                             (189,034) -                         (189,034) (64) (189,098)

Total comprehensive income -                             -                             (189,034) 19,826,223 19,637,189 423,733 20,060,922

-                             -                             262,448 (262,448) -                             -                        -                          

Dividend distributions (Note 19) -                             -                             -                             (10,000,000) (10,000,000) -                        (10,000,000)

Transferred to reserves -                             1,211,352 -                             (1,211,352) -                             -                        -                          

Effect of increase in investment in subsidiaries -                             -                             -                             8,218 8,218 (32,698) (24,480)

100,000,000 34,583,047 6,435,777 50,972,953 191,991,777 3,456,396 195,448,173

-

-

-

- It is prohibited to utilize any amount that represents unrealized gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

-

-

Non-controlling 

interest

Net changes in financial assets revaluation 

reserve –net after taxes

Total equity

Authorized, 

subscribed and 

paid in capital Statutory 

Financial Asset 

revaluation 

reserve-net

Retained 

earnings

Total equity 

attributable to the 

bank’s shareholders
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Net changes in financial assets revaluation 

reserve –net after taxes

Retained earnings include a restricted amount of JD 415,199 as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, which represents the effect of the early adoption of IFRS (9). Such amounts are

restricted and cannot be utilized unless realized through actual sale as instructed by Jordan Securities Commission.

In accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan Circular No. ( 13/ 2018), the accumulated balance of the general banking risk reserve which amounted to JD 6,365,000 as of

31 December 2017 has been transferred to the retained earnings to offset the impact of the IFRS 9.  The surplus after the offset which amounted to JD 1,971,056 is restricted.

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

transferred to the retained earnings –  equity 

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

transferred to the retained earnings –  equity 

Retained earnings include an amount of JD 19,943,769 as of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: JD 18,853,869) restricted against deferred tax assets in accordance with the instructions of

Central Bank of Jordan and Jordan Securities Commission.

As of 31 December 2023

As of 31 December 2022

Retained earnings include a restricted amount of JD 1,039,200 as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, which represents the remaining balance of the illegal transactions in

accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The use of the credit balance of the valuation reserve of financial assets through other comprehensive is restricted in accordance with the instructions of Central Bank of Jordan and Jordan

Securities Commission.

The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read in conjunction therewith.



INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2023

Notes 2023 2022

JD JD

Operating activities

Income before income tax 33,170,241 29,963,971

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortization 11, 12 & 14 3,667,863 3,076,229

Expected credit loss provision on direct credit facilities 10 11,283,195 7,726,939

Lawsuits provision 20 258,478 52,684

37 261,909 (1,463,558)

13
(764,237) 651,323

Provision for (reversal from) sundry provision 20 14,970 (35,257)

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (1,322,995) (4,958)

Loss (gain) from sale of assets seized by the bank 34 858,712 (561,254)

Reversal from impairment in real estate investments (34,315) -                         

Interest expense on lease liabilities 14 149,741 155,896

Unrealized gain from revaluation of financial assets at fair value through P&L 33 (102) -                         

Net interest expenses (754,682) (737,187)

Bargain on purchase of a subsidiary -                          (3,596,992)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 32 (11,110) (21,616)

46,777,668 35,206,220

Changes in assets and liabilities Summit @ Aqui. Date

Deposits at banks and financial institutions due in more than 3 months 6 (3,545,000) (3,545,000)

Financial assets at fair value through P&L 7 (2,696) -                         

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost 10 (222,516,937) (59,662,010)

Assets and liabilities held for sale (1,984) (142,869)

Other assets 13 573,906 (12,831,917)

Customers’ deposits 16 296,874,842 89,186,808

Cash margins 17 20,031,304 4,845,528

Other liabilities 22 4,205,470 1,750,770

Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax and provisions paid
142,396,573 54,807,530

Paid from lawsuits provisions 20 (13,296) (130,268)

Income tax paid 21 (10,077,616) (8,983,216)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 132,305,661 45,694,046

Investing activities

Purchases of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (12,104,306) (28,799,554)

Sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 9,828,659 5,046,233

Purchases of financial assets at amortized cost (238,677,582) (84,408,927)

Matured financial assets at amortized cost 99,638,999 37,824,125

11 (4,197,172) (3,406,254)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 2,022,138 20,654

Purchase of intangible assets 12 (1,281,343) (502,410)

Net cash flows used in purchase of a subsidiary -                          (3,438,366)

Net cash flows generated from purchase of a subsidiary -                          238,672

Net cash flows used in purchases of additional share in subsidiaries (25,651) (24,480)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (144,796,258) (77,450,307)

Financing activities

Dividends paid 27 (10,000,000) (10,000,000)

Lease liabilities payments 14 (973,066) (864,067)

Borrowed funds 18 32,407,424 27,995,601

Bonds 19 3,760,000 680,000

Net cash flows generated from (used in) financing activities 25,194,358 17,811,534

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 32 11,110 21,616

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,714,871 (13,923,111)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 119,008,897 132,932,008

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 39 131,723,768 119,008,897
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For the year ended 31 December

Provision for (reversal from) expected credit loss provision on financial assets and off-

balance sheet items

The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read in conjunction 

(Reversal from) provision for impairment on assets seized by the bank in settlement of 

outstanding debts and the provision for seized assets

Purchase of property and equipment and advances for purchases of property, equipment 

and projects under progress



INVESTBANK (PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(1) GENERAL INFORMATION

-

-

-

- INVESTBANK is a Public Shareholding Company listed on Amman Stock Exchange.

-

(2) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

2-1 Basis of preparation the consolidated financial statements

-

1-

•

INVESTBANK (the “Bank”) was established as a Jordanian public shareholding company under

registration No. (173) dated 12 August 1982 in accordance with the Companies Law No. (12) for

the year 1964 with a paid in capital of JD 6 million distributed over 6 million shares with a par

value of JD 1 per share. The Bank’s capital was increased several times, the latest increase was

on 10 April 2012. the Bank’s authorized, subscribed and paid in capital became JD 100 Millions /

JD 1 per share.

The Bank’s Head Office is located in Amman, Abd Alhameed Sharaf Street, Shmesani, Tel: 06-

5001500, P.O Box 950601, Amman – 11195 Hashemite kingdom of Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 for the Bank and its

subsidiaries (together “the Group”) were prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting

Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the interpretations issued

by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee affiliated to the International

Accounting Standards Board, as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

Provisions for expected credit losses are formed in accordance with the instructions of the

Central Bank of Jordan (No. 13/ 2018) “Application of the IFRS (9)” dated 6 June 2018 and in

accordance with the instructions of the supervisory authorities in the countries in which the

bank operates, whichever is stricter. The significant differences are as follows:

The Bank provides banking and related financial services through its Head Office and its twelve

branches in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, and through its subsidiaries.

11

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors on their

meeting number (01/2024) held on 07 February 2024, and are subjected to the approval of

Central Bank of Jordan and the General Assembly of shareholders.

Debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded, so that

credit exposures are treated and guaranteed by the Jordanian government without calculating

the expected credit losses.

The main differences between the IFRS accounting standards as they shall be applied and what

has been approved by the Central Bank of Jordan are the following:

Following are the material accounting policies used by the Group in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements.



•

•

•

A - Low risk credit facilities, which do not require any provisions:

1)

2)

3)

B - Acceptable risk credit facilities, which do not require provision:

1) Strong financial positions and adequate cash flows.

2) Contracted and covered with duly accepted guarantees.

3) Having good sources of repayment.

4) Active account movement and regular repayment of principal and interest.

5) Efficient management of the client.

C -

These credit facilities are characterized by any of the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

This is in addition to other conditions detailed in the instructions.
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When calculating expected credit losses against credit exposures, a comparison is made

between the calculation results as per IFRS 9 with the instructions of the Central bank of

Jordan no. (47/2009) Dated December 10, 2009 at each stage, the stricter results are

used, and classified in accordance with Central bank of Jordan requirements in this regard.

According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) issued on 10

December 2009 regarding the classification of credit facilities and the calculation of the

impairment provisions, credit facilities were classified into the following categories:

Facilities granted and guaranteed by the Jordanian government, as well as to the

governments of countries in which Jordanian banks have branches, provided that

these facilities are granted in the same currency of the host country.

Cash guaranteed by (100%) of the outstanding balance at any time.

Facilities guaranteed with an acceptable bank guarantee at (100%).

Interest and commissions are suspended on non-performing credit facilities and facilities

classified within the third stage in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of

Jordan.

Credit facilities listed under the watch-list (requiring special attention) which

impairment allowances for are calculated within a range of (1.5% - 15%):

The existence of dues for a period of more than (60) days and less than (90) days for

the principal of credit facilities and/or interest. 

Exceeding the overdraft predetermined limit by (10%), and for a period of more than

(60) days and less than (90) days.

Credit facilities that have previously been classified as non-performing credit

facilities then reclassified from the list upon meeting the rescheduling criteria.

Acceptable-risk credit facilities that has been rescheduled twice in one year.

Credit facilities that have been expired for more than 60 days and less than (90) days

and have not been renewed.



D -

The credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1)

Classification Past due days
Provision percentage 

the 1st year

Sub-standard credit facilities (90) - (179) days 25٪

Doubtful credit facilities (180) to (359) days 50٪

Bad debt/loss credit facilities (360) days and more 100٪

2)

3)

4)

5) Credit facilities that were restructured three times within a year.

6) Current and on-demand accounts overdrawn for (90) days or more.

7)

13

The expected credit losses provision against credit facilities is calculated in accordance

with the 2009/47 instructions for this category of facilities according to the above

ratios and the amount of unguaranteed credit facilities during the first year, while the

allocation of the covered amount is completed at 25% and over four years.

Non-performing credit facilities:

The maturity of the credit facilities or one of its instalments, default payment of

the principal amount and / or interest, or dormant overdrafts that have been past

due for the following periods:

Overdrafts that exceed the granting limit by (10%) and more, and for the duration

of (90) days and more.

Credit facilities granted to any customer declared bankrupt or to any company that

has been deemed under liquidation.

Guarantees paid by the bank on behalf of the clients and had not been reclaimed for 

(90) days or more.

Credit facilities that have been expired for 90 days or more and have not been

renewed.



2-

3-

4-

5-

Assets that have been seized by the Bank in settlement of due debts are stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position within other assets at the acquisition cost

or the fair value, whichever is lesser, and are revalued on the date of the consolidated

financial statements individually. Any impairment in their value is recorded as a loss in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and any appreciation in value is not

recorded as income. The subsequent increase is taken to the consolidated statement of

income to the extent that it does not exceed the value of the previously recorded

impairment. A gradual provision is calculated against seized assets at a percentage of

(5%) of the total book value of these properties (regardless of the period of violation)

starting from the year 2022, so that the required provision percentage of 50% of these

properties is reached by the end of the year 2030. In accordance with the Central Bank

of Jordan Circular No. 10/3/16234 dated 10 October 2022 the calculation of the gradual

provision against seized assets was stopped, provided that the provisions recorded

against seized assets that violate the provision of banking law are maintained and to be

released upon the disposal of such assets.
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Additional provisions are calculated in the consolidated financial statements against

some of the Bank's foreign investments in some neighboring countries, if any, and in

compliance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Some items are classified and presented in the consolidated statement of financial

position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of cash

flows and the related disclosure, such as credit facilities, interest in suspense, expected

credit losses, investments, fair value levels, segments classification and disclosures

related to risks and others, are presented and disclosed in accordance with the

requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan, its instructions and circulated guidance

which might not include all the requirements of IFRS accounting standards such as IFRS

7, 9 and 13.

Cash and balances with the Central Bank item includes, the cash reserve requirement

item, which represent restricted balances according to the instructions of the Central

Bank of Jordan and in accordance with the instructions of the supervisory authorities in

the countries in which the Bank operates, whichever is stricter.



-

-

2-2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

-

A- Applicable accounting policies:

• IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” - Effective starting on or after 1 January 2023:

-

• discounted probability-weighted cash flows

• an explicit risk adjustment, and

•

-

The Jordanian Dinar is the presentation currency for the consolidated financial

statements, which is also the Group’s functional currency. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

conversion except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income which are measured at fair

value at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Also, financial assets and

financial liabilities for which the risk of change in their fair value has been hedged are

shown at fair value.
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The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the last consolidated 

financial statements for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, except for the

adoption of new standards and amendments to the existing standards as mentioned

below.

New standards issued and applicable for the annual periods starting on or after 1 

January 2023

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It

requires a current measurement model where estimates are re-measured in each

reporting period.

Contracts are measured using the building blocks of:

a contractual service margin (CSM) representing the unearned profit of the contract

which is recognized as revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognizing changes in discount rates either in

the statement of profit or loss or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is

likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial assets under IFRS 9. 



-

-

-

•

-

-

•

-
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An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the

remaining coverage for eligible groups of insurance contracts, which are often written

by non-life insurers.

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from

changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in

accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future

events, whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to

past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.

Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 - Effective starting on or

after 1 January 2023:

The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ (being

information that, when considered together with other information included in an

entity’s financial statements, can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the

primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those

financial statements) and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is

material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not

need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting

information. To support this amendment, the IASB also amended IFRS Practice

Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the

concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures”. 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice

Statement 2 - Effective starting on or after 1 January 2023:

Further amendments made in December 2021 added a transition option that permits an

entity to apply an optional classification overlay in the comparative period(s) presented

on initial application of IFRS 17.

Targeted amendments made in July 2020 aimed to ease the implementation of the

standard by reducing implementation costs and making it easier for entities to explain

the results from applying IFRS 17 to investors and others. The amendments also

deferred the application date of IFRS 17 to 1 January 2023. 

The IASB amended IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to require entities to

disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies.



•

-

-

• Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and

•

-

-

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognize deferred

tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable

and deductible temporary differences, and will require the recognition of additional

deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the

beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, entities should

recognize deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that they can be

utilized) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative

period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

17

IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on balance

sheet leases and similar transactions and various approaches were considered

acceptable. Some entities may have already accounted for such transactions

consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected by the

amendments.

decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding

amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognizing these adjustments is recognized in the opening

balance of retained earnings, or another component of equity, as appropriate.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

– Amendments to IAS 12 - Effective starting on or after 1 January 2023:



-

-

•

•

•

**

-
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during the period between the legislation being enacted or substantially enacted and the

legislation becoming effective, known or reasonably estimable information that would help

users of financial statements to understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes

arising from that legislation. If this information is not known or reasonably estimable,

entities are instead required to disclose a statement to that effect and information about

their progress in assessing the exposure.

their current tax expense (if any) related to the Pillar Two income taxes, and

The amendments must be applied immediately, subject to any local endorsement process,

and retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors. However, the disclosures about the known or reasonably estimable

exposure to Pillar Two income taxes are only required for annual reporting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and do not need to be made in interim financial

reports for interim periods ending on or before 31 December 2023.

OECD Pillar Two Rules:

In December 2021, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)

released the Pillar Two model rules (the Global AntiBase Erosion Proposal, or ‘GloBE’) to

reform international corporate taxation. Large multinational enterprises within the scope

of the rules are required to calculate their GloBE effective tax rate for each jurisdiction

where they operate. They will be liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between their

GloBE effective tax rate per jurisdiction and the 15% minimum rate.

In May 2023, the IASB made narrow-scope amendments to IAS 12 which provide a

temporary relief from the requirement to recognize and disclose deferred taxes arising

from enacted or substantively enacted tax law that implements the Pillar Two model rules,

including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes described in

those rules. 

The implementation of the above standards did not have a material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

The amendments also require affected companies to disclose:

the fact that they have applied the exception to recognizing and disclosing information

about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.



B-

•

-

-

• 

• 

• 

-

-

 The disclosures include:

The carrying amount of the liability
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The new standards, amendments, and interpretations issued are required to be applied to 

annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2024

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current

Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1 - Effective starting on or after 1 January 2024:

Amendments made to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements in 2020 and 2022 clarified that

liabilities are classified as either current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the

end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the entity’s expectations or events after

the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). Covenants of loan

arrangements will not affect classification of a liability as current or non-current at the reporting

date if the entity must only comply with the covenants after the reporting date. However, if the

entity must comply with a covenant either before or at the reporting date, this will affect the

classification as current or non-current even if the covenant is only tested for compliance after the

reporting date. The amendments require disclosures if an entity classifies a liability as noncurrent

and that liability is subject to covenants that the entity must comply with within 12 months of the

reporting date.

The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations

that have been issued but are not yet effective

Facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulty complying with the

covenants. 

Information about the covenants, and

The amendments must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Special transitional rules

apply if an entity had early adopted the 2020 amendments regarding the classification of liabilities

as current or non-current. 

The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability.

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the

transfer of the entity’s own equity instrument can only be ignored for the purpose of classifying the

liability as current or non-current if the entity classifies the option as an equity instrument.

However, conversion options that are classified as a liability must be considered when determining

the current/non-current classification of a convertible note.



•

-

-

•

-

-

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16 - Effective

starting on or after 1 January 2024:

In September 2022, the IASB finalized narrow-scope amendments to the requirements

for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 Leases which explain how an entity

accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the transaction. 

The amendments specify that, in measuring the lease liability subsequent to the sale

and leaseback, the seller-lessee determines ‘lease payments’ and ‘revised lease

payments’ in a way that does not result in the seller lessee recognizing any amount of

the gain or loss that relates to the right of use that it retains. This could particularly

impact sale and leaseback transactions where the lease payments include variable

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate.
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Supplier finance arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - the terms

apply to periods starting on or after 1 January 2024

Disclosures falls short of meeting user information needs. The objective of the new

disclosures is to provide information about SFAs that enables investors to assess the

effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and the exposure to liquidity risk. The new

disclosures include information about the following:

The IASB has issued new disclosure requirements about supplier financing

arrangements (‘SFAs’), after feedback to an IFRS Interpretations Committee agenda

decision highlighted that the information required by IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:



1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

-

•

-

-

-

***

-

-

The terms and conditions of SFAs:

Access to SFA facilities and concentration of liquidity risk with finance providers. 

The IASB has provided transitional relief by not requiring comparative information in the

first year, and also not requiring disclosure of specified opening balances. Further, the

required disclosures are only applicable for annual periods during the first year of

application. Therefore, the earliest that the new disclosures will have to be provided is in

annual financial reports for December 2024 year-ends, unless an entity has a financial

year of less than 12 months.

The range of payment due dates for both the financial liabilities that are part of SFAs, and

comparable trade payables that are not part of such arrangements. 

The carrying amount of the financial liabilities in (b) for which suppliers have already

received payment from the finance providers.

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are part of SFAs and the line items in

which those liabilities are presented. 

21

Non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of financial liabilities in (b).

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture –

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Effective starting on or after 1 January 2024:

The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial

Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets

between an investor and their associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the

accounting treatment depends on whether the nonmonetary assets sold or contributed to

an associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business

Combinations).

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have

a material impact on the Group in the current year starting 1 January 2023 or future

reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognize the full

gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of

a business, the gain or loss is recognized by the investor only to the extent of the other

investor’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply prospectively.

In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the application date of this amendment until

such time as the IASB has finalized its research project on the equity method.

The management is still in the process of evaluating the impact of these new amendments

on the Group’s consolidated financial statements, and it believes that there will be no

material impact on the consolidated financial statements when they are implemented.



2-3 Basis of consolidation

• Has the ability to control the investee;

•

• Has the ability to use its power to influence the returns of the investee.

•

•

•

•
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Bank and the companies under its control (its subsidiaries), and control is

achieved when the Bank:

The Bank will re-estimate whether it controls the investees or not if the facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes on one or more of the

control points referred to above.

In the event that the Bank’s voting rights fall below the majority of voting

rights in any of the investees, it will have the power to control when voting

rights are sufficient to give the Bank the ability to unilaterally direct the

related subsidiary activities. The bank takes into account all facts and

circumstances when estimating whether the Bank has voting rights in the

investee that are sufficient to give it the ability to control or not. These facts

and circumstances include:

Any additional facts and circumstances indicating that the bank has,

or does not have, a current responsibility to direct the relevant

activities at the time the required decisions are taken, including

how to vote in meetings of previous general assembly’s meetings.

Is exposed to variable returns, or has the right to variable returns,

resulting from its   association with the investee;

The volume of voting rights the Bank has in relation to the number

and distribution of other voting rights;

Potential voting rights held by the Bank and any other voting rights

holders or parties;Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
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Adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries, when required,

to align their accounting policies with those used by the Bank.

All assets , liabilities, equity, income and expenses related to transactions and

balances  between the bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated when consolidating.

Non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries are determined separately from the

Bank’s equity in these entities. The non-controlling interests of the shareholders

currently present in the equity granted to their owners with a proportionate share of

the net assets upon liquidation may be measured initially at fair value or by the

proportionate share of non-controlling interests in the fair value of the identifiable

net purchase amount of assets. The measurement is selected on an acquisition basis.

Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. After acquisition,

the carrying value of non-controlling interests is the value of these interests upon

initial recognition, in addition to the non-controlling interest's share of subsequent

changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributable to the non-controlling

interests even if that results in a deficit in the non-controlling interests balance.

The subsidiary is consolidated when the Bank controls the subsidiary and is

deconsolidated when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results

of operations of subsidiaries acquired or excluded during the year are included in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date on which control is achieved

until the date the control of the subsidiary is lost.

Profits and losses and each item of the comprehensive income are distributed to the

owners in the entity and the non-controlling interest, the comprehensive income for

the subsidiaries belonging to the owners in the entity and the non-controlling share is

distributed even if this distribution will lead to a deficit in the balance of the non-

controlling interest.



When the bank loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss resulting from

the disposal is calculated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with

the difference between (1) the total fair value of the consideration received and

the fair value of any remaining shares and (2) the present value of the assets

(including goodwill), less the liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-

controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognized in the other comprehensive income in

relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Bank had directly

disposed of the assets or liabilities related to the subsidiary.

The fair value of the investment that is held in the previous subsidiary at the

date of loss of control is considered to be the fair value upon initial recognition

of subsequent accounting under IFRS (9) “Financial instruments” when the

provisions of this standard apply, or the cost of initial recognition of

investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Changes in the Bank's interest in subsidiaries that do not result in loss of

control are accounted for as equity transactions. The present value of the

Bank's and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect changes in their

relative shares in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by

which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the

consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to

the owners of the Bank.



These  consolidated financial statements include the Bank and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2023: 

Name of the Company Paid in capital Bank’s ownership Nature of operations Location Date of acquisition

    JD

Tamkeen Leasing Co. 20,000,000 97.5٪ Finance leasing Amman 2006

Al Istethmari Letamweel Selselat Al Imdad Co. 3,000,000 94٪ Management and operation of bonded warehouses Amman 2010

Tamkeen Leasing Company owns the following subsidiaries:

Name of the Company Paid in capital Bank’s ownership Nature of operations Location Date of acquisition

Jordan Trade Facilities Co. 16,500,000 95.4٪ Granting loans and facilities Amman 2016

Trade Facilities for Finance Leasing Co. 2,000,000 95.4٪ Finance leasing Amman 2016

Bindar Trade and Investment Co. 20,000,000 96.7٪ Granting loans and facilities Amman 2017

Ruboua Al Sharq Real Estate Co. 50,000 96.7٪ Sale of lands and properties owned by the Co. Amman 2017

Rakeen Real Estate Co. 30,000 96.7٪ Sale of lands and properties owned by the Co. Amman 2017

Bindar Finance Leasing Co.* 1,000,000 96.7٪ Finance leasing Amman 2017

-

-

-

*
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Based on the decision of the Bank’s Board of Directors in its first meeting for the year 2022, it was approved to shut down the Jordanian Factoring Company. And based on

the decision of the General Assembly of Jordanian Factoring Company (former subsidiary) in its extraordinary meeting held on 16 November 2022 it was approved to reduce

the Company’s capital by an amount JD 1,292,000, so that the authorized and paid-in capital becomes JD 208,000, and the reduction procedures were completed on 15

December 2022. A liquidator has been appointed for the Company in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law, on 14 January 2024 the company registration certificate

has been canceled and it was officially liquidated.

Based on the decision of the general assembly of Bindar Trade and Investment Company (a subsidiary) on its extraordinary meeting held on January 4, 2022 it was approved

to purchase all shares of Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company, with a value of 3,438,366 JD, the Central Bank of Jordan approval on the acquisition has been obtained

according to their letter No. (10/2/16687) dated October 31, 2021, the acquisition was completed during the first quarter of 2022.

Based on the decision of the General Assembly of Bindar Trade and Investments Company (a subsidiary) in its extraordinary meeting held on 23 November 2022 it was

approved to merge Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company (former subsidiary) with Bindar Trade and Investments Company. The General Companies Controller in the

Ministry of Industry Trade & Supply announced the merger of Bindar Trade and Investments Company and Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company with the merging

company being Bindar Trade and Investments company and canceling the registration of the merged company on 25 July 2023. The registration certificate of Summit Auto

Trade Facilities company was canceled on 6 August 2023. And the merger committee announced a new authorization matrix for Bindar Trade and Investments.

Based on the decision of Bindar Trade and Investments Company (a subsidiary) Board of Directors No. 18/2022 dated on 3 October 2022 it was approved to cease the

operations of Bindar Financial Leasing Company (a subsidiary) and liquidate it voluntarily during the year 2023 therefore, the company's assets, liabilities and results have

not been consolidated with the group's consolidated financial statements and have been presented as assets held for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets held

for sale.



-

-

2-4 Segment Information

2-5 Net interest income

Non-controlling interest represents the share in net profit or loss and net assets not owned -

directly or indirectly - by the Bank in its subsidiaries and are shown in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss, and within the equity in the consolidated statement of financial

position separately from those attributable to the Bank’s shareholders.
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The business segment represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide

products or services subject to risks and returns that are different from those related to other

business segments and that are measured According to the reports that are used by the

executive management and decision makers in the Bank.

A geographical segment is associated with the provision of products or services in a

particular economic environment that is subject to risks and rewards different from those

related to segments operating in other.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows of the

financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial

liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of

the instrument.

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments with the exception of those

classified as held for trading or measured or those determined at fair value through the

consolidated statement of profit or loss in "net interest income" as "interest income" and

"interest expenses" are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the

effective interest method. Interest on financial instruments measured at fair value through

the consolidated statement of profit or loss is also included in the fair value movement during

the period.

In the case of preparing separate financial statements for the Bank as a separate entity, the

investments in the subsidiaries are stated at cost.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial year of the

Bank, using the same accounting policies used by the Bank. If the accounting policies adopted

by the subsidiaries are different, the required adjustments are made on the financial

statements of the subsidiaries to be consistent with the accounting policies used by the Bank.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss from the date of their ownership which is the date on which the control on the

subsidiaries is actually transferred to the Bank, and stops consolidating when the Bank loses

this control. 



2-6 Net commissions income

2-7 Commission’s expenses with regard to services upon receipt of services

2-8

Interest income and expense in the Bank's consolidated statement of profit or loss also

includes the effective portion of fair value changes for derivatives that are designated as

hedging instruments in the cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. As for the fair value

hedges of interest rate risk on interest expense and income, the effective portion of fair

value changes for specific derivatives are also included, and fair value changes to the

specific risks of the hedged item are also included in interest income and expense.

Interest expenses also include the value of the interest against the lease obligations.

Commissions’ net income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral

part of EIR. The commissions included in this part of the Bank's consolidated statement of

profit or loss also include commissions charged for the loan service, non-use commissions

related to loan obligations when this is unlikely to result in a specific arrangement for

lending and commissions of co-financing loans.
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The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross

carrying amount of non- credit impaired financial assets (i.e., at the amortized cost of the

financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), or to the

amortized cost of financial liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets the interest

income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired

financial assets (i.e., the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit

losses). For financial assets originated or purchased and are credit-impaired, the EIR

reflects the ECL in determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the

financial asset.

Contracts with clients that result in recognition of financial instruments, part of which

may be related to IFRS (9) or (15), in which case commissions are recognized in the part

related to IFRS (9) and the remainder is recognized according to the IFRS (15).

Net income from financial instruments at fair value through the consolidated statement of

profit or loss includes all gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the consolidated statement of

profit or loss. The Bank has elected to present the movement at the full fair value of the

assets and liabilities at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

this item, including interest income, expenses and related from dividends.

Net income of financial instruments at fair value through the consolidated statement 

of profit or loss:



2-9 Dividend’s income:

•

•

2-10 Financial instruments

Initial recognition of measurement:

In the case of equity instruments classified as fair value through other

comprehensive income, dividends are included in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss as dividend from financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

28

Dividend’s income is recognized when the right to receive payment is

established, being the date preceding the dividends of listed shares, and usually

the date on which the shareholders agree to dividends of unlisted shares.

With regard to equity instruments held through the consolidated statement

of profit or loss, dividend income is included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss under the item of profit (loss) of financial assets at fair value

through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated

statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument and loans and advances to customers

are recognized if they are credited to the customers’ account.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured initially at fair value, and

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of

financial assets and liabilities are added to the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, or deducted therefrom, as necessary, upon initial

recognition. Transaction costs that are directly related to the acquisition of

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss are recognized directly in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

The dividends distribution in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

depends on the classification and measurement of the shares, i.e.:



•

• 

2-10-A Financial assets:

Initial recognition:
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Financial assets and liabilities are measured initially at fair value, and transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets

and liabilities are added to the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, or deducted therefrom, as necessary, upon initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly related to the acquisition of financial assets or

financial liabilities at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss

are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Group will

account for such difference as follows:

When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an

identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data

from observable markets, the difference is recognized on initial recognition (i.e.,

profit or loss on the first day).

In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to align with the transaction

price (i.e., day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial

carrying amount of the asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that it

arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would

take into account when pricing the asset or liability, or upon the de-recognition of

such instrument.

All financial assets are recognized on the trade date where the purchase or sale of a

financial asset is made under a contract whose terms require delivery of the

financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and is

initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial

assets classified as at fair value in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets

classified as at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.



Subsequent measurement:

Specifically:

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The Group can take the non - irrevocable option by including subsequent changes

in the fair value of the investment in equity that is not held for trading or a

possible replacement recognized by the buyer within the business combination to

which the IFRS (3) applies, in other comprehensive income.

The Group can determine in a non-irrevocable manner the financing instruments

that meet the criteria of amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive

income as measured by the fair value through the consolidated statement of profit

or loss if it eliminates or significantly reduces mismatches in accounting (referred

to as the fair value option).
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All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS (9 are required to be

subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the financial assets.

The financing instruments held in the business model that aims to collect

contractual cash flows, and which have contractual cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding and

are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

The financing instruments held within the business model that aim to both collect

contractual cash flows and sell debt instruments, which have contractual cash

flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding and are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed on fair value

basis, or held for sale), and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair

value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

However, the Bank can take a non - irrevocable option/ determination after initial

recognition of the financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis, as follows:



Business model assessment:
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Debt instruments at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 

income:

The Group assesses the classification and measurement a financial asset based on the

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing the

asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual

terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPI) on the principal outstanding.

For the purpose of the SPPI test, the principal is the fair value of the financial asset at

initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset

(e.g., if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time

value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during

a particular period of time and for other basic lending options and risks, as well as a profit

margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is

denominated.

The contractual cash flows represent SPPI, which are consistent with the basic financing

arrangement. Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the

contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic financing arrangement, such as

exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual

cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic

financing arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the

classification of a financial asset. The Group determines the business models at a level that

reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular

business objective. The Group’s business model does not depend on management’s

intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is

performed at aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Group may adopt more than one business model for managing its financial instruments

which reflect how the Group manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.

The Group’s business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting

contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.



• 

• 

• 

• 

The Group takes into account all relevant information available when making the business

model assessment. However, this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios

that expected to Bank does not reasonably expect to occur, such as the so-called ‘worst

case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Bank also takes into account all relevant evidence

available such as:

The policies and declared objectives of the portfolio and the application of those

policies and whether the management strategy focuses on obtaining contractual

revenue, maintaining a specific rate of profit, and matching the period of financial

assets with the period of financial liabilities in which those assets are financed cash

flows are realized through the sale of assets.
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The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and financial assets held

within that business model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are

managed.

How managers of the business are compensated (e.g., whether the compensation is

based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows

collected).

On initial recognition of the financial asset, the Group determines whether the recently

recognized financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether it reflects

the beginning of a new business model. The group reassesses its business models in each

reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the

previous period.

When a debt instrument that is measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income is derecognized, the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognized in other

comprehensive income in equity is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss. On the other hand, as for equity investment measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income, the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognized in other

comprehensive income is not subsequently reclassified to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss but is rather transferred directly within equity.

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that

business model are evaluated and reported to the key management personnel.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at Fair value

through other comprehensive income are tested for impairment.



- Contingent events that change the amount or timing of cash flows.

- Prepaid features and the possibility to extend.

- Terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss:

Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss are:

•

•

•

Reclassification:

Financial assets - Assessing whether contractual cash flows are payments of the 

principal and interest only:

Assets of contractual cash flows, and which have been not Principal debt and interest on

the principal amount.

Assets held within the business model other than those held to collect contractual cash

flows or held for collection and sale.

Assets designated at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss using

fair value option.
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For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial

asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money

and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular

period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and

administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether contractual cash flows are only SPPI, the Group has considered the

contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial assets

involve a contractual period that can change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows

and therefore they do not meet the conditions of SPPI In making this assessment, the Group

considers:

If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets changes, the financial

assets that were affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements

related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period

following the change in business model that results in reclassifying the Bank’s financial

assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered within the framework of the

accounting policy for the amendment and exclusion of financial assets set out below.

These assets are measured at fair value, and any gains/ losses arising from re-measurement

are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.



Foreign exchange gains and losses:

•

•

•

•

Fair value option:

•

•

•
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A financial instrument with a fair value can be measured reliably at fair value through the

consolidated statement of profit or loss (fair value option) upon initial recognition, even

if the financial instruments are not acquired or incurred primarily for the purpose of

selling or repurchasing. The fair value option for financial assets can be used if it

substantially eliminates or reduces the inconsistency of the measurement or recognition

that would otherwise have arisen from the measurement of assets or liabilities, or the

recognition of related profit and loss on a different basis (“accounting mismatch”). The

fair value option for financial liabilities can be chosen in the following cases:

If the choice leads to the cancellation or substantially reduces accounting mismatch

If the financial liabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis,

according to a documented risk or investment management strategy.

If there is a derivative that is included in the host financial or non-financial contract

and the derivative is not closely related to the host contract.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in foreign currency is determined and

translated at the rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated

hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that

are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the

amortized cost of the debt instrument are recognized in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss. Other exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive

income in the investment’s revaluation reserve.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost through the consolidated statement of

profit or loss that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, gains and losses of

exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,

exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income within

investments revaluation reserve.



Expected credit losses:

• Loans and credit facilities (direct and indirect).

• Debt instruments carried at amortized cost.

• Debt instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.

• Financial guarantees provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

• Receivables related to leases are within the requirements of IAS (17) and IFRS (16).

• Trade receivables.

• 

• 

• 
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These tools cannot be reclassified to fair value through the consolidated statement of

profit or loss while they are held or issued. Financial assets designated at fair value

through the consolidated statement of profit or loss are recorded at fair value with

any unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment

income.

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit loss on the following

financial instruments that are not measured at fair value through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss:

Credit exposures to banks and financial institutions [excluding current balances

used to cover the Bank's transactions such as remittances, guarantees and credits

within a very short period of time (days)].
Provisions for expected credit losses are formed in accordance with the instructions

of the Central Bank of Jordan (No. 13/ 2018) “Application of the IFRS (9)” dated 6

June 2018 and in accordance with the instructions of the supervisory authorities in

the countries in which the bank operates, whichever is stricter. The significant

differences are as follows:

When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results

are compared according to the IFRS (9) under the instructions of the Central

Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) dated 10 December 2009 for each stage separately

and the stricter results are taken.

Debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are

excluded, so that credit exposures are treated and guaranteed by the Jordanian

government without credit losses.



Impairment loss is not recognized in equity instruments.

• 

• 

With the exception and notes Impairment losses are Purchased or Originated Rating-

Impaired’ (POCI) financial assets (which are considered separately below), ECL are

required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

12-month ECL, i.e., lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial

instrument that can be realized within 12 months after the reporting date, referred to

in Stage 1.

12-month ECL, i.e., lifetime ECL that result from those possible default events over the

age of the financial instrument, referred to in Stage 2 and Stage 3.
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A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk

on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all

other financial instruments, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are

measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Bank

under the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive, which arise from

the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective

interest rate.

For the unutilized limits, the expected credit loss is the difference between the present

value of the difference between the contractual cash flows due to the Bank if the borrower

withdraws the financing and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive if the

financing is utilized.

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected

payments to reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts

that the Bank expects to receive from the instrument holder, the customer or any other

party.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on the portfolio basis that share

similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on

the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset’s original EIR,

regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a portfolio basis.



Credit-impaired financial assets:

• Significant financial difficulty faced by borrower or issuer.

• Breach of contract, for example, default or delay in payment.

•

•

• The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact

on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired

financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes

observable data about the following:

The Group grants the borrower a waiver for economic or contractual reasons related to

the borrower's financial difficulty.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event, instead, the combined effect of

several events may have caused financial assets to become credit impaired. The Group

assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost or

FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate debt

instruments are credit impaired, the Group considers factors such as bond yields, credit

ratings and the ability of the borrower to increase funding.
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A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a

deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of

granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced

significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where

concessions are contemplated but not granted, the asset is deemed credit impaired when

there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default.

The definition of default includes possibility of a backstop if amounts are overdue for 90 days

or more. However, cases where the asset's impairment is not recognized after (90) days of

maturity, are supported by reasonable information.

Interest and commissions are suspended on non-performing credit facilities granted to clients

in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan's instructions.

The credit facilities and their suspended interests, covered by provisions, are transferred

entirely off the consolidated statement of financial position, in accordance with the decisions

of the Board of Directors in this regard.

The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial

difficulties.



Purchased or originated credit-impaired’ (POCI) financial assets:

Definition of default:

The Group considers the following as an event of default:

•

• The borrower is unlikely to pay his credit obligations of the Bank in full.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and concludes an agreement simultaneously to

resell the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price at a later date (repurchase

or borrowing shares), the consideration paid is calculated as a loan or advance, and the

asset is not recognized in the Group’s financial statements.

The borrower defaults for more than 90 days on any significant credit obligation to the

Group.

POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial

recognition. For these assets, the Group recognizes all changes in lifetime ECL since initial

recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognized in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss. A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment gain. 
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The definition of default is deemed critical to the determination of ECL. The definition of

default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss

allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability

of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECL and the identification of a

significant increase in credit risk as shown below.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of

different types of assets. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has

breached an advised limit or has been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount

outstanding.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Bank takes into

account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on

the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the

breach of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as 

overdue status and non-payment of another obligation to the same counterparty are key

inputs in this analysis. The Bank uses a variety of sources of information to assess default

which are either developed internally or obtained from external sources.



Significant increase in credit risk:

The Group will not consider that financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at the reporting

date did not have a significant increase in credit risk. As a result, the Bank monitors

all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that

are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

The Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there

has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss

allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default

at initial recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios

will lead to a different probability of default. It is the weighting of these different

scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used

to determine whether credit risk has significantly increased.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default

occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining

maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default that was anticipated for the

remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was

first recognized. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and 

qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort, based on the Group’s historical experience and expert credit assessment

including forward-looking information.
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• The remaining lifetime PD at the date of reporting.

•
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For corporate financing, forward-looking information includes the future

prospects of the industries in which the Group’s counterparties operate, that can

be obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental

bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as taking

into consideration various internal and external sources of actual and forecast

economic information.For individuals financing, forward looking lending

information includes the same economic forecasts as corporate lending with

additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly for regions with a

concentration to certain industries, as well as internally generated information of

customer payment behavior. The quantitative information is a primary indicator

of significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PD by

comparing:

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are

reflected in PD models on a timely basis. However, the Bank still considers

separately some qualitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased

significantly. For corporate lending, there is particular focus on assets that are

included on a ‘watch list’ given an exposure is on a watch list once there is a

concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated.

For retail lending, the Bank considers the expectation of forbearance and payment

holidays, credit scores and events such as unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce or

death.

The remaining lifetime PD at a point in time that was estimated based on facts 

and circumstances at the initial recognition of the exposure.

The PDs are considered forward-looking, and the Group uses the same

methodologies and data used to measure the expected credit loss provisions.



Modification and de-recognition of financial assets

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative

measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in the PD will be more significant for a

financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial

instrument with a higher PD.

As a backstop when an asset becomes 30 days past due, the Group considers that a

significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the

impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL.

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the

cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between

initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the

amount and/ or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a

future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an

existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted

covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash

flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g., a change to the

increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

The Group renegotiates loans with customers who face financial difficulties to

increase collection and reduce the risk of default. The terms of repayment of the

loan are facilitated in cases where the borrower has made all reasonable efforts to

pay under the original contractual terms, and an important risk of default or

default has occurred, and it is expected that the borrower will be able to fulfil the

revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the

maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal

and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and

interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants. The Group has a waiting policy

that applies to corporate and individual lending.
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•

• 

• 

• The remaining PD at the reporting date based on the revised terms.
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The remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the

original contractual terms.

When a financial asset is modified, the Group assesses whether this amendment

leads to de-recognition. As per the Group's policy, the modification leads to de-

recognition when it causes a significant difference in the terms.

Qualitative factors, such as the non-existence of contractual cash flows after

modification as SPPI, change in currency or change in the counterparty, or extent

of change in interest rates, maturity, or covenants. If this does not clearly

indicate a fundamental modification.

Conducting a quantitative evaluation to compare the present value of the

remaining contractual cash flows under the original terms with the contractual

cash flows in accordance with the revised terms and deduct both amounts based

on the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized, the loss allowance for ECL is

remeasured at the date of de-recognition to determine the net carrying amount of

the asset at that date the difference between this revised carrying amount and the

fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on

de-recognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based

on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to

be originated as credit- impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value

of the new loan is recognized at a significant discount to its revised paramount

because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the

modification. The Group monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by

evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in

past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification

does not result in de- recognition, the Group determines if the financial asset’s

credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:



For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, where modification

did not result in de- recognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Group’s ability to collect the

modified cash flows taking into account the Group’s previous experience of similar

forbearance action, as well as various behavioral indicators, including the borrower’s

payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains

significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition, the loss allowance will

continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on

forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is

evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behavior following modification leading to

a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to de-recognition, the Group calculates the modification

gain/loss comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding

the ECL allowance). Then, the Group measures ECL for the modified asset, where the

expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the

expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s

cash flows expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor

retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the

transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated

liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the

financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the

cumulative gain/ loss that had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity is

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with the exception of equity

investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/ loss previously

recognized in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.



Write-offs:

ECL provision of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position:

•

•

• Loan’s commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision.

•

2-10-B Financial liabilities and equity:

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,

such as the customer not participating in a payment plan with the Group. The Group

classifies the funds or amounts due for write-off after exhausting all possible payment

methods and taking the necessary approvals. However, if the financing or receivable is

written off, the Group continues the enforcement activity to try to recover the

outstanding receivables, which are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss upon recovery.

For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no provision is recognized in the

consolidated statement of financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value.

However, the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount in the

investments revaluation reserve;

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component,

and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component

separately from those on the drawn component, the Group presents a combined

loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a

deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of

the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a

provision.
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Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the consolidated statement of financial

position as follows:

For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross

carrying amount of the assets.

Issued Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.



Loans and advances:

The "loans and advances" included in the statement of financial position comprise the following:

- 

- 

- Lease receivables.

Equity instruments:

Share capital:

Treasury shares:

Composite instruments:
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A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Group or a contract that will or may be settled in theGroup’s own

equity instruments and is a non- derivative contract for which the Group is or may be obliged to

deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own

equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or

another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Group’s own  equity instruments.

Loans and advances measured at amortized cost; initially measured at fair value plus

incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method.

Loans and advances, which are measured at FVTPL or designated as at FVTPL; are measured

at fair value with changes recognized immediately in profit or loss.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity

after deducting all its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity.

No gain/ loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue, or cancellation of the

Group’s own equity instruments.

The component parts of the composite instruments (such as convertible notes) issued by the

Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the content

of the contractual arrangements, definitions of financial liabilities and equity instruments. The

transfer option that will be settled by exchanging a fixed cash amount or other financial asset

for a specified number of the company's equity instruments is an equity instrument.



Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

• It is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

•

• It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

•

•

•
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At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the

prevailing interest rate in the market for similar non-convertible instruments. In the case

of non-embedded related derivatives, they are first separated, and the remaining financial

liabilities are recorded on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method

until they are extinguished upon conversion or on the instrument's maturity date.

Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through the consolidated statement of

profit or loss when financial liabilities (a) are held for trading or (b) are classified at fair

value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A financial liability is classified

as held for trading if:

Upon initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that

the Bank and has a modern actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for the purpose of trading or the

potential consideration that a buyer may pay as part of a business combination at fair

value is determined through the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon initial

recognition if:

This designation substantially eliminates or reduces the inconsistency of the

measurement or recognition that may otherwise arise.

The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or

both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in

accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and

information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis.

If the financial obligation forms part of a contract that contains one derivative or

more. IFRS 9 allows a fully hybrid contract (composite) to be determined at fair value

through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified either as financial liabilities at fair value through the

consolidated statement of profit or loss or other financial liabilities.



When determining whether recognition of changes in the credit risk of liabilities in

other comprehensive income will create or increase the accounting mismatch in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Group assesses whether it expects to offset

the effects of changes in the credit risk of the liabilities in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss with a change in the fair value of another financial instrument that has

been measured at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value through

the consolidated statement of profit or loss with any gains or losses arising on re-

measurement recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent

that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes any interest paid on

the financial liabilities and is incorporated in the item "net profit or loss from other

financial instruments” at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

However, in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities classified at fair value

through the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the amount of the change in the

fair value of the financial liabilities that resulted from changes in the credit risk of

those liabilities is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless recognition of the

effects of changes in the credit risk of liabilities in other comprehensive income

would create or increase accounting mismatch in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss. The remaining amount of changes in the fair value of the liability is recognized

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and changes in the fair value

attributable to the credit risk of financial liabilities recognized in other comprehensive

income are not reclassified subsequently to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings upon de-recognition of the financial

liability.

With regard to liabilities for issued loans and financial guarantee contracts classified

as fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss, all gains and losses

are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.



Other financial liabilities:

De-recognition of financial liabilities:

2-11 Derivative financial instruments:
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Other financial liabilities, including deposits and loans, are initially measured at fair

value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are then measured at

amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method for calculating the amortized cost of a

financial liability and allocating interest expenses over the relevant period. An

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

payments during the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial recognition to obtain details on

the effective interest rate.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid

and payable is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The exchange between the Group and its existing lender of debt instruments with

substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original

financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Likely, the Group

treats the significant modification of the outstanding obligation conditions or part

thereof as extinguishment of the original financial liabilities and the recognition of

new liabilities. The terms are assumed to be substantially different if the discounted

present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of

any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at

least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original financial liability.

The Group enters a variety of derivative financial instruments, some of which are

held for trading while others are maintained to manage exposure to interest rate

risk, credit risk, and foreign exchange rate risk. Financial derivatives include foreign

currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps across

currencies and credit default swaps.



Embedded derivatives:

2-12 Financial guarantee contracts:
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Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative

contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the

date of each statement of financial position. The resulting profits/ losses are

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss immediately unless the

derivative is identified and are effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the

timing of recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss depends on the

nature of the hedge relationship. The Group identifies certain derivatives as either

fair value hedges for recognized assets and liabilities, or for the company’s

obligations (fair value hedges), potential forecasting hedges, foreign currency risk

hedges for fixed obligations (cash flow hedges) or net investments in foreign

operations (net investment hedges).

Derivatives with positive fair value are recognized as a financial asset, while

derivatives with negative fair value are recognized as financial liabilities.

Derivatives are presented as non-current assets or non-current liabilities if the

residual maturity of the instrument is more than (12) months and is not expected to

be realized or settled within (12) months. Other derivatives are presented as current

assets or current liabilities.

Derivatives embedded in financial liabilities or other non-financial asset host

contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are

not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not

measured at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current

liability if the remaining maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded

derivative relates is more than 12 months and is not expected to be realized or

settled within 12 months. Other embedded derivatives are presented as other assets

or other liabilities.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make

specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss incurred because a specified

debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.



• The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS (9).

• 

2-13 Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price:

• The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS (9).

•

2-14 Hedge accounting 

- The Group identifies certain derivatives as hedging instruments with respect to foreign

currency risk and interest rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net investment

hedges in foreign operations, as appropriate. Foreign exchange risk hedges on the Group’s

commitments are also accounted for as cash flow hedges. The Group does not apply fair value

hedge accounting to hedges of interest rate risk portfolio. In addition, the Group does not use

the exemption to continue to use hedge accounting rules using IAS (39), i.e., the Group applies

the hedge accounting rules of IFRS (9).
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group’s entity are initially measured at their fair

value, and if they are not determined at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or

loss that does not result from the transfer of a financial asset, they are subsequently measured:

The amount initially recognized, less, where appropriate, the amount of accumulated profit or

loss recognized in accordance with the Bank's revenue collection policies, whichever is greater.

Financial guarantee contracts that are not designated at fair value through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss are presented as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial

position and remeasurement is presented in other income. 

Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price are measured

initially at their fair value, and if they are not determined at fair value through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss, they are subsequently measured:

The amount initially recognized, less, where appropriate, the amount of accumulated profit or

loss recognized in accordance with the Group's revenue collection policies, whichever is 

Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price, which are not

designated at fair value through the consolidated statement of income are presented as provisions

in the consolidated statement of financial position, and remeasurement is presented in other

income.

The Group did not specify any financial guarantee contracts at fair value through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

The Group did not designate any commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the

market price, which are designated at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.



-

•

•

•

-

-

-
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There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

In some hedging relationships, the Group only determines the true value of the options. In

this case, a change in the fair value of the component of the time value of the option in the

other comprehensive income is deferred, over the hedging period, to the extent that it relates

to the hedged item and is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss when the hedged item does not lead to recognition of non-financial items. The Group's

risk management policy does not include hedging items that lead to recognition of non-

financial items, because the Group's risks relate to financial items only.

At the beginning of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the

hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objectives and

strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. Furthermore, at the commencement of

the hedging and on a continuous basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument

is effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item that can

be attributed to the hedged risk, and for which all hedging relationships meet the following

hedging effectiveness requirements:

The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from this 

The hedge ratio for the hedge relationship is the same as that results from the amount of

the hedged item to which the Group actually hedges and the amount of the hedging

instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that amount of the hedged item.

The Group rebalances the hedging relationship in order to comply with the requirements of

the hedge rate when necessary. In such cases, the suspension may apply to only part of the

hedge relationship. For example, the hedge ratio may be adjusted in such a way that part of

the hedged item is not part of the hedge relationship, and therefore the hedge accounting is

suspended only for the size of the hedging item that is no longer part of the hedge

relationship.

If the hedge relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirements related to the

hedge ratio but the risk management objective of this hedge relationship remains the same,

the Group adjusts the hedge ratio for the hedging relationship (such as the hedge rebalance)

so that the qualification criteria are combined again.



-

-

-

Fair value hedges:

-

-

-
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Details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes and

movements in the hedging reserve are determined in equity.

The hedged items determined by the Group are hedging items related to the period, which

means that the original time value of the option related to the hedged item of equity is

amortized to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a rational basis (for example,

according to the straight-line method) over the period of hedging relationship.

In some hedging relationships, the Group does not determine the forward component of a

forward contract or the difference on a currency basis for the hedging instrument across the

currencies. In this case, a similar treatment applies to the time value of the options. It is

optional to treat the forward component of the forward contract and the difference on a

currency basis, and the option is applied on a hedging basis separately, other than treating

the time value of options that are mandatory. Regarding hedging relationships and forward

derivatives or foreign currencies such as interest rate swaps across currencies, when the

forward component or the difference on the currency basis is excluded from classification,

the Group generally recognizes the excluded item in other comprehensive income.

The change in the fair value of the qualified hedging instrument is recognized in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss except when the hedging instrument hedges the

equity instrument designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, in which

case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The Group has not specified fair value

hedging relationships when the hedging instrument hedges the equity instrument designated

at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of the hedged item that was not measured at fair value is adjusted for

the change in the fair value, which can be attributed to the hedged risk and a corresponding

recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For debt instruments that are

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the carrying amount is not

adjusted as it is at fair value, but the profit or loss portion of the fair value on the hedged

item associated with the risk hedged is included in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss instead of the other comprehensive income. When the hedged item has a fair value

equity instrument determined through other comprehensive income, the hedging gains/

losses remain in the other comprehensive income to match the hedging instrument.

When the hedging gains/ losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

they are recognized in the same item as the hedged item.



-

Cash flow hedges

-

-

-

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

-

The Group does not suspend hedging accounting except when the hedging relationship (or

part of it) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if any). This includes cases

where the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, or exercised, and exclusion is

stated for the future effect. Amortization is accounted for the fair value adjustment to the

book value of the hedged items for which the effective interest method is used (i.e., tools we

have measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income) that

results from the hedged risk in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as of a date not

later than the date of suspension of hedge accounting.
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The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualified hedging

instruments that are determined and qualify as cash flow hedges in the hedging reserve for

cash flow is recognized, as a separate component, in other comprehensive income. This is

limited to the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item from the start of the

hedge less any amounts recycled to the consolidated statement of profit of loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and the accumulation of

shareholders' equity in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the periods in which the

hedging item affects profit or loss are reclassified in the same line of the hedged recognized

item. If the Group no longer expects the transaction to occur, then this amount is immediately

reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group does not suspend hedging accounting except when the hedging relationship (or

part of it) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if any). This includes cases

where the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when the

occurrence of a specific hedging transaction is not considered to be highly probable.

Suspension is calculated with a future effect. Any gains/ losses recognized in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remain in equity and

recognized when the expected transaction is finally recorded in profit or loss. When the

occurrence of a forecast transaction becomes unpredictable, the accumulated profits/ losses in

shareholders' equity is reclassified and recognized directly in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow

hedges. Any gains/ losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the

hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve of

foreign exchange.



-

2-15 Offsetting

-

2-16 Accounts managed for the interest of clients

-

2-17 Fair Value

-
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The profits and losses resulting from the hedging instrument related to the effective 

portion of the hedging accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are

reclassified into profits or losses in the same way as the foreign exchange

differences of the foreign operation as described above.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amounts are reported in the

consolidated statement of financial position, only when legally enforceable rights

are established and when such amounts are settled on a net basis, and when assets

and liabilities are settled simultaneously.

Accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of clients are not considered as assets of

the Bank. Fees and commissions for managing these accounts are shown in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss. A provision is made against the decrease in

the value of the capital-guaranteed portfolios, which are managed for the interest

of clients.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,

the Bank takes into account, when pricing the asset or liability, if market

participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or

liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure

purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for

measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value such

as value as used in IAS (36).



-

• 

• 

• 

2-18 Provisions

-

2-19 Employees’ benefits

Employees’ short-term benefits

-

Employees’ other long-term benefits

-

2-20 Income tax

-

-
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Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that the   entity can access at the measurement date.

Employee’s short-term benefits are recognized as expenses when providing related

services. The commitment relating to the amount expected to be paid is recognized when

the Bank has a current legal or constructive obligation to pay for the previous services

provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

In addition, for the purposes of preparing financial reports, fair value measurements are

categorized to level (1), (2) or (3) based on the clarity of the inputs in relation to the fair

value measurements and the importance of the inputs in relation to the full fair value

measurements, and they are defined as follows:

Provisions are recognized when the Group has obligations at the date of the consolidated

statement of financial position arising from past events and obligations can be paid and

measured reliably.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The Bank's net liabilities in relation to employees’ benefits are the number of future

benefits that employees have received for their services in the current and previous

periods. Those benefits are deducted to determine their present value. The remeasurement

is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Payable tax expenses are calculated based on taxable profits. Taxable profits are different

from profits disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, as the disclosed profits

include revenue that is not subject to tax, expenses that are not deductible in the financial

year but in subsequent years or accumulated losses that are accepted in terms of tax, or

items that are not taxable or deductible for tax purposes.

Tax expenses represent amounts of tax payable and deferred tax.



-

-

-

2-21 Assets seized by the Bank in settlement of due debts

-

2-22 Pledged financial assets

-

Taxes are calculated as per the tax rates established by the laws, regulations and

instructions applicable in the countries where the Group operates.

These are the financial assets pledged in favor of other parties, with the other party

having the right to dispose of it (by selling or re-pledging). These assets continue to be

evaluated according to the accounting policies used to evaluate each asset according to

its original classification.

Deferred tax balance is reviewed at the consolidated financial statements date and

written down when it is not probable to utilize tax assets partially or fully.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing

differences between the value of assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial

statements and the value based on which taxable profit is calculated. Deferred tax is

calculated using the liability method in the statement of financial position, and deferred

tax is accounted for in accordance with tax rates expected to be applied to settle the tax

liability or realize deferred tax assets.
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Assets seized by the Group are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial

position within the “other assets" item at the lower of the value reverted to the Group

and the fair value and are revaluated at the consolidated financial statements date at

fair value separately. Any impairment is recorded as a loss in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and the increase is not recognized as revenue. Subsequent

increase is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that

impairment value does not exceed the previously recorded value.

The required provisions against real estate acquired is made at the rate of (5%) of the

total book values of these properties (regardless of the period of violation) as of the

year 2022, so that the required percentage of (50%) of these properties are reached by

the end of the year 2030, According to the Central Bank’s Circular No. 10/1/16239 dated

10 October 2022, the calculation of the gradual provision against seized assets was

stopped , provided that the allocations allocated against expropriated real estate in

violations of the provisions pf the banking laws, and that the allocations allocates

against any of the infringing properties that are disposed of.



2-23 Repurchase or sale contracts

-

-

2-24 Property and equipment

-

٪

Buildings 2 - 2.5

Equipment, devices and furniture 10 - 25

Transport 14 - 20

Computers 20 - 33

Decorations 17 - 25

-

-
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Sold assets, which are simultaneously committed to be repurchased at a future date,

because the Group continues to control those assets and because any risks or benefits

accrue to the Group as they occur, continue to be recognized in the consolidated

financial statements. They continue to be evaluated according to the accounting policies

used. (In the event that the buyer has the right to dispose of these assets (sale or re-

pledging), they must be reclassified as pledged financial assets). The amounts

corresponding to the amounts received for these contracts are included in the liabilities

in the borrowed funds line item, and the difference between the sale and repurchase

price is recognized as interest expense to be accrued over the life of the contract using

the effective interest method.

As for the assets purchased with the simultaneous commitment to resell them on a

specific future date, they are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements,

due to the lack of control over these assets and because any risks or benefits that are

not assigned to the Group if they occur, and the amounts paid related to these

contracts, are included in deposits at Group and other financial institutions or within

credit facilities, as the case may be. The difference between the purchase price and the

resale price is treated as interest income due over the contract period using the

effective interest method.

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less the accumulated depreciation and any

impairment. Property and equipment are depreciated (excluding) lands), when they are

ready for use at the straight-line method over their expected useful lives using the

following annual percentages:

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and if

the expectations of the useful lives differ from the estimates made previously, then the

change in the estimate for subsequent years is recognized as a change in the estimates.

Property and equipment are derecognized at disposal or when there are no expected

future benefits from their use or disposal.



2-25 Intangible assets

Goodwill

-

-

-

Other intangible assets

-

-

-

-

-

Any indications for the impairment of intangible assets are reviewed at the date of the

financial statements. The estimate of the useful lives of those assets is reviewed and

any adjustments are made for subsequent periods.

Computer software and systems: these are amortized using the straight-line method

over a period not exceeding 5 years from the date of purchase.
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Goodwill is recorded at cost which represents the increase in the acquisition or

purchase cost of an investment over the fair value of the company’s net assets at the

acquisition date. Goodwill resulting from investing in subsidiaries is recorded in a

separate item as intangible assets. Goodwill resulting from investing in associates

appears as part of the investment account in the associate and the cost of goodwill is

subsequently reduced by any impairment in the investment value.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of impairment testing.

Goodwill impairment is tested at the reporting date. Goodwill is written down if there

is an indication that it is impaired and if the estimated recoverable amount of cash-

generating unit(s) to which the goodwill belongs is lower than the carrying amount of

the cash-generating unit (s). Impairment is recognized in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Intangible assets that are acquired through the merger are stated at fair value at the

date of acquisition. The intangible assets that are obtained by a method other than the

merger are stated at cost.

Intangible assets are classified based on their estimated lifetime for a definite or

indefinite period. Intangible assets that have a definite lifetime are amortized during

this lifetime and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For

intangible assets that have a indefinite lifetime, their impairment is reviewed at the

date of the consolidated financial statements and any impairment is recognized in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets resulting from the Group's business are not capitalized and are

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same period.



2-26 Impairment of non-financial assets:

-

-

-

-

-

2-27 Foreign currencies:

-

-

-

•  

The carrying value of the Group's non-financial assets is reviewed at the end of each fiscal

year except for the deferred tax assets, to determine whether there is an indication of

impairment. In the event of an indication of impairment, the amount recoverable from

these assets will be estimated.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value -less costs to sale - and the

value in use.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount from those assets, the

impairment loss is recorded in those assets.

All impairment losses are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, the impairment loss is

reversed only if the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that

was determined after the depreciation or amortization has taken place if the impairment

loss is not recognized.
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For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position

of each company in the Group are expressed in the functional currency of the Bank, and the

presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements.

The separate financial statements of the Bank's subsidiaries are prepared, and the separate

financial statements of each of the Group’s companies are presented in the main functional

economic currency in which they operate. Transactions are recorded in currencies other

than the Bank's functional currency, according to the exchange rates prevailing on the

dates of those transactions. On the date of the statement of financial position, the financial

assets and liabilities are translated into foreign currencies at the exchange rates prevailing

on that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value and denominated in foreign

currencies are also translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date when the fair

value was determined. Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not reclassified.

Exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the

period in which they arise, except for:

Foreign currency exchange differences on transactions made in order to hedge foreign

currency risk.



•  

-

-

-

2-28 Leases contracts

-
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For the purpose of the presentation of the consolidated financial statements, assets and

liabilities of foreign operations of the Bank are transferred according to the exchange

rates prevailing at the date of the statement of financial position. Revenue is also

transferred according to the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange

rates change significantly during that period, in which case exchange rates are used on

the date of transactions. Emerging differences, if any, are recognized in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income and grouped into a separate component of equity.

When excluding foreign operations (i.e. eliminating the Bank’s entire share in foreign

operations, or that resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary within foreign

operations or partial disposal of its share in a joint arrangement or an associate of a

foreign nature in which the held share becomes a financial asset), all foreign currency

exchange differences accumulated in the separate item that represent the equity of that

operation attributable to the owners of the bank, are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of profit or  loss.

In addition, with regard to partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes foreign

operations and does not result in the Bank losing control of the subsidiary, its share of

the accumulated exchange differences is reversed to net comprehensive income at a rate

that is excluded and is not recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As

for all other partial liquidations (such as partial liquidation of associates or joint

ventures that do not result in the Bank losing significant influence or joint control), the

share of accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

Foreign currency exchange differences on monetary items required to/ from a foreign

operation that are not planned or unlikely to be settled in the near future (and therefore

these differences are part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which is

recognized initially in the calculation of other consolidated comprehensive income and

are reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon sale or

partial disposal of net investment.

The Bank has implemented IFRS (16) “Leases” that have replaced existing guidance on

leases as of 1 January 2019, including IAS (17) “Leases” and IFRIC (4) “Determining

whether an arrangement contains a lease”, SIC (15) “Operating lease -incentives “and SIC

(27) retrospectively from 1 January 2018“Evaluating the substance of transactions

involving the legal form of a lease contract”.



 A- Accounting policy applied:

-

B- The Group as a lessee

-

Short-term leases and leases for low-value assets:

-

C- The Group as a lessor

-

-

-

2-29 Cash and cash equivalents:

-
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On the date of signing the contract, or on the date of the revaluation of the contract

that contains the lease elements, the Group distributes the entire contract value to the 

contract components in a proportional manner consistent with the value. It is to be

noted that the Group has decided for leases that include land and building to treat the

components of the contract as one item.

The Group determines whether the contract is a lease or includes lease. A contract is

considered a lease or includes a lease if it includes transferring control of a specific

asset for a specific period in exchange for a consideration according to the definition

of a lease in the standard.

The Group chose not to recognize the right of use assets and lease obligations for

short-term leases for items with a 12-month lease term or less and the low-value

leases. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these contracts as

operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group is lessor, at the start of the lease, it determines whether each lease is

a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group performs a comprehensive evaluation to

demonstrate whether the lease largely transfers all risks and benefits associated with

ownership of this asset. If this is the case, the lease is a finance lease; if not, it is an

operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Bank takes into account certain

indicators such as whether the lease is the greater part of the economic life of the

asset.

The Group applies the requirements of de-recognition and impairment in IFRS 9 for

net investment in the lease. The Bank performs a periodic review of the expected non-

guaranteed residual value that was used to calculate the total investment amount in

the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash balances that mature within three

months. They include cash balances at Central banks and balances at banks and

financial institutions, less deposits at banks and financial institutions that mature

within three months, as well as restricted balances.



2-30 Earnings per share (EPS):

-

(3) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

-

-

-

Impairment of seized properties:

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated for ordinary shares. Basic EPS

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the Group’s shareholders

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the profit or loss for the year, which is

attributable to the Group’s shareholders and the weighted average of ordinary

shares, so that it shows the effect on the share’s profit on all the ordinary shares

traded during the year and its return is likely to decrease.
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The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of

accounting policies require the Group's management to make estimates and

judgements that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of

contingent liabilities. These estimates and judgments generally affect the

revenues, expenses, provisions and ECLs, as well as the changes in fair value that

appears in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within

shareholders’ equity. Specifically, the Group’s management is required to issue

critical judgements and assumptions to estimate the amounts of future cash flows

and their timings. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions and

several factors involving varying degrees of estimations and uncertainty.

Therefore, actual results may differ from the estimates as a result of changes in

conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The

impact of change in estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is

revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group's management believes that its estimates in the consolidated

financial statements are reasonable and detailed as follows:

Impairment of seized properties is recognized based on recent property valuation

approved by credited valuators for the purposes of calculating the impairment. The

impairment is reviewed periodically.

3-1



Useful lives of tangible assets and intangible assets:

3-3 Income tax:

3-4 Lawsuits provision:

3-5 Provision for end of service benefits:

3-6 Assets and liabilities that are stated at cost:

3-7 Provision for expected credit loss:

The Group's management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to

estimate future cash flows amounts and timings and estimate the risks of a

significant increase in credit risk for financial assets after initial recognition and

future measurement information for expected credit losses. The most significant

policies and estimates used by the Group’s management are detailed in Note (41).
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3-2

Management reassessed the useful lives of tangible assets and intangible assets

periodically for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and amortization

based on the overall condition of those assets and estimates of expected useful lives

in the future useful lives. Impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year.

The financial year is charged with its own income tax expense in accordance with

the laws and regulations, and accounting standards. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities and required tax provision are accounted for.

A provision is made for any potential legal obligations based on the legal study

prepared by the Group’s legal advisor that identifies the potential risks that may

occur in the future. Such study is reviewed periodically.

The provision for end-of-service benefits that represents the Group’s obligations to

employees is calculated and computed according to the Group’s internal regulations.

Management reviews, on a regular basis, the assets and liabilities that are stated at

cost to estimate impairments, if any. Impairment losses are recognized in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.



3-8 Business model assessment:

3-9 Significant increase in credit risk:

3-10 Establishing groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics:

ECLs are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime

ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a

significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has

significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative

reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. Estimates used by the Bank’s

management, which are related to the significant change in credit risk that led to a

change in classification within the three stages (1, 2, and 3) are detailed in Note (41).

When the expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, the financial

instruments are grouped based on common risk characteristics (such as the type of

instrument, the degree of credit risk, the type of collateral, the initial recognition date,

the remaining period of maturity date, the industry, the borrower's geographic location,

etc.). The Group monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk characteristics on an

ongoing basis to assess whether they continue to be similar. This is required in order to

ensure that should credit risk characteristics change there is appropriate re-segmentation

of the assets. This may result in new portfolios being created or assets moving to an

existing portfolio that better reflects the similar credit risk characteristics of that group

of assets.

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and

the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects

how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business

objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence, including

how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the

risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the

managers of the assets are compensated. The Bank monitors financial assets measured at

amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized

prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the

reasons are consistent with the objective of the business held. Monitoring is part of the

Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining

financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether

there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the

classification of those assets.
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3-11 Re-segmentation of portfolios and movement between portfolios:

3-12 Models and assumptions used:

A- Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

-

-

-
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Re-segmentation of portfolios and movement between portfolios is more common

when there is a significant increase in credit risk (or when that significant

increase reverses) and so assets move from 12- month to lifetime ECL, or vice

versa, but it can also occur within portfolios that continue to be measured on

the same basis of 12-month or lifetime ECL but the amount of ECL changes

because the credit risk of the portfolios differ.

The Group classifies financial instruments or components of financial assets upon

initial recognition, either as a financial asset, financial liability, or an equity

instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreements and

the definition of the instrument. Reclassification of a financial instrument in the 

The Group determines the classification upon initial recognition as well as a

reassessment of that determination, if possible and appropriate, at the date of

each consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group uses various models and assumptions in measuring fair value of

financial assets as well as in estimating ECL, as outlined in Note (41). Judgement

is applied in identifying the most appropriate model for each type of asset, as well

as for determining the assumptions used in these models, including assumptions

that relate to key drivers of credit risk.

When measuring financial assets and liabilities, some of the Group's assets and

liabilities are remeasured at fair value for the purposes of preparing financial

reports. When estimating the fair value of any of the assets or liabilities, the

Group uses the observable available market data. In the absence of Level 1 inputs,

the Group performs the assessments using professionally qualified independent

evaluators. The Group works in close cooperation with qualified external

evaluators to develop appropriate valuation techniques and data on the fair value

estimation model.



B- Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

-

3-13 Options of extension and termination of leases

3-14 Determination of lease term

3-15 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
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Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases. These

conditions are used to increase operational flexibility in terms of contract

management. Most of the extension and termination options held are renewable

by both the Group and the lessor.

In the event that it is not possible to obtain from the active markets the fair

values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the consolidated

statement of financial position, those fair values are determined using a set of

valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The data

entered for these models is obtained from the market data, if possible. In the

absence of such market data, fair values are determined by judgment. These

provisions include considerations of liquidity and data entered for the models,

such as volatility of derivatives, longer-term discount ratios, prepayment ratios

and default ratios on securities backed by the assets. Management believes that

the valuation techniques used were appropriate to determine the fair value of

the financial instruments.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and

circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option,

or not exercise a termination option. The extension options (or periods after the

termination options) are included only in the term of the lease if the lease is

reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The evaluation is

reviewed in the event of a significant event or significant change in the

circumstances that affect this evaluation and that are under the control of the

lessee.

The following are key estimations that the management has used in the process

of applying the of the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial

statements:



-

•

•

•

•

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios

for each type of types product/ MARKET and determining the forward-looking

information relevant to each scenario:

When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-

looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of

different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

When estimating the fair value of assets or liabilities, the Group uses the

observable available market data. In the absence of Level 1 inputs, the Group

performs the assessments using appropriate valuation models to determine the

fair value of financial instruments.
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Discounting lease payments

Lease payments are discounted using the Group's additional borrowing rate

("IBR"). Management applied provisions and estimates to determine the

additional borrowing rate at the start of the lease.

Probability of default (PD)

PD is a key entry point in the measurement of expected credit loss. PD is an

estimate of the probability of default, over a certain period of time, which

includes the computation of historical data, assumptions and projections related

to future conditions.

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference

between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to

receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit

enhancements.

Measurement and assessment procedures of fair value



(4)  Cash and Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash on hand

Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan:

Term and notice deposits

Certificate of deposit

Total

-

-

-

(5) Balances at Banks and Financial Institutions

The details of this item are as follows:

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

JD JD JD JD JD JD

349,359           1,122,178        11,850,356     25,479,530    12,199,715      26,601,708    

5,000,000       10,000,000   29,007,159    37,056,365    34,007,159    47,056,365    

(77)                   (12)                 (741)               (1,017)             (818)               (1,029)            

Total 5,349,282       11,122,166     40,856,774   62,534,878   46,206,056   73,657,044   

-

- There are no restricted balances as on December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

46,047,555                                

3,000,000                                 
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60,837,382                                

20,500,000                               

137,598,457                              84,081,624                               

Current and demand accounts and cash reserve 

There are no restricted balances except for the statutory cash reserve which amounted to 60,002,897 as of December 31, 2023, and 44,861,860

as of December 31, 2022.

40,900,000                               19,400,000                                

Current and matures at call accounts

There are no amounts matured during a period of more than 3 months as of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022.

December 31, 2023

JD

December 31, 2022

JD

Balances at banks and financial institutions, with no interest amounted to JD 12,258,546 as of December 31, 2023, compared to JD 26,608,622 as

of December 31, 2022.

Local banks and financial 

 institutions 

Foreign banks and financial 

institutio Total

December 31, December 31, December 31,

The Bank has not calculated and recorded the provision for expected credit losses on the balances with the Central Bank of Jordan, in accordance

with the Central Bank of Jordan's instructions (13/2018) regarding the implementation of IFRS (9).

15,361,075                                 

Expected credit losses

Deposits maturing within 3 months or less

15,634,069                                 



Movement on the balances of cash at banks and financial institutions:

Stage 1 

Individual

Stage 2 

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Total balance as at the beginning of the year 73,658,073       -                   -                   73,658,073       

New balances during the year 37,387,714       -                   -                   37,387,714       

Repaid/ derecognized balances (64,838,913)     -                   -                   (64,838,913)     

Transferred to Stage 1 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Transferred to stage 2 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Transferred to stage 3 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Changes resulting from amendments -                   -                   -                   -                   

Written off balances -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Balance as at the end of the year 46,206,874     -                   -                   46,206,874     

Stage 1 

Individual

Stage 2 

Individual
Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Total balance as at the beginning of the year 64,351,315        -                   -                   64,351,315        
New balances during the year 55,460,832       -                   -                   55,460,832       
Repaid/ derecognized balances (46,154,074)     -                   -                   (46,154,074)     
Transferred to Stage 1 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Transferred to stage 2 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Transferred to stage 3 -                   -                   -                   -                   

Changes resulting from amendments -                   -                   -                   -                   

Written off balances -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Balance as at the end of the year 73,658,073      -                   -                   73,658,073      
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2023

2022

Amendments resulting from changes in 

currency exchange

Amendments resulting from changes in 

currency exchange



Disclosure of the movement of provision for expected credit loss:

2023
Stage 1 

Individual

Stage 2 

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

1,029             -                 -                 1,029             

818                -                 -                 818                
(1,029)            -                 -                 (1,029)            

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments -                 -                 -                 -                 

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

Total Balance as at the end of the year 818                -                -                818                

Stage 1 

Individual

Stage 2 

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

37                  -                 -                 37                  

1,029             -                 -                 1,029             
(37)                 -                 -                 (37)                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments -                 -                 -                 -                 

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 -                 -                 

Total Balance as at the end of the year 1,029             -                -                1,029             

Transferred to Stage 3

Effect on the provision -as at the end of the year- due to changes 

in the classification between the three stages during the year
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Transferred to Stage 1

Transferred to Stage 2

Transferred to Stage 3

Effect on the provision -as at the end of the year- due to changes 

in the classification between the three stages during the year

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized balances

Transferred to Stage 1

Transferred to Stage 2

Amendments resulting from changes in currency exchange

Balance at beginning of the year

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year

Balance at beginning of the year

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized balances

2022

Amendments resulting from changes in currency exchange



(6) Deposits at Banks And Financial Institutions

The details of this item are as follows:

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

JD JD JD JD JD JD

-                  3,545,000       7,090,000       -                  7,090,000       3,545,000       

-                  (68)                  (1,634)              -                  (1,634)              (68)                  

Total -                  3,544,932       7,088,366      -                  7,088,366      3,544,932       

- There are no restricted deposits as December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022.

Movement on deposits at banks and financial institutions:

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,545,000       -                  -                  3,545,000       

New balances during the year 7,090,000       -                  -                  7,090,000       

Repaid/ derecognized balances (3,545,000)      -                  -                  (3,545,000)      

Transferred to Stage 1 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to Stage 2 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to Stage 3 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Changes resulting from adjustments -                  -                  -                  -                  

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Balance as at the end of the year 7,090,000      -                  -                  7,090,000      

Local banks and financial 

institutions

Foreign banks and financial 

institutions Total

Amendments resulting from changes in 

currency exchange
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2023

December 31, December 31, December 31,

Less: expected credit 

loss provision

Deposits matures within 

more than 3 months



Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual
Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance as at the beginning of the year -                  -                 -                  -                 

New balances during the year 3,545,000       -                 -                  3,545,000      

Repaid/ derecognized balances -                  -                 -                  -                 

Transferred to Stage 1 -                  -                 -                  -                 

Transferred to Stage 2 -                  -                 -                  -                 

Transferred to Stage 3 -                  -                 -                  -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments -                  -                 -                  -                 

Written off balances -                  -                 -                  -                 

Amendments resulting from changes in currency exchange -                  -                 -                  -                 

Total Balance as at the end of the year 3,545,000       -                 -                  3,545,000     

Movement on the expected credit loss provision: 

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual
Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 68                    -                 -                  68                  

1,634               -                 -                  1,634              

(68)                  -                 -                  (68)                 

-                  -                 -                  -                 

-                  -                 -                  -                 

-                  -                 -                  -                 

-                  -                 -                  -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments -                  -                 -                  -                 

Written off balances -                  -                 -                  -                 

Amendments resulting from changes in currency exchange -                  -                 -                  -                 

Total balance as at the end of the period 1,634               -                 -                  1,634             

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Effect on the provision - at the end of the period – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages 

during the year
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2022

2023

Expected credit loss on new balances during the Year

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized 

balances

Transferred to stage 1



Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year -          -          -          -          

68           -          -          68           

-          -          -          -          

-          -          -          -          

-          -          -          -          

-          -          -          -          

-          -          -          

-          

Changes resulting from adjustments -          -          -          -          

Written off balances -          -          -          -          

-          -          -          -          

Total balance as at the end of the period 68           -          -          68           

(7) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Statement of Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

Corporate shares 

Investments funds 

Total

(8) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

Quoted Shares

Transferred to stage 2

2022

Expected credit loss on new balances during 

the Year

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ 

derecognized balances

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 3

Effect on the provision - at the end of the 

period – due to changes in the classification 

between the three stages during the year

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

JD JD

Amendments resulting from changes in 

currency exchange
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38,456,500                   37,290,529                   

1                                    

2,799                            1                                   

1                                   

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

JD JD

Unquoted Shares*

Total

2,798                            

24,985,395                   24,504,093                   

63,441,895                  61,794,622                  

-                               



*

-

-

(9) Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The details of this item are as follows:

Quoted financial assets:

Treasury bills

Corporate bonds and debentures

Unquoted financial assets:

Treasury bills

Corporate bonds and debentures

Expected credit loss 

Total financial assets at amortized cost

Analysis of bonds and treasury bills

Fixed-rate

Floating rate

-

The fair value of the unlisted shares was determined according to the third level of the fair

value hierarchy, using that net book value method (net assets value) which is considered the

best available instrument for measuring the fair value of these investments.

The realized losses from the sale of assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

amounted to JD 322,759 for the year ended December 31, 2023, against gain in an amount of

JD 262,448 for the year ended December 31, 2022 that was directly recorded in the retained

earnings in consolidated statement of owner equity. 

Cash dividends from the above financial assets amounted to JD 2,320,341 for the year ended

December 31, 2023 against JD 1,145,252 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

(506,251)             

3,466,794           

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

3,545,000           

-                      

-                      

9,983,387           

7,798,960           4,112,140            

10,375,007         

364,134,724        196,551,141         

Total

Government bonds and bonds guaranteed 

by the government

Government bonds and bonds guaranteed 

by the government

Total

34,633,707         

369,724,473       231,184,848       
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The bank didn’t calculate or record expected credit loss provision on government bills and

treasury bonds in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (13/2018)

related to the application of International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9).

5,589,749           

JD JD

41,394,960        51,174,934         

369,724,473       

328,835,764      180,017,207       

231,184,848       

43,596,000         33,596,000         

(7,293)                 

318,460,757        166,488,820       



Movement on Financial Assets at Amortized Cost:

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 227,096,141        -                   4,096,000           231,192,141        

New investments during the year 238,677,582       -                   -                      238,677,582       
(99,638,999)       -                   -                      (99,638,999)       

Change in fair value -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 1 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 2 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 3 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Changes resulting from adjustments -                      -                   -                      -                     

Written off balances -                      -                   -                      -                     

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                      -                   -                      -                     

Balance at the end of the Year 366,134,724       -                   4,096,000          370,230,724      

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 182,987,339       -                   5,120,000           188,107,339       

The impact of selling a subsidiary (3,500,000)         -                   -                      (3,500,000)        

New investments during the year 84,408,927         -                   -                      84,408,927        
(36,800,125)        -                   (1,024,000)          (37,824,125)        

Change in fair value -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 1 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 2 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Transferred to stage 3 -                      -                   -                      -                     

Changes resulting from adjustments -                      -                   -                      -                     

Written off balances -                      -                   -                      -                     

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                      -                   -                      -                     

Balance at the end of the Year 227,096,141       -                   4,096,000          231,192,141       

2023

Matured/derecognized investments during the year
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2022

Matured/derecognized investments during the year



Movement on expected credit loss: 

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

7,293          -             -             7,293          

-             -             500,000     500,000     
(26)             -             -             (26)             

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             
-             

Changes resulting from adjustments (1,016)         -             -             (1,016)         

Written off balances -             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

Balance at the end of the year 6,251         -             500,000    506,251     

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

36,821        -             680,000     716,821      

The impact of selling a subsidiary (11,926)       -             -             (11,926)       

7,267          -             -             7,267          
(23,932)      -             (680,000)   (703,932)    

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

-             -             -             -             

Changes resulting from adjustments (937)           -             -             (937)           

Written off balances -             -             -             -             

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -             -             -             -             

Balance at the end of the year 7,293         -             -             7,293         

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Impact on the provision - at the end of the period – due to changes in the 

classification between the three stages during the year

76

Reversal from impairment loss on matured/ derecognized investments

2023

2022

Impairment loss on new investments

Balance at beginning of the year

Impairment loss on new investments

Reversal from impairment loss on matured/ derecognized investments

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3
Impact on the provision - at the end of the Year – due to changes in the 

classification between the three stages during the year

Balance at beginning of the year

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates 



(10) Direct Credit Facilities at Amortized Cost – Net

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

JD JD

Individuals (Retail)

Overdraft 2,513,889            1,625,935            

Loans and discounted bills * 315,000,217        261,298,820       

Credit cards 99,339,549         82,582,084         

Real estate loans 126,693,272        130,294,396       

Corporates

Large Corporates

Overdraft 71,563,541          65,383,994         

Loans and discounted bills * 235,522,461        234,310,174        

SMEs

Overdraft 7,526,367            7,321,781            

Loans and discounted bills * 44,382,204         43,702,109         

Government and public sector 245,451,960       93,599,640         

Total 1,147,993,460    920,118,933       

Less:

Expected credit loss provision 62,752,501          51,622,891          

Interest in suspense ** 24,387,561          18,876,386         

Net direct credit facilities 1,060,853,398   849,619,656      

*

**

The balance is presented in net, after deducting the commissions and interest

received in advance which amounted to JD 80,897,715 as of 31 December 2023,

against JD 55,472,581 as of 31 December 2022.
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interest in suspense included an amount of JD 2,160,182 as of December 31, 2023,

against JD 3,983,377 as of December 31, 2022, which represents interests in

suspense  against some performing accounts classified within stage 2 and stage 3.



-

-

-

-

- The value of non-performing loans transferred off the consolidated balance

sheet amounted to JD 61,374,980 as of 31 December 2023, and as of 31 December

2022.

Credit facilities granted to the Jordanian Government and/or with its guarantee

amounted to JD 219,275,406 which is equivalent to 21.4% of the total direct

credit facilities at amortized cost as of 31 December 2023 against JD 60,980,390

which is equivalent to 6.6% of total direct credit facilities at amortized cost as

of 31 December 2022.

Non-performing credit facilities according to the instructions of the Central

Bank of Jordan amounted to JD 90,858,770 which is equivalent to 7.9% of the

total direct credit facilities balance as of 31 December 2023, against JD

59,292,495 which is equivalent to 6.4% of the total direct credit facilities

balance as of 31 December 2022. 

Non-performing credit facilities according to the instructions of the Central

Bank of Jordan after deducting interest in suspense amounted to JD 68,631,391

which is equivalent to 6.1% of the total direct credit facilities balance after

deducting interest in suspense as of 31 December 2023 against JD 44,399,486

which is equivalent to 4.9% of the direct credit facilities balance after deducting

interest in suspense as of 31 December 2022. 
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Non-performing loans which amounted to zero JD during the year 2023 were

transferred off the consolidated balance sheet against 892,493 JD during the

year 2022. 



A - Provision for expected credit loss on direct credit facilities – collective bases

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses on direct credit facilities was as follows:

Retail

Real estate 

Loans Corporate SMEs Total

JD JD JD JD JD

2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,729,466        4,454,694         13,248,467        14,190,264        51,622,891        

5,624,981          1,518,381           6,407,023         (2,267,190)        11,283,195         

(110,735)            (8,476)               (3,357)               (31,017)              (153,585)            

Balance at the end of the year 25,243,712       5,964,599        19,652,133       11,892,057       62,752,501       

2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 14,685,741        2,716,848          15,332,634        7,659,848         40,395,071        

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 1,106,575          -                    -                    3,766,468         4,873,043         

The impact of selling a subsidiary (255,854)           -                    -                    (119)                   (255,973)           

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary -                    -                    (22)                    (707)                  (729)                  

4,365,427          2,106,596          (2,079,074)        3,333,990         7,726,939          

(172,423)            (368,750)           (5,071)               (569,216)           (1,115,460)         

Balance at the end of the year 19,729,466       4,454,694        13,248,467       14,190,264       51,622,891       

B - Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 732,850,366     -                    109,509,781      -                    77,758,786        920,118,933      

379,544,919      -                    14,629,608       -                    6,964,543         401,139,070      

(103,008,722)    
-                    

(16,014,932)       
-                    

(7,149,807)        (126,173,461)     

Transferred to stage 1 36,272,880       -                    (33,889,445)      -                    (2,383,435)        -                    

Transferred to stage 2 (56,372,532)      -                    58,414,012        -                    (2,041,480)        -                    

Transferred to stage 3 (12,343,401)       -                    (10,529,545)      -                    22,872,946       -                    

Changes due to adjustments (45,052,071)      -                    (2,558,767)        -                    1,054,309          (46,556,529)      

Written off balances -                    -                    -                    -                    (534,553)           (534,553)           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total balance at the end of the year 931,891,439     -                   119,560,712      -                   96,541,309       1,147,993,460  
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Companies

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Deducted from revenue during the 
Provision utilized during the period 

(written off debts)

Deducted from (reversed to) revenue 

during the year
Provision utilized during the period 

(written off debts)

Repaid/ derecognized balances during 

the year

New balances during the 

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates



2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 644,682,736   -               122,320,781    -               76,211,605      843,215,122    

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 7,053,922       -               936,845          -               6,849,445       14,840,212     

The impact of selling a subsidiary (8,585,741)      -               (85,611)           -               (660,820)        (9,332,172)      

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (830,922)        -               -                  -               -                  (830,922)        

New balances during the year/ additions 228,762,199   -               8,713,955        -               5,932,826       243,408,980  

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (103,798,297)  -               (21,896,137)    -               (7,973,241)      (133,667,675)  

Transferred to stage 1 41,459,296     -               (40,757,727)    -               (701,569)         -                  

Transferred to stage 2 (37,841,466)    -               51,790,390     -               (13,948,924)    -                  

Transferred to stage 3 (7,370,290)     -               (7,192,445)      -               14,562,735      -                  

Changes from adjustments (30,681,071)    -               (4,320,270)     -               (637,272)         (35,638,613)    

Written off balances -                  -               -                  -               (1,875,999)      (1,875,999)      

-                  -               -                  -               -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the year 732,850,366  -              109,509,781   -               77,758,786     920,118,933   

Cـ - Movement on expected credit loss provision for credit facilities per sector:

Retail

Real estate 

loans Corporate SMEs

Government and 

public sector Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,729,466     4,454,694    13,248,467     14,190,264   -                  51,622,891      

9,496,015       2,168,594    5,222,547       3,410,113      -                  20,297,269     

(3,873,451)      (693,244)      (1,795,470)      (2,940,881)   -                  (9,303,046)     

Transferred to stage 1 664,249          47,042         233,826          792,093        -                  1,737,210        

Transferred to stage 2 405,263          (22,213)        (236,163)         345,558        -                  492,445          

Transferred to stage 3 (1,069,512)      (24,829)       2,337              (1,137,651)     -                  (2,229,655)      

-                  -               -                  -               -                  -                  

Changes due to adjustments 2,417               43,031         2,979,946       (2,736,422)   -                  288,972          

Written off balances (110,735)          (8,476)          (3,357)             (31,017)         -                  (153,585)         

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                  -               -                  -               -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the period 25,243,712     5,964,599   19,652,133     11,892,057   -                 62,752,501     
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2023

Companies

Impact on the provision - at the end of the period – 

due to changes in the classification between the three 

stages during the period

Stage 1 Stage 2

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year 

/ additions
Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ 

derecognized balances during the year



2022

Retail

Real estate 

loans Corporate SMEs

Government 

and public 

sector Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at beginning of the year 14,685,741   2,716,848     15,332,634   7,659,848    -               40,395,071   

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 1,106,575      -               -               3,766,468     -               4,873,043     

The impact of selling a subsidiary (255,854)      -               -               (119)              -               (255,973)       

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary -               -               (22)                (707)              -               (729)              

7,180,149     2,904,482    1,753,176      2,552,840     -               14,390,647   

(2,097,257)   (590,992)      (1,355,101)     (2,543,097)   -               (6,586,447)   

Transferred to stage 1 399,653        76,133           470,708       100,752        -               1,047,246     

Transferred to stage 2 (177,683)       71,007          (575,782)       (19,674)         -               (702,132)       

Transferred to stage 3 (221,970)       (147,140)       105,074        (81,078)        -               (345,114)       

-               -               -               -               -               -               

Changes from adjustments (717,465)       (206,894)      (2,477,149)    3,324,247     -               (77,261)         

Written off balances (172,423)       (368,750)      (5,071)           (569,216)       -               (1,115,460)    

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total balance at the end of the year 19,729,466  4,454,694    13,248,467  14,190,264  -               51,622,891   

D -Interest in suspense

The following is the movement on interest in suspense:

Retail Real estate Corporate SMEs Total

2023 JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,924,316     2,420,654     8,056,007    3,475,409     18,876,386   

Interest in suspense during the year 2,076,762     674,772        3,447,860    1,172,261      7,371,655      

Interest transferred to revenues (730,746)      (169,447)       (95,684)        (483,635)      (1,479,512)    

Written off Interest in suspense* (234,869)      (18,555)         (21,980)        (105,564)       (380,968)      

Total balance at the end of the year 6,035,463    2,907,424    11,386,203   4,058,471    24,387,561  

2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,852,831     1,771,634      5,646,871     2,913,438     14,184,774   

Impact of acquiring a subsidiary 215,181         -               -               702,681        917,862        

Impact of selling a subsidiary (144,433)       -               (22,129)         -               (166,562)       

Interest in suspense during the year 1,425,609     790,851        2,595,513      598,409       5,410,382     

Interest transferred to revenue (201,432)       (73,115)          (164,237)       (270,747)      (709,531)       

Written off Interest in suspense* (223,440)      (68,716)         (11)                (468,372)      (760,539)      

Total balance at the end of the year 4,924,316    2,420,654    8,056,007    3,475,409    18,876,386  

*
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Impact on the provision - at the end of the period – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages 

Companies

Companies

According to the decisions of the Bank’s Board of Directors and the subsidiaries Executive Managements, non-performing credit facilities

with their related interest, against which provisions and interest in suspense were booked, were written off by an amount of JD 534,553

during the year ended 31 December 2023, against JD 1,875,999 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / 

Additions 



E- Gross facilities distribution  according to the Bank's internal credit rating categories:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 500,930,503                -               35,386,511   -             -               536,317,014     353,027,241  

( to 7 ـ6) 44,986,842                  -               32,602,048  -             2,425,477    80,014,367      122,927,135  

( to 10 ـ8) -                               -               -               -             44,262,492  44,262,492      21,844,250   

Unclassified 385,974,094                -               51,572,153    -             49,853,340  487,399,587    422,320,307 

Total 931,891,439                -               119,560,712 -             96,541,309 1,147,993,460 920,118,933 

-                                     -                   -                  -                        -                    

F- The total movement on the expected credit loss provision per stage: 

2023

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 1

Collective

Stage 2

Individual

Stage 2

Collective Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

2,529,397     -               4,377,530   -               44,715,964       51,622,891    

7,489,668    -               4,422,528   -               8,385,073        20,297,269   

(326,413)      
-               

(1,016,415)  
-               

(7,960,218)       (9,303,046)   

2,070,598    -               (624,265)    -               (1,446,333)        -                

(331,326)       -               1,570,617    -               (1,239,291)        -                

(103,288)      -               (352,133)     -               455,421            -                

(8,000,061)  -               (1,098,028) -               9,098,089        -                

235,965        -               193,206      -               (140,199)           288,972        

-               -               -             -               (153,585)           (153,585)        

-               -               -             -               -                   -                

3,564,540   -               7,473,040  -              51,714,921       62,752,501   

-                   -                 -                        -                    

Transferred to stage 3

Impact on the provision - at the end of the 

year – due to changes in the classification 

between the three stages
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Changes due to adjustments

Written off balances

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates

Total balance at the end of the year

Stage 3

Total 

2023

Total 

2022

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit loss on new balances during the 

year / Additions

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ 

derecognized balances during the year

Stage 1 Stage 2



2022
Stage 1

Individual

Stage 1

Collective

Stage 2

Individual

Stage 2

Collective Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,885,428       -                  2,812,451        -                  34,697,192      40,395,071        

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 351,913           -                  174,657           -                  4,346,473       4,873,043         

The impact of selling a subsidiary (215)                 -                  (1,346)             -                  (254,412)         (255,973)           

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (729)                -                  -                  -                  -                  (729)                  

4,608,278       -                  5,183,167        -                  4,599,202       14,390,647        

(430,511)          
-                  

(1,381,094)      
-                  

(4,774,842)      (6,586,447)        

Transferred to stage 1 1,357,164        -                  (1,003,638)      -                  (353,526)         -                    

Transferred to stage 2 (213,820)         -                  694,705          -                  (480,885)        -                    

Transferred to stage 3 (96,099)           -                  (393,199)         -                  489,298          -                    

(5,198,008)      -                  (1,525,257)       -                  6,723,265        -                    

Changes resulting from adjustments (734,004)         -                  (182,916)          -                  839,659          (77,261)              

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  (1,115,460)       (1,115,460)         

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    

Total balance at the end of the year 2,529,397       -                  4,377,530       -                  44,715,964     51,622,891       

G - 1 Impairment loss of credit facilities granted to individuals:

 Distribution of total facilities according to the Bank's internal credit classification categories:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 7,023,705       -                  2,546,715        -                  -                  9,570,420       11,942,889        

( to 7 ـ6) 3,225,146        -                  781,042           -                  -                  4,006,188       4,416,790          

( to 10 ـ8) -                  -                  -                  -                  328,740          328,740          423,734             

Unclassified 327,363,850   -                  39,888,197     -                  35,696,260     402,948,307   328,723,426      

Total 337,612,701   -                  43,215,954     -                  36,025,000    416,853,655   345,506,839    
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Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates 

Expected credit loss on new balances during 

the year / Additions

Total

2023

Total

2022
Stage 1

Impact on the provision - at the end of the 

period – due to changes in the classification 

between the three stages

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ 

derecognized balances during the year

Stage 2
Stage 3



Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan - individuals:

2023

Individual Collective Individual Collective Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 302,034,460    -                   17,744,100       -                   25,728,279       345,506,839     

New balances during the period/additions 128,210,501      -                   6,056,831         -                   2,480,750        136,748,082     

(36,343,479)     -                   (2,561,144)        -                   (2,907,389)       (41,812,012)      

Transferred to stage 1 5,309,332         -                   (4,200,326)       -                   (1,109,006)       -                   

Transferred to stage 2 (30,089,681)     -                   31,257,627       -                   (1,167,946)        -                   

Transferred to stage 3 (9,367,223)       -                   (4,397,059)       -                   13,764,282       -                   

Changes due to adjustments (22,141,209)      -                   (684,075)          -                   (418,366)           (23,243,650)     

Written off balances -                   -                   -                   -                   (345,604)          (345,604)          

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total balance at the end of the year 337,612,701     -                   43,215,954      -                   36,025,000     416,853,655    

2022

Individual Collective Individual Collective

Total balance at the beginning of the year 252,058,204    -                   19,816,464       -                   19,286,385       291,161,053      

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 3,302,409        -                   526,734            -                   1,622,081         5,451,224         

The impact of selling a subsidiary (5,391,165)        -                   (85,611)             -                   (585,945)          (6,062,721)        

New balances during the year/ additions 103,012,239     -                   2,103,080         -                   1,075,684         106,191,003     

(31,818,406)      -                   (2,550,813)        -                   (2,278,344)       (36,647,563)     

Transferred to stage 1 9,929,432         -                   (9,397,935)       -                   (531,497)           -                   

Transferred to stage 2 (10,442,212)      -                   10,910,572       -                   (468,360)          -                   

Transferred to stage 3 (4,752,687)       -                   (3,518,153)        -                   8,270,840        -                   

Changes from adjustments (13,863,354)      -                   (60,238)            -                   (266,702)          (14,190,294)      

Written off balances -                   -                   -                   -                   (395,863)          (395,863)          

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total balance at the end of the year 302,034,460   -                   17,744,100       -                   25,728,279      345,506,839   
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the 

period

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the 

year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates

Total



Movement on expected credit loss provision - individuals:

2023

Individual Collective Individual Collective Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,839,247       -                 1,183,561        -                 16,706,658    19,729,466     

5,680,034      -                 2,001,655       -                 1,814,326       9,496,015      

(189,178)         -                 (460,328)        -                 (3,223,945)     (3,873,451)     

Transferred to stage 1 1,000,173       -                 (330,698)        -                 (669,475)        -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (255,277)        -                 1,013,790       -                 (758,513)         -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (91,705)          -                 (266,582)        -                 358,287         -                 

(6,022,049)    -                 (549,605)        -                 6,571,654       -                 

Changes due to adjustments 268,644         -                 (128,193)         -                 (138,034)        2,417              

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (110,735)         (110,735)         

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 2,229,889     -                 2,463,600     -                 20,550,223   25,243,712    

2022

Individual Collective Individual Collective Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the Year 1,970,016       -                 836,075         -                 11,879,650     14,685,741     

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 146,401          -                 50,790           -                 909,384         1,106,575       

The impact of selling a subsidiary (96)                 -                 (1,346)            -                 (254,412)        (255,854)        

3,339,692      -                 2,608,567      -                 1,231,890       7,180,149       

(221,602)        -                 (407,185)        -                 (1,468,470)     (2,097,257)     

Transferred to stage 1 591,734          -                 (355,001)        -                 (236,733)        -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (128,623)        -                 392,247          -                 (263,624)        -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (64,531)          -                 (216,264)        -                 280,795         -                 

(3,389,563)     -                 (1,636,214)      -                 5,025,777       -                 

Changes from adjustments (404,181)        -                 (88,108)          -                 (225,176)         (717,465)         

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (172,423)         (172,423)         

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 1,839,247      -                 1,183,561       -                 16,706,658   19,729,466    

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages 

during the year
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Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized 

balances during the year

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages 

during the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / 

additions

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / 

Additions 



G - 2  Impairment loss of credit facilities granted to real estate loans:

 Distribution of total facilities according to the Bank's internal credit classification categories:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 32,693,077      -                  8,650,254       -                  -                  41,343,331       41,944,549      

( to 7 ـ6) 8,669,337        -                  15,694,735      -                  -                  24,364,072     20,389,828     

( to 10 ـ8) -                  -                  -                  -                  3,520,714        3,520,714        1,249,934        

Unclassified 46,093,909     -                  7,657,355        -                  3,713,891         57,465,155      66,710,085      

Total 87,456,323     -                  32,002,344    -                  7,234,605       126,693,272   130,294,396   

Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan - real estate loans:

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 100,614,519    -                  25,118,382      -                  4,561,495        130,294,396    

New balances during the period/additions 18,667,548      -                  2,556,652        -                  256,638           21,480,838      

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (14,925,911)     -                  (1,573,221)       -                  (1,371,208)       (17,870,340)    

Transferred to stage 1 1,694,448        -                  (1,636,527)       -                  (57,921)            -                  

Transferred to stage 2 (9,988,782)      -                  9,988,782       -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to stage 3 (927,408)         -                  (2,544,974)      -                  3,472,382        -                  

Changes due to adjustments (7,678,091)      -                  93,250             -                  400,250          (7,184,591)       

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  (27,031)            (27,031)            

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the year 87,456,323     -                  32,002,344    -                  7,234,605       126,693,272   

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total

2022 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 111,594,159     -                  14,928,443      -                  16,586,544      143,109,146     

New balances during the period/additions 17,351,390       -                  379,074           -                  733,687           18,464,151       

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (17,680,381)     -                  (5,390,567)      -                  (650,328)         (23,721,276)     

Transferred to stage 1 4,863,357        -                  (4,803,844)      -                  (59,513)            -                  

Transferred to stage 2 (7,928,505)      -                  21,003,401      -                  (13,074,896)    -                  

Transferred to stage 3 (871,095)          -                  (591,579)          -                  1,462,674        -                  

Changes due to adjustments (6,714,406)      -                  (406,546)         -                  793                  (7,120,159)       

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  (437,466)         (437,466)         

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the year 100,614,519    -                  25,118,382      -                  4,561,495       130,294,396   
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 1 Stage 2

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates

Adjustments resulted from changes in 

exchange rates

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Total 

2023

Total 

2022



Movement on expected credit loss provision - real estate loans:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the Year 265,733          -                 2,191,822        -                 1,997,139        4,454,694      

412,677          -                 627,709          -                 1,128,208       2,168,594       

(36,468)          -                 (30,611)           -                 (626,165)         (693,244)        

Transferred to stage 1 69,536            -                 (21,489)           -                 (48,047)          -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (17,847)           -                 17,847            -                 -                 -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (4,647)            -                 (18,571)           -                 23,218            -                 

(415,098)        -                 (5,498)            -                 

420,596          

-                 

Changes due to adjustments (111,486)         -                 92,904            -                 61,613             43,031            

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (8,476)            (8,476)            

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 162,400         -                 2,854,113       -                 2,948,086     5,964,599      

2022

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at beginning of the year 448,830         -                 420,357          -                 1,847,661       2,716,848       

559,168          -                 183,648          -                 2,161,666       2,904,482      

(90,971)           -                 (296,559)        -                 (203,462)        (590,992)        

Transferred to stage 1 133,029          -                 (116,659)         -                 (16,370)           -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (35,238)           -                 208,260         -                 (173,022)         -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (21,658)           -                 (20,594)          -                 42,252            -                 

(554,352)         -                 1,847,285       -                 (1,292,933)      -                 

Changes from adjustments (173,075)         -                 (33,916)           -                 97                   (206,894)        

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (368,750)        (368,750)        

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 265,733          -                 2,191,822       -                 1,997,139       4,454,694      

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due 

to changes in the classification between the three 

stages during the year
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Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized 

balances during the year

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages 

during the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / 

additions

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year 

/ Additions 



G - 3 Impairment loss of credit facilities granted to large corporate:

 Distribution of total facilities according to the Bank's internal credit classification categories:

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3

Total

2023

Total 

2022

JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 198,555,045 22,829,452 -                                  221,384,497 197,060,148

( to 7 ـ6) 29,244,460 12,386,453 2,077,311 43,708,224 88,853,764

( to 10 ـ8) -                                       -                                  37,804,742 37,804,742 12,344,083

Unclassified 2,955,816 347,367 885,356 4,188,539 1,436,173

Total 230,755,321 35,563,272 40,767,409 307,086,002 299,694,168

Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan - large corporate::

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

2023 JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 209,559,590               60,282,639                 29,851,939                 299,694,168               

New balances during the period/additions 59,113,889                  3,849,275                   2,748,409                   65,711,573                  

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (41,395,724)                (10,452,093)               (1,052,860)                 (52,900,677)               

Transferred to stage 1 27,667,335                 (27,309,076)               (358,259)                     -                              

Transferred to stage 2 (13,413,742)                13,569,920                 (156,178)                     -                              

Transferred to stage 3 (1,767,444)                  (3,381,145)                  5,148,589                   -                              

Changes due to adjustments (9,008,583)                 (996,248)                    4,611,106                    (5,393,725)                  

Written off balances -                              -                              (25,337)                       (25,337)                       

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total balance at the end of the year 230,755,321               35,563,272                40,767,409                307,086,002             

2022

Total balance at the beginning of the year 187,549,679               80,194,772                 28,398,145                 296,142,596               

The impact of selling a subsidiary (626,034)                    -                              (74,875)                       (700,909)                    

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (435,512)                     -                              -                              (435,512)                     

New balances during the year/ additions 65,423,539                 5,022,639                   3,367,682                   73,813,860                 

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (42,123,063)                (12,103,206)                (895,456)                    (55,121,725)                 

Transferred to stage 1 24,104,264                 (24,104,264)               -                              -                              

Transferred to stage 2 (17,435,433)                17,744,328                 (308,895)                    -                              

Transferred to stage 3 (521,554)                     (2,213,107)                  2,734,661                   -                              

Changes from adjustments (6,376,296)                 (4,258,523)                  (3,364,241)                  (13,999,060)               

Written off balances -                              -                              (5,082)                        (5,082)                        

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total balance at the end of the year 209,559,590              60,282,639                29,851,939                299,694,168              
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Movement on expected credit loss provision - large corporate:

2023

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the Year 289,259                   484,297                   12,474,911               13,248,467              

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / additions 1,275,007                 1,674,515                 2,273,026                5,222,548                

(80,930)                   (177,039)                  (1,537,501)                (1,795,470)               

Transferred to stage 1 268,657                   (205,168)                  (63,489)                   -                           

Transferred to stage 2 (33,414)                    33,414                      -                           -                           

Transferred to stage 3 (1,417)                       (64,409)                   65,826                     -                           

(753,429)                  (126,184)                  879,613                    -                           

Changes due to adjustments 182,045                   328,066                   2,469,834                2,979,945                

Written off balances -                           -                           (3,357)                      (3,357)                      

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total balance at the end of the year 1,145,778                1,947,492                16,558,863             19,652,133              

2022

Stage 1

Individual

Stage 2

Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Balance at beginning of the year 224,752                   1,190,054                 13,917,828               15,332,634               

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (22)                           -                           -                           (22)                           

230,273                   1,599,440                (76,537)                    1,753,176                 

(46,668)                   (539,383)                  (769,050)                 (1,355,101)                

Transferred to stage 1 409,533                   (408,374)                 (1,159)                       -                           

Transferred to stage 2 (14,291)                     18,806                     (4,515)                      -                           

Transferred to stage 3 (716)                         (105,173)                   105,889                   -                           

(465,865)                  (1,167,444)               1,633,309                -                           

Changes due to adjustments (47,737)                    (103,629)                  (2,325,783)               (2,477,149)               

Written off balances -                           -                           (5,071)                      (5,071)                      

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total balance at the end of the year 289,259                  484,297                  12,474,911               13,248,467              
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Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized balances 

during the year

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized balances 

during the year

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / 

additions

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages during 

the year

Impact on the provision - at the end of the year – due to 

changes in the classification between the three stages during 

the year



G - 4 Impairment loss of credit facilities granted to SMEs companies:

 Distribution of total facilities according to the Bank's internal credit classification categories:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 17,206,716          -                 1,360,090       -                 -                 18,566,806     8,480,016      

( to 7 ـ6) 3,847,899           -                 3,739,818       -                 348,166          7,935,883       9,266,753       

( to 10 ـ8) -                     -                 -                 -                 2,608,296      2,608,296      7,826,499       

Unclassified 9,560,519           -                 3,679,234       -                 9,557,833       22,797,586     25,450,622     

Total 30,615,134         -                 8,779,142      -                 12,514,295     51,908,571     51,023,890    

Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan - SMEs companies:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 27,042,157     -                 6,364,660      -                 17,617,073      51,023,890     

New balances during the period/additions 16,827,952     -                 2,166,850       -                 1,478,746       20,473,548     

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (5,470,899)     -                 (1,428,474)     -                 (1,818,350)      (8,717,723)      

Transferred to stage 1 1,601,765        -                 (743,516)         -                 (858,249)        -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (2,880,327)     -                 3,597,683       -                 (717,356)         -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (281,326)         -                 (206,367)        -                 487,693          -                 

Changes due to adjustments (6,224,188)     -                 (971,694)         -                 (3,538,681)      (10,734,563)    

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (136,581)         (136,581)         

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 30,615,134     -                 8,779,142      -                 12,514,295     51,908,571     

2022

Total balance at the beginning of the year 26,942,633     -                 7,381,102        -                 11,940,531      46,264,266     

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 3,751,513        -                 410,111           -                 5,227,364       9,388,988      

The impact of selling a subsidiary (2,568,542)     -                 -                 -                 -                 (2,568,542)     

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (395,410)         -                 -                 -                 -                 (395,410)         

New balances during the year/ additions 11,040,744     -                 1,209,162       -                 755,773          13,005,679     

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (7,303,739)      -                 (1,851,551)       -                 (4,149,113)      (13,304,403)   

Transferred to stage 1 2,562,243       -                 (2,451,684)      -                 (110,559)         -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (2,035,316)      -                 2,132,089       -                 (96,773)          -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (1,224,954)      -                 (869,606)        -                 2,094,560      -                 

Changes from adjustments (3,727,015)      -                 405,037          -                 2,992,878       (329,100)        

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 (1,037,588)      (1,037,588)      

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 27,042,157    -                 6,364,660     -                 17,617,073     51,023,890    
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Total 

2023

Total

2022



Movement on expected credit loss provision - SMEs companies:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the period 135,158         -               517,850        -               13,537,256    14,190,264   

121,951         -               118,649         -               3,169,513      3,410,113      

(19,838)         
-               

(348,437)      
-               

(2,572,607)   (2,940,882)   

Transferred to stage 1 732,232        -               (66,910)         -               (665,322)       -               

Transferred to stage 2 (24,788)        -               505,566        -               (480,778)      -               

Transferred to stage 3 (5,519)           -               (2,571)           -               8,090           -               

(809,485)      -               (416,741)       -               1,226,226     -               

Changes due to adjustments (103,238)       -               (99,571)         -               (2,533,612)    (2,736,421)    

Written off balances -               -               -               -               (31,017)         (31,017)         

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -               -               -               -               -               

Total balance at the end of the period 26,473         -               207,835       -               11,657,749   11,892,057   

Individual Collective Individual Collective

2022 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at beginning of the year 241,830        -               365,965        -               7,052,053     7,659,848     

The impact of acquiring a subsidiary 205,512        -               123,867        -               3,437,089     3,766,468     

The impact of selling a subsidiary (119)              -               -               -               -               (119)              

The impact of liquidating a subsidiary (707)              -               -               -               -               (707)              

479,145        -               791,512         -               1,282,183      2,552,840     

(71,270)         -               (137,967)       -               (2,333,860)   (2,543,097)   

Transferred to stage 1 222,868        -               (123,604)       -               (99,264)        -               

Transferred to stage 2 (35,668)        -               75,392          -               (39,724)         -               

Transferred to stage 3 (9,194)           -               (51,168)         -               60,362          -               

(788,228)      -               (568,884)      -               1,357,112      -               

Changes from adjustments (109,011)       -               42,737          -               3,390,521     3,324,247     

Written off balances -               -               -               -               (569,216)       (569,216)       

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total balance at the end of the year 135,158        -               517,850        -               13,537,256   14,190,264  
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year

Impact on the provision - at the end of the period – due to changes 

in the classification between the three stages during the year

Expected credit loss on new balances during the year / Additions 

Impact on the provision - at the end of the period – due to changes 

in the classification between the three stages during the period

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Reversed expected credit loss on repaid/ derecognized balances 

during the period 

Expected credit loss on new balances during the period / additions



G - 5 Impairment loss of credit facilities granted to government and public sector:

 Distribution of total facilities according to the Bank's internal credit classification categories:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

( to 5 ـ1) 245,451,960   -                  -                  -                  -                  245,451,960   93,599,640     

( to 7 ـ6) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

( to 10 ـ8) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Unclassified -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total 245,451,960  -                 -                 -                 -                 245,451,960  93,599,640    

Total credit facilities movement according to the stage and in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan - SMEs companies:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the period 93,599,640     -                  -                  -                  -                  93,599,640     

New balances during the year/additions 156,725,029    -                  -                  -                  -                  156,725,029    

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (4,872,709)      -                  -                  -                  -                  (4,872,709)      

Transferred to stage 1 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to stage 2 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to stage 3 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Changes due to adjustments -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the year 245,451,960  -                 -                 -                 -                 245,451,960  

2022

Total balance at the beginning of the year 66,538,061     -                  -                  -                  -                  66,538,061     

New balances during the year/ additions 31,934,287      -                  -                  -                  -                  31,934,287      

Repaid/ derecognized balances during the year (4,872,708)      -                  -                  -                  -                  (4,872,708)      

Transferred to stage 1 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to stage 2 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transferred to stage 3 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Changes from adjustments -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Written off balances -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Adjustments resulted from changes in exchange rates -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total balance at the end of the year 93,599,640    -                 -                 -                 -                 93,599,640    

* The Bank has not calculated and recorded the provision for expected credit losses on government bills and/ or guaranteed by government, in

accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan's instructions regarding the implementation of IFRS (9).
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Stage 3 Total
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H- Direct credit facilities are distributed according to the economic sector as follows, noting that all these facilities are granted to parties inside the Kingdom:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Financial 49,903,387         42,157,476       

Manufacturing and mining 55,449,598         65,972,110       

Trade 109,449,987       111,615,647      

Real estate 126,693,272        130,294,396     

Constructions 29,553,144          39,752,113        

Agriculture 195,993               826,259            

Tourism, restaurants, and public facilities 112,405,935        97,960,798      

Government and public sector 245,451,960        93,599,640      

Individuals 418,890,184        337,940,494    

Total 1,147,993,460    920,118,933    

(11) Property and equipment- net

The details of this item are as follows:

Lands* Buildings*  Transport Computers Total

2023 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,349,066         16,002,332       19,655,836       566,523            3,156,215          49,729,972          

Additions -                      -                   3,075,771         119,100            475,085            3,669,956            

Disposals (209,960)             (719,059)          (701,967)          (98,505)            (88,162)            (1,817,653)           

-                      -                   885,429           -                   105,560            990,989              

Balance at the end of the year 10,139,106          15,283,273      22,915,069      587,118            3,648,698       52,573,264         

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at the beginning of the year -                      3,838,254         13,983,595       482,659           2,385,251         20,689,759          

Additions -                      317,017             1,458,760         43,565              346,598           2,165,940            

Disposals -                      (434,682)          (515,608)          (85,652)            (82,568)            (1,118,510)            

Balance at the end of the year -                      3,720,589        14,926,747      440,572           2,649,281        21,737,189          

10,139,106          11,562,684      7,988,322        146,546           999,417           30,836,075         

-                      -                   525,191             -                   78,953              604,144               

Net property and equipment 10,139,106          11,562,684      8,513,513         146,546           1,078,370        31,440,219         
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Net book value of property and equipment at the 

end of the year

Transfers from payment of purchase property and 

equipment and projects under

Equipment 

devices 

furniture and 

decoration

Payment for purchase of property and equipment, 

and projects under construction



Lands* Buildings*

Equipment devices 

furniture and decoration  Transport Computers Total

2022 JD JD JD JD JD JD

Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,349,066             16,002,332              17,950,753                    553,823                3,679,849             48,535,823          

impact of acquiring a subsidiary -                         -                          224,816                         50,300                 110,749                385,865               

Impact of selling Subsidiary -                         -                          (17,925)                          -                       (43,871)                 (61,796)                

Impact of liquidation of subsidiary -                         -                          (638)                              -                       (551)                      (1,189)                  

Additions -                         -                          2,031,219                       -                       263,876                2,295,095            

Disposals -                         -                          (655,225)                        (37,600)                (864,859)              (1,557,684)           

-                         -                          122,836                         -                       11,022                   133,858               

Balance at the end of the year 10,349,066            16,002,332             19,655,836                   566,523               3,156,215             49,729,972         

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at the beginning of the year -                         3,511,049                 13,376,963                    421,122                 2,925,071             20,234,205          

impact of acquiring a subsidiary -                         -                          197,100                         50,300                 89,668                 337,068               

Impact of selling Subsidiary -                         -                          (17,690)                         -                       (38,790)                (56,480)               

Impact of liquidation of subsidiary -                         -                          (191)                               -                       (96)                       (287)                    

Additions -                         327,205                   1,070,607                      48,835                  270,594                1,717,241             

Disposals -                         -                          (643,194)                        (37,598)                (861,196)               (1,541,988)           

Balance at the end of the year -                         3,838,254               13,983,595                   482,659               2,385,251             20,689,759         

10,349,066            12,164,078              5,672,241                      83,864                 770,964               29,040,213         

-                         -                          962,357                         -                       105,560                1,067,917             

Net property and equipment 10,349,066            12,164,078              6,634,598                     83,864                 876,524               30,108,130         

-

*

(12) Intangible assets

The details of this item are as follows:

Software and 

programmed
Goodwill** Total

JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 293,931                    1,338,553                      1,430,598             3,063,082            

A.1.7.G1 Additions* 703,437                   577,906                         -                       1,281,343              

Less:

Disposals -                          -                                -                       -                       

Amortization for the year -                          528,484                        -                       528,484               

Transfers (101,813)                   101,813                          -                       -                       

Balance at the end of the year 895,555                  1,489,788                     1,430,598            3,815,941             

JD

Transfers from payment of purchase property and 

equipment and projects under construction
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Net book value of property and equipment at the 

end of the year

Payment for purchase of property and equipment, and 

projects under construction

Property and equipment include JD 18,393,794 as of December 31, 2023, which represents fully depreciated consumed assets compared to JD 17,551,861 as of December 31, 2022.

This item includes land and buildings mortgaged at JD 7,272,207 as of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2022 for the specialized financing rental company against financing lease

granted to Al Istethmari latemweel selselat Al Imdad company (subsidiary) for JD 1,563,903 as of December 31, 2023, compared to JD 2,140,982 as of December 31, 2022.

As of December 31, 2022

Advance payment for 

the purchase of 

systems



Advance payment 

for the purchase 

of systems Goodwill** Total

JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 326,468              1,430,598  3,003,777    

Impact of selling Subsidiary -                      -             (2,550)          

Impact of liquidation of subsidiary -                      -             (24,980)       

A.1.7.G1 Additions* 175,688               -             529,940       

Less:

Disposals -                      -       -             -               

Amortization for the year -                      -             443,105       

Transfers (208,225)             -             -               

Balance at the end of the year 293,931              1,430,598  3,063,082   

*

**

(13) Other assets

The details of this item are as follows:

Interest and income receivables

Prepaid expenses

Refundable deposits

Clearing Cheques

Balances related to fraudulent transaction -net**

Purchased acceptances

Others

Total

*

Goodwill impairment loss tested as December 31, 2023, and the result was that there was no impairment of goodwill.
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41,917,423                            24,869,270                            

738,939                                

198,086                                

1,039,200                             

12,542,345                           

6,263,623                             

1,039,200                              

According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan, the Bank must dispose of assets seized by the Bank in

settlement of customers due debts within two years from the date of their acquisition, and the Central Bank of Jordan

may, in exceptional cases, extend this period for a maximum of two consecutive years. The seized assets are shown at

net after deducting the impairment provision which amounted to JD 93,155 as of 31 December 2023, against JD62,758 as

of 31 December 2022, and the seized assets provision according to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan in

which amounted to JD 1,257,317 JD as of 31 December 2023 against JD 2,051,951 as of 31 December 2022.

71,343,006                            

12,813                                    

26,697,103                            

8,061,452                              

67,858,416                          

3,776,935                             

1,381,865                              

7,994,512                               

1,753,896                               

914,760                                 

As of December 31, 2022

Software and 

programmed

JD

1,246,711           

JD

Additions to computer systems and software represents the amounts paid for purchasing and developing of banking

systems and programming.

Assets seized by the Bank in settlement of due 

debts*

(24,980)             

(2,550)               

1,338,553         

354,252             

-                    

443,105             

208,225             

Resulting from the Bank acquiring 94.7% of Jordan Trade Facilities Company Public shareholding company (which owns

100% of Trade Facilities Company for Finance Leasing) via the subsidiary (Tamkeen for Finance Leasing) during 2016

through purchased of 15,390,385 shares with a par value of JD 1 per share. The investment cost amounted to JD

20,774,620 and the fair value of the net assets acquired upon acquisition amounted to JD 19,344,022 resulting in a

goodwill of JD 1,430,598.

31 December 2023

JD JD

31 December 2022



Below is the movement of assets seized by the Bank in settlement of debts:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions

Disposals

Balance at the end of the year

**

Balance related to irregular operations

Less: provision recorded against this balance

Less: proceeds from the insurance company

Balance at the end of the year

-                     

This item represents net balance related to irregular operations after deducting the related 

provision as shown below:
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JD JD

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

12,974,700          

10,435,500          

1,500,000            

1,039,200           

12,974,700          

10,435,500          

1,500,000            

1,039,200           

Recoveries from provision impairment seized assets 

31 December 2023

JD

Amortization of increase in fair value of assets seized by 

subsidiaries

Recoveries from the (provision) of properties in accordance 

with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan

31 December 2022

JD

40,685,861          

6,193,762             

(4,310,877)           

41,917,423           

2,485,500            

(20,253,720)         

(655,373)              764,927               

(44,170)                

4,050                   (690)                     

During 2012, the Bank was exposed to a manipulation in the Bank’s cash accounts with other banks and

financial institutions, which led to a loss of amounts estimated at JD 12.9 million, mainly due to the

possibility of collusion between some of the Bank’s employees through deceiving the internal controls and

control procedures in place. All the necessary legal procedures were taken by the Bank’s management and a

provision for an amount of JD 10.4 million was booked against the transaction as of 31 December 2023 and 31

December 2022 after netting the amounts expected to be recovered from the repossessed assets and the

deduction of the proceeds collected from the insurance company which amounted to JD 1.5 million. Noting

that the lawsuit procedures had been completed from the General Attorney and is currently presented in

Amman’s Criminal Court, the residual value represents the value of the properties placed under the

arbitrator's secretariat for the Bank, and it will be transferred to the bank upon the case completion.

24,869,270         41,917,423          



(14) Operating lease contracts

A - Right of use assets:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add:

Right of use assets during the year

Less:

Depreciation during the year

Impact of cancelling lease contracts

Balance at end of the year

B - Lease liabilities

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add:

Lease liabilities during the year

Interest expense during the year

less:

paid liabilities during the year

Impact of cancelling lease contracts

Balance at end of the year

of which is:

Total 3,104,073            2,994,059            
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Lease liabilities due within less than 

one year 748,061                710,893                 

Lease liabilities due within more than 

one year 2,356,012              2,283,166              

2,994,059             2,562,692              

1,044,705             

149,741                 155,897                 

(973,066)              (864,067)               

3,104,073            2,994,059            

1,139,537               

(111,366)                -                        

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

1,044,705             

(973,439)               (915,883)                

4,068,172            4,108,272             

1,139,537               

(111,366)                -                        

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

4,108,272             3,884,618              



(15) Banks and financial institutions deposits

The details of this item are as follows:

Inside Jordan Outside Jordan Total Inside Jordan Outside Jordan Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Current and on demand accounts -                        24,333,366           24,333,366            29,671                   9,575,182              9,604,853              

Term and notice deposits* 5,698,197              22,050,000           27,748,197            3,025,947              26,100,000           29,125,947             

5,698,197             46,383,366          52,081,563           3,055,618             35,675,182           38,730,800           

* There are no amounts matured during a period of more than 3 months as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

(16) Customers’ deposits

The details of this item are as follows:

Individuals Large Corporates SMEs

Government and 

public sector Total

JD JD JD JD JD

31 December 2023

Current and call accounts 104,441,411           112,424,304          12,875,440            1,536,569              231,277,724          

Saving deposits 40,477,395           2,374,253              115,885                 -                        42,967,533           

Term and notice deposits 520,129,178          268,792,895         10,841,127             94,388,441            894,151,641          

Certificates of deposits 10,182,756            -                        -                        -                        10,182,756            

Total 675,230,740        383,591,452         23,832,452           95,925,010           1,178,579,654      

31 December 2022

Current and call accounts 85,871,756            119,088,937          12,956,753            1,486,074              219,403,520         

Saving deposits 54,006,691           3,055,337              8,059                    -                        57,070,087           

Term and notice deposits 381,144,856          155,889,061          9,794,243             58,403,045           605,231,205          

Total 521,023,303         278,033,335        22,759,055           59,889,119           881,704,812         

-

-

-

-

Government and public sector deposits amounted to JD 95,925,010 which is equivalent to 8.1% of the total deposits as of 31 December

2023 against to JD 59,889,119, which is equivalent to 6.8% of the total deposits as of 31 December 2022.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
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Non-interest-bearing deposits amounted to JD 184,930,074 which is equivalent to 15.7% of the total deposits as of 31 December 2023

against JD 187,808,100 which is equivalent to 21.3% of the total deposits as of 31 December 2022.

Retained (restricted) deposits amounted to JD 10,909,924 which is equivalent to 0.9% of the total deposits as of 31 December 2023 against

JD 6,722,225 which is equivalent to 0.8% of the total deposits as of 31 December 2022.

Dormant deposits amounted to JD 8,410,522 as of 31 December 2023, against JD 10,066,973 as of 31 December 2022.

Total



(17) Cash margins

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Cash margins against direct facilities 22,946,804           10,431,732                    

Cash margins against indirect facilities 25,788,589           22,886,207                  

Other collaterals 7,728,967              3,115,117                       

Total 56,464,360          36,433,056                  

(18) Borrowed funds 

The details of this item are as follows:

Total Remaining

31 December 2023 JD

10,204,014            2,127  1,207        Monthly
Promissory 

notes
0.5  to 1.0٪

239,901,517          590    304           

Monthly, quarterly, 

semi-annual and at 

maturity

Cash deposits/ 

mortgage 

bonds/ 

5.30٪ to 9.25٪

Borrowings from foreign institutions 7,270,795              16       11              
Semi-annual and at 

maturity
- * 6.40٪ to 6.95٪

Total 257,376,326         

31 December 2022

11,324,276             2,069 1,470        Monthly
Promissory 

notes
0.5  to 1.0٪

202,816,069         594    283           

Monthly, quarterly, 

semi-annual and at 

maturity

Cash deposits/ 

mortgage 

bonds/ 

4,5٪ to 6,5٪

Borrowings from foreign institutions 10,828,557            21       15              
Semi-annual and at 

maturity
- * 3,1٪ to 6٪

Total 224,968,902        
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Amount Instalments frequency Guarantees

Bowrroing 

Interest rate

Number of 

instalments

Borrowings from the Central Bank of Jordan

Borrowings from the Central Bank of Jordan

Borrowings from local banks/ financial institutions

Borrowings from local banks/ financial institutions



-

-

-

-

-

-

*

Fixed interest loans amounted to JD 54,161,784 and variable interest loans amounted to

JD 203,214,542 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 70,064,986 of fixed interest loans and

JD 154,903,916 of variable interest loans as of 31 December 2022.

There is a letter of comfort issued by the Bank.

100

Borrowings from the Central Bank of Jordan which amounts to JD 10,204,014 represent

amounts borrowed to refinance customers’ facilities through medium term financing

programs and the Central Bank of Jordan program to assist SMEs in facing COVID-19,

the loans were re-lent with an average interest rate of 3.27%.

The number of beneficiaries from the Central Bank of Jordan’s program which aims to

assist SMEs in facing COVID-19 is 27 clients as of 31 December 2023. These loans are

matured within a period of 54 months from the granting date including the grace period

according to the requirements of the program.

Borrowed funds include amounts borrowed from local banks which amounts to JD

217,401,517 Such borrowings include overdraft accounts and revolving loans granted to

the subsidiaries (Al-Istethmari Letamweel Selselat Al Imdad, Tamkeen Leasing

Company, Jordan Trade Facilities Company and Bindar Trading and Investment

Company).

Borrowed funds from local institutions include amounts borrowed from Jordan Mortgage

Refinancing Company which amounts to JD 22,500,000 as of 31 December 2023 against

30,500,000 as of 31 December 2022, additionally, housing loans are refinanced with an

average interest rate of 10.5% as of 31 December 2023 against 8.5% as of 31 December

2022. 

Borrowed funds from foreign institutions include amounts borrowed from “Sanad” fund

to finance small projects which amounts to USD 10.3 Million, equivalent to JD 7,270,795

as of 31 December 2023 for the Bank and its subsidiary (Jordan Trade Facilities

Company), against USD 15.3 Million, equivalent to JD 10,828,557 as of 31 December 2022. 



(19) BONDS

This item represents bonds issued by the subsidiaries as follows:

Subsidiary Value of bonds

Interest 

rate

Gross 

instalments

Remaining 

instalments

Frequency of 

instalments 

maturity Guarantees Issue date Maturity date

JD

31 December 2023

Tamkeen Leasing Company 7,500,000     7.75٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 30  October 2023 28  November 2024

Tamkeen Leasing Company 5,970,000     7.75٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 8  November 2023 7  November 2024

Tamkeen Leasing Company 2,000,000    7.50٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 18 July 2023 17 July 2024

Tamkeen Leasing Company 1,200,000     7.50٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 12  October 2023 11 October 2024

Tamkeen Leasing Company 1,050,000     7.50٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 7 February 2023 7 February 2024

Total 17,720,000  

31 December 2022

Tamkeen Leasing Company 7,500,000     6.5٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 2 October 2022 01 November 2023

Jordan Trade Facilities Company 6,460,000    7.0٪ 1 1
One payment at 

the maturity date 
N/A 14 December 2022 14 December 2023

Total 13,960,000  
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(20) Other provisions

The details of this item are as follows:

Beginning 

balance

Balances from 

investment in 

subsidiaries Additions Paid Reversals

Ending 

balance

JD JD JD JD JD JD

31 December 2023

314,889         -                      258,478             (7,917)             -                  565,450         

Other 105,719          -                      14,970                (5,379)             -                  115,310           

Total 420,608        -                      273,448             (13,296)          -                 680,760        

31 December 2022

329,550         -                      483,814              (67,345)           (431,130)         314,889          

Other 112,368         91,531                  3,108                  (62,923)           (38,365)           105,719          

Total 441,918         91,531                 486,922             (130,268)        (469,495)        420,608        

(21) INCOME TAX

A) Income tax provision

The movement on income tax provision is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,383,036           7,057,031           

Total income tax paid (10,077,616)         (8,983,216)         

Excluded balances due to the sale of a subsidiary -                      (200,968)           

Balances resulted from the acquisition of a subsidiary -                      75,352                

Income tax for previous years 8,279                   -                     

(Recovery of) Income tax from previous years (500,000)            -                     

Income tax for the year 9,414,636            11,434,837         

Balance at the end of the year 8,228,335           9,383,036         
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Income tax is calculated in accordance with the income tax laws number (38) for the year 2018, the statutory income tax rate in Jordan for the bank

and its subsidiaries amounts to 35% and 3% national contribution, 24% and 4% national contribution respectively.

Provision for legal cases against 

the Bank and its subsidiaries 

(note 49)

Provision for legal cases against 

the Bank and its subsidiaries 

(note 49)



Income tax presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss consists of the following:

Income tax on current year profit

Income tax Paid on previous years

(Recovery of) Income tax from previous years

Deferred tax assets for the year

The Bank tax status:

-

-

-

-

Tax status of Tamkeen Leasing Company (Subsidiary)

-

-

-

-

-                          

Amortization of deferred tax assets for the year

The Bank has submitted the tax returns for the years from 2019 until 2022 on the legally

specified date and in compliance with the regulations.

The financial period is charged with its own income tax expense in accordance with the

regulations, laws and International Financial Reporting Standards, and the necessary tax

provision is calculated and recorded.

345,451                  
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A Final clearance was made with the Income and Sales Tax Department for the financial years

until the end of the year 2018.

In the opinion of the Bank’s management and the tax advisor, the provisions booked are

sufficient to meet the tax liabilities as of 31 December 2023.

The company did not submit the self-assessment statement for the period from its inception

on 31 October 2006 until December 31, 2009, as it did not operate during those years.

A final clearance was made with the Income and Sales Tax Department regarding income tax

for the years from 2010 until 2017. 

The Company submitted the tax return for the years 2018 on the legally specified date and

was accepted without any amendments within the sampling system.

The Company submitted the tax return for the years from 2019 until 2022 on the legally 

2022

JD

9,570,577                

2023

JD

8,170,189               

(5,424,413)              (9,545,348)             

9,414,639              11,434,837              

3,560,153                8,455,447              

(500,000)               

-                          



-

-

Tax status of Al Istethmari Letamweel Selselat Al Imdad Company (Subsidiary):

-

-

-

-

Tax status of Jordan Trade Facilities Company and its subsidiaries (Subsidiary):

-

-

-

-

-

A final clearance was made with the Income and Sales Tax Department until the end of 2014, The tax

declarations have been audited, and the statements have been adjusted with approval for the years

2015 and 2016.

The Company has submitted the tax return for the years from 2019 until 2022 according to the

regulations and on the legally specified date.

The Company submitted the sales tax returns on the legally specified date, and the Income and Sales

Tax Department audited the general sales tax returns until 31 December 2017, and subsequent returns

were submitted on the date specified by law and the related tax due was paid up to the date of

preparing consolidated these financial statements.
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Sales tax returns were accepted without modification until the end period 11 + 12 / 2017 and has no

tax obligations, and the company submitted the tax return for the period from 1 + 2 / 2018 until the

period 9 + 10 / 2023 on the legally specified date and the related tax due was paid.

The company was tax assessed up to the end of the year 2017, with no tax liabilities for this period.

The tax return for the year 2018 was accepted under the sampling system. Tax returns for the years

2019, 2020, and 2021 were audited by the Income and Sales Tax Department and were objected to by

the company.

In the opinion of the Company’s management and its tax advisor, the Company will not have any

liabilities that exceed the booked provision as of 31 December 2023.

In the opinion of the Company’s management and its tax advisor, the Company will not have any

liabilities that exceed the booked provision as of 31 December 2023.

The Company has submitted the general sales tax returns on the legally specified date, and the Income

and Sales Tax Department has audited the returns submitted for the end of the fiscal year 2016 taking

into onsideration the returns submitted for the tax periods up to end of 2018 were accepted according

to the laws and the returns of subsequent periods were submitted on time.

The subsidiary (Jordan Trade Facilities for Finance Leasing) submitted annual income tax returns until

the end of 2022, and they were accepted by the Income and Sales Tax Department within sampling

system.

The subsidiary (Jordan Trade Facilities for Finance Leasing) has submitted the tax return on the

legally specified date, General sales tax returns were audited until the end of 2022, and subsequent tax

returns were filed on the legally specified date.

The Company submitted the tax return for the year 2022 on the legally specified date.



-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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General sales tax returns were audited until the end of 2017, and subsequent tax returns were

filed on the legally specified date and the related tax due was paid up until the date of

preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The Company has submitted the tax return for the years from 2019 until 2022 and paid the

tax due on the legally specified date.

In the opinion of the Company’s management and its tax advisor, the Company and its

subsidiaries will not have any liabilities that exceed the booked provision as of 31 December

2023.

A final clearance was made with the Income and Sales Tax Department until the end of 2018 

and 2020.

The subsidiary (Bindar Leasing Company) made a final clearance with income tax and sales

tax Department until the end of year 2020 in addition the company has submitted the tax

return until end of the year 2021 and 2022 on the legally specified date and has no tax

obligations until the date of these consolidation financial statements.

The subsidiary (Bindar Leasing Company) has register for sales tax starting from 1 January

2017 and the subsequent tax returns were submitted and tax due was paid up until the date of

these consolidated financial statements.

The subsidiary (Robou Al Sharq Real Estate) made a final clearance with income tax and sales

tax Department until the end of years 2018 and 2020.

The subsidiary (Robou Al Sharq Real Estate) submitted the tax return for the years 2019 ,2021

and 2022 and the tax due was paid on the legally specified date.

The subsidiary (Rakeen Real Estate Company) made a final clearance with income tax and 

sales tax Department until the end of years 2018 and 2020.

The subsidiary (Rakeen Real Estate Company) submitted the tax return for the years 2019

,2021 and 2022 and the tax due was paid on the legally specified date.

In the opinion of the Company’s management and its tax advisor, the Company and its

subsidiaries will not have any liabilities that exceed the booked provision as of 31 December

2023.

Tax status of Bindar Trade and Investments Company and its subsidiaries (Subsidiary):



B) Deferred Tax assets/ liabilities

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 2022

Beginning 

balance

Released 

amounts Added amounts Ending balance Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Included accounts JD JD JD JD JD JD

A - Deferred tax assets

Provision for cases filed by the bank 17,537              (7,917)               166,917            176,537            67,084             6,664                  

Provisions prepared as per IFRS 9/ Bank 10,043,449      (11,077,390)      13,363,966       12,330,025       4,685,410        3,816,511             

Provision for impairment of assets seized 22,060             -                   690                  22,750              8,645               8,383                  

Provision for assets seized for more than 4 years 2,051,951         (1,109,654)       315,019            1,257,316         477,780           779,741               

10,435,500      -                   -                   10,435,500      3,965,490        3,965,490           

3,715,588         (2,641,410)       655,524            1,729,702         657,287            1,411,923             

IFRS 16 applying impact 294,018           -                   2,904               296,922           112,830            111,727                

Employees’ bonuses unpaid 2,213,767         (1,530,507)       2,291,244         2,974,504        1,130,312          841,231               

Other accrued expenses 458,300           (450,000)         355,700           364,000           138,320            174,154               

Provision for ECL/ Tamkeen for Finance Leasing 2,342,846        (685,105)          892,676           2,550,417         714,117             655,996              

Other provisions/ Tamkeen for Finance Leasing 231,134            (77,763)            92,215              245,586           68,764             64,717                 

4,283,878        (235,934)          392,541            4,440,485        1,243,336         1,199,486            

Provision for cases/ Jrodan Trade Facilities Co. 232,357            -                   52,643             285,000           79,800             65,060                

Provision for ECL/ Jordan Trade Facilities Company 8,085,957        (2,002,843)      2,761,574         8,844,688        2,476,513         2,264,069           

Interest in suspense/ Jordan Trade Facilities Co. 2,642,553        (372,519)           1,257,147          3,527,181         987,611            739,915               

Other provisions/ Jordan Trade Facilities Co. 77,937              (17,122)             29,696             90,511              25,343              21,822                 

3,044               (3,044)              8,015                8,015                2,244               852                      

9,643,785        (3,970,906)       4,219,467         9,892,346        2,769,856        2,700,259           

-                   -                   984,770           984,770           275,736            -                      

27,393              -                   
73,310              

100,703            28,196              7,670                  

64,995             -                   38,918              103,913            29,096             18,199                 

56,888,049      (24,182,114)      27,954,936      60,660,871      19,943,770       18,853,869         

B - Deferred tax liabilities

Financial assets revaluation reserve 10,266,320      (2,014,332)       1,699,675         9,951,663         1,345,153         3,981,771            

10,266,320      (2,014,332)       1,699,675         9,951,663         1,345,153         3,981,771            
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Interest suspense against working accounts classified into 

the stages two and three in accordance with IFRS 9

Provision for ECL/ Al Istithmari for Tamwel Selselt Al Imdad

31 December 2023

Provision for balances attributable to non-statutory 

operations*

Interests of operating lease obligations/ Jordan Trade 

Facilities Company

Provision for ECL/ Bindar for Trade and Investment 

Company

Interest in suspense/ Bindar for Trade and Investment 

Company

Other provisions/ Bindar for Trade and Investment Company

Provision for cases/ Bindar for Trade and Investment 

Company



-

*

The movement of the account of tax assets/ liabilities is as follows:

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

JD JD JD JD

Balance at beginning of the year 18,853,869     3,981,771       15,801,272     3,490,066      

Impact of acquiring a subsidiary -                 -                 1,588,189       -                 

Impact of selling a subsidiary -                 -                 (84,941)          -                 

Impact of liquidating a subsidiary -                 -                 (91,031)           -                 

Additions 9,545,348      209,532          5,424,413       1,030,999      

Disposal (8,455,447)     (2,846,150)     (3,784,033)     (539,294)        

Balance at end of the year 19,943,770    1,345,153       18,853,869    3,981,771       

C) The summary of the reconciliation between accounting income and taxable income is as follows:

2023 2022

JD JD

Accounting profit 33,227,815     39,799,933     

Non-taxable profits (11,218,789)    (18,529,483)   

Deductable tax expenses for prior years (18,488,426)   (5,228,422)     

Non-deductable tax expenses 23,660,788    14,081,512      

Taxable profit 27,181,388    30,123,540    

The Bank’s statutory income tax percentage* 38٪ 38٪

The subsidiaries statutory income tax percentage* 28٪ 28٪

* Except for some items subject to different tax rates according to the applicable income tax law.

Deferred tax liabilities 1,345,153 representing tax liabilities against profits of valuation of financial assets at

fair value through other comprehensive income that appear in the Financial assets revaluation reserve - net of

equity.

This item represents the deferred tax benefits expected from making a provision against balances due to non-

statutory operations (Note 13) and the management believes that these amounts can be used in the near future.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
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(22) OTHER LIABILITIES

The details of this item are as follows:

Certified and acceptable Cheques

Interest payable

Sunday creditors

Unpaid dividend distributions

Safe boxes insurances

Unpaid accrued expenses

Other liabilities

Total

651,293               121,072                 

150,813               

8,528,042           5,065,147              

4,426,318           4,682,787             

148,423                 

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

1,703,885           1,667,068             

3,622,547           2,758,303             

108

8,153,679            4,802,724             

Expected credit loss provision on off-

balance sheet items 423,936              746,624                

27,660,513         19,992,148           



(23) Share capital

(24) Reserves

(25) Financial asset revaluation reserve-net

The movement on this item is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,435,777                   6,362,363                  

Unrealized (losses) gains on stocks (628,374)                    302,671                      

Deferred tax liabilities 2,636,618                  (491,705)                    

322,759                      262,448                     

Balance at the end of the year 8,766,780                 6,435,777                  

(26) RETAINED EARNINGS

The movement on retained earnings is summarized as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 50,972,953                42,612,312                 

Profit for the year 24,628,584                19,826,223                 

Transferred to reserves (2,492,392)                 (1,211,352)                  

Dividend distributions (10,000,000)              (10,000,000)              

(322,759)                    (262,448)                    

15,328                        8,218                          

Balance at the end of the year 62,801,714                50,972,953               

Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income losses that 

were transferred to the retained earnings

Loss on sale of financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive 
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Authorized and paid-in capital amounted to JD 100 million distributed to 100 million shares

with a par value of 1 JD for each as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Amounts accumulated in this account represent 10% of the annual profits before tax

transferred in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law. This reserve is not available

for distribution to shareholders.

Effect of the increase in investment in 

subsidiaries



(27) Proposed dividends

(28) Non-controlling interests

The details of this item are as follows:

% Non- 

controlling 

interests

Non-controlling 

interest in net 

profit

Non- 

controlling 

interest in net 

assets

% Non- 

controlling 

interests

Non-controlling 

interest in net 

profit

Non- 

controlling 

interest in net 

assets

٪ JD JD ٪ JD JD

Tamkeen Leasing Co. 2.5 (6,646)            466,925         2.5 4,031              473,571          

6.0 2,732              201,243          6.0 (9,797)            240,658         

Jordan Trade Facilities Co. 4.6 286,577         2,010,217       4.7 186,325          1,734,150       

Bindar Trade and Investment Co. 3.3 88,805           1,108,350       3.5 243,238         1,008,017       

371,468         3,786,735      423,797         3,456,396     
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31 December 2023 31 December 2022

The Board of Directors decided to recommend to the Shareholders’ General Assembly to distribute JD 10 million of retained earnings during the year 

2024 for the year 2023, equivalent to 10% of the Bank’s capital., which is subject to the approval of Central Bank of Jordan. and the general

assembly of shareholders, pursuant to a decision of the general assembly of shareholders On April 19, 2023, 10 million JD were distributed from

retained earnings for the year 2022, equivalent to 10% of the bank’s capital.

Al Istethmari Latemweel Selselat Al 

Imdad Co.



(29) Interest Income

The details of this item are as follows:

Direct credit facilities:

Individuals (Retail):

Loans and bills

Overdrafts

Credit cards

Real estate loans

Large corporates:

Loans and bills

Overdrafts

SMEs:

Loans and bills

Overdrafts

Government and public sector

Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at amortized cost

Total

(30) Interest Expense

The details of this item are as follows:

Deposits from banks and financial institutions

Customers’ deposits:

Current and call accounts

Saving deposits

Term and notice deposits

Certificates of deposits

Cash margins

Borrowed funds

Bonds

Deposits guarantees fees

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Total

324,580          

119,861           

23,494,792     

155,896          

1,132,466            

631,157           

13,033,421      

615,824          

149,741               

1,067,492       

-                  

2022

JD JD

879,175           

4,869,519       

1,377,472        

944,460          

9,690,381       
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70,396,821         40,322,198    

1,389,367            

18,258,578          

653,272               

114,678               

45,641,841          

254,309              

1,622,842            

1,179,727             

2023

84,453,153     

16,154,956      

5,010,292       

14,779,584          

123,074,611        

19,630,032         

5,820,274           

5,249,160            

3,933,408           

7,397,344            

763,650              

12,736,042          

3,775,319        

648,813          

311,530               

10,672,447          

10,355,549          

23,684,455     

63,382            

8,443,598       

9,790,506       

31,425,591          

2023 2022

JD JD



(31) Net Commissions Income 

The details of this item are as follows:

Commissions income:

Direct facilities commissions

Indirect facilities commissions

Other commissions

Total commissions income

Less: commissions expense

Net commissions income

(32) Foreign currency exchange gains

The details of this item are as follows:

Profits resulting from trading/ transaction

Profits resulting from valuation                                                                                                                       

Total

(33) Profits of financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit and loss

The details of this item are as follows:

2023

Companies shares

Shares options

Total

2022

Companies shares

Shares options

Total -                    

47,187            

460,958          

101                     

-                   

-                    

18,702,318          

3,980,090           

5,698,976            

14,843,983         

2,162,752           

2,242,882           

21,616                 11,110                   

Shares dividends 

returns Total

460,958                         

JD JD JD JD

Realized 

 (loss) profit Unrealized loss

784,731              967,840              

46,984                           102                      

-                    

112

402                    684,209                        

507,942                         

502,404                         

508,145         

684,611          

102                      

-                   

182,207          

502,404          -                    

181,805                          402                    

101                     

2023 2022

JD JD

956,730               763,115               

2023 2022

JD JD

28,381,384          19,249,617         

8,363,534            5,238,512           

20,017,850         14,011,105         



(34) Other income

The details of this item are as follows:

Bounded revenues

Telecommunication revenues

Recoveries from bad debts

Gains on sale of property and equipment

Other

Total

(35) Employees' expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Employees’ salaries, benefits and bonuses

Medical expenses and insurance

Traveling and transportation

Employees' training expenses

Employees’ life insurance expenses

Travel per diem

Total

JD JD

2023 2022

3,144,347            2,937,703           

1,639,813             

85,229                 

(858,712)              

165,727                

789,295               

1,410,225             

54,221                 

561,254               

240,314               

666,731               

1,322,995             
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77,770                 31,132                  

166,087               153,578               

41,992                 

20,313,782         18,076,667         

27,125                  8,740                   

12,794                  11,312                  

1,475,581             

(Loss) Gains on sale of assets sized by the 

Bank

Banks and subsidiaries’ contribution in the 

social security

The Bank's contribution in social committee

1,338,242            

39,750                 

983,175                949,887              

2023 2022

JD JD

17,531,500           15,541,784           

4,958                   



(36) Other expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Stationery and printing

Advertisement

Subscription and fees

Telecommunication and post expenses

Maintenance and repairs of buildings and equipment

Maintenance of systems and software license

Insurance expenses

Judicial charges and fees

Electricity, water and fuel

Auditing fees

Professional and consultation fees

Donations

Credit card expenses

Board of Directors transportation fees and bonuses

Safety and security expenses

Cleaning expenses

Other expenses

Total

(37)

The details of the movement  on expected credit loss provision is as follows:

Total

(Recoveries from) Provision for expected credit 

losses on financial assets in amortized cost

(Recoveries from) Provision from off balance 

sheet items

2023 2022

JD JD

1,355                 1,060                 

Provision (Recoveries from) for expected credit 

losses on Deposits at banks and financial 

(Recoveries from) Provision for expected credit 

losses on other assets

Provision (Recoveries) from expected credit losses of financial assets and off the statement 

of financial position items
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261,909            (1,463,558)       

498,958            (697,602)           

84,284              

(322,688)           (764,723)           

(2,293)               

11,430,113        9,242,351         

180,104             169,593             

481,835             469,419             

586,101             261,640             

183,526             141,607             

546,096            509,409            

2,149,579          1,497,120          

229,883            

208,379            

229,533             

238,106             

906,270            737,930             

606,590            447,054            

1,593,446          1,121,600          

819,878             788,236            

182,049            113,468             

131,980             159,780             

292,868            190,140             

997,502            1,021,289          

1,304,650         1,175,804          

2023 2022

JD JD



(38) Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the Banks' shareholders

The details of this item are as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to Bank’s shareholders

Weighted average number of shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share from net profit for the year

(39) Cash and cash equivalents

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan maturing within three 

months

Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions maturing within three 

months

Less: Deposits at banks and financial institutions maturing within three 

months

2022

JD

2023

JD

24,628,584               19,826,223                   

119,008,897                

46,206,874               73,658,073                   

52,081,563                38,730,800                  
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100,000,000             

137,598,457              84,081,624                  

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

100,000,000                

0.198                           0.246                        

131,723,768              

The basic earnings per share from the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Bank equals the diluted

earnings as the Bank does not issue any financial instruments that have an impact on the basic.



(40) Transactions With Related Parties

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its following subsidiaries:

Shareholding 

Percentage
٪

Tamkeen Leasing Co. 97.5٪

Al Istethmari Letamweel Selselat Al Imdad Co. 94٪

Jordanian Factoring Co.* -

Jordan Trade Facilities Co. 95.4٪

Trade Facilities for Finance Leasing Co. 95.4٪

Bindar Trade and Investment Co. 96.7٪

Ruboua Al Sharq Real Estate Co. 96.7٪

Rakeen Real Estate Co. 96.7٪

Bindar Finance Leasing Co.** 96.7٪

*

** Based on the decision of Bindar Trade and Investments Company (a subsidiary) Board of Directors No. 18/2022 dated on 3

October 2022 it was approved to cease the operations of Bindar Financial Leasing Company (a subsidiary) and liquidate it

voluntarily during the year 2023 therefore, the bank's assets and the company's liabilities and results have not been

consolidated in the consolidated financial statements and have been presented as assets held for sale and liabilities directly

associated with assets held for sale.

The Bank has entered into transactions with members of the Board of Directors, key management, subsidiaries and major

shareholders within the normal activities of the Bank and by using normal interest rates and commercial commissions. All

credit facilities granted to related parties are considered performing and no provisions are made for them, except as

mentioned below.
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Based on the decision of the bank's board of directors in its first meeting during the year 2022, it was approved to close the

Jordanian Factoring Company. Consequently, the bank booked a provision against the investment in the company, equivalent

to the amount of accumulated losses and the losses appearing in the company's accounts as of December 31, 2022, which

amounted to 152,187 JD. A liquidator was appointed for the company in accordance with Jordanian Company Law, and

liquidation approval was obtained. The company's registration certificate was cancelled on January 14, 2024.

50,000                      50,000                             

30,000                      30,000                             

1,000,000                 1,000,000                        

16,500,000               16,500,000                      

2,000,000                 2,000,000                       

20,000,000              20,000,000                     

20,000,000              20,000,000                     

3,000,000                 3,000,000                       

-                            208,000                           

Company Name Company’s share capital

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD



The following represents a summary of balances and transactions with related parties:

Subsidiaries*

Board of directors’ 

members & 

executive 

management

Other (employees and their relative, 

relative of members of the board of 

directors and executive management 

and controlled companies)

31 December 

2023

31 December 

2022

JD JD JD JD JD

On-Balance Sheet Items:

Credit facilities 2,059,682      3,458,293                21,941,406                                           27,459,381         30,115,759       

-                 -                          20,674                                                 20,674               33,591              

2,483,433      5,896,134                7,166,044                                            15,545,611          19,460,996      

Deposits from banks and financial institutions -                 16,947,080             -                                                       16,947,080        16,260,413       

Off-Balance Sheet Items:

LGs 141,500          630,302                  419,228                                               1,191,030           1,290,393        

Statement of profit or loss Items: 2023 2022

JD JD

Interest and commission income 208,987         215,368                   1,311,487                                             1,735,842           2,378,448        

Interest and commission expense 180,648         1,233,417                 248,300                                               1,662,365           1,084,131         

Impairment provision on credit facilities** -                      -                               (12,917)                                                 (12,917)               (6,066)             

Maximum interest rate on direct credit facilities in JD 21٪ Minimum interest rate on direct credit facilities in JD 2٪

Maximum interest rate on direct credit facilities in FCY 12٪ Minimum interest rate on direct credit facilities in FCY 12٪

Maximum interest rate on deposits in JD 6.65٪ Minimum interest rate on deposits in JD Zero

Maximum interest rate on deposits in FCY 4.3٪ Minimum interest rate on deposits in FCY Zero

Maximum commission rate on credit 1٪ Minimum commission rate on credit Zero

The number of related parties’ clients amounted to 1,001 clients as of 31 December 2023, against 936 as of 31 December 2022.

* The balances and transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in these consolidated financial statements and are shown for explanatory purposes only.

** Presents the provisions recorded according to the Central Bank of Jordan instructions no. (47/2009).
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The executive management salaries and benefits for the Bank and its subsidiaries amounted to JD 3,924,214 for the year ended on 31 December 2023, against JD 3,378,436

for the year ended on 31 December 2022.

TotalRelated party

The value of the collaterals provided by the related clients against the granted credit facilities amounted to JD 19,151,804 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 20,322,863 as

of 31 December 2022.

Deposits, current accounts and cash margins

Provision for impairment on direct credit 

facilities **



(41) Risk management

The overall risk management framework:

•

•

•

•

A - Reviewing the Group's risk management framework.

B - Reviewing the Group's risk management strategy before approving it by the Board of Directors.

C - Reviewing the Group's risk management policies before approving it by the Board of Directors.

D - 

E - 

F - Ensuring the use of modern methods in managing and evaluating the Group's risks.

G - Reviewing periodic risk management reports.

H - 

Ensuring the availability of policies and a framework for managing the necessary risks, programmed

and tools, with annual reviews as a minimum to ensure their effectiveness and amending them if

necessary.

Ensuring that adequate and appropriate support is provided to the Risk Management Function to

perform its tasks in accordance with the approved policies and procedures and the instructions of the

Central Bank of Jordan.
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The Group has set the supervisory levels (defense lines) to manage risk at the Group’s level, by setting the

general framework for these levels as follows:

Business Units: Employees within the business units represent the first line of defense and are

directly responsible for managing risks and evaluating control procedures related to them.

Risk Management Function: The risk management staff represents one of the elements of the second

defense line and they are responsible for coordinating the risk management efforts and facilitating the

process of supervising the mechanisms used and followed by the Group to manage the risks.

Compliance Department: Compliance Department is another component of the second line of defense.

Compliance Department staff are concerned with ensuring compliance with laws, regulations,

instructions, orders, codes of conduct, standards and sound banking practices.

Internal Audit: The internal audit staff represents the third line of defense and are responsible for

conducting the independent review of the control procedures, processes, and systems associated with

risk management at the Group’s level.

The Group formed a risk and compliance management committee emanating from the Board of Directors,

this committee is concerned with risk management to ensure that all risks to which the Group is exposed or

may be exposed, are managed in an efficient manner to mitigate its impact on the various activities of the

Group and to ensure the proper functioning of its management, and its consistency with the Group’s

strategy to maximize equities and maintain the Group’s growth within the approved risk framework the

committee has the following main tasks:

Reviewing the Group's acceptable risks documents and before approving it by the Board of Directors.



I-

J-

K-

L-

M - Ensuring the independence of the risk management.

A - 

B - 

C - 

D - 

E - 

F - 

G - 

Ensuring that there is an integrated general framework for internal control, improving it when necessary,

and reviewing compliance with the corporate governance manual.

Verifying that sufficient qualified human resources are available to comply with compliance management

and to train them and is responsible for assessing the performance of the compliance manager and staff and

determining their remuneration.

Adopting the compliance control policy, money laundering and terrorist financing policy, and evaluating the

degree of effectiveness with which the Bank manages the compliance department at least once a year and

reviewing it when making any changes to it.

Monitoring and following up the implementation of the compliance policy and verifying compliance with

the Group's internal policies, international standards and related.
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Reviewing the related parties ’dealings with the Group and giving recommendations to the Board of

Directors before concluding them.

Reviewing and approving any disclosures in the annual report related to risks and internal control systems.

Ensuring full compliance with the laws, regulations, policies and orders that the Group’s business is subject

to and the existence of a general framework for correct professional behavior and monitoring the Group’s

compliance and commitment to implementing the provisions of the legislation in force and the

requirements of regulatory authorities.

Reviewing the methodology by which the expected credit loss is calculated and submitted to the Board for

approval.

Verifying the existence and application of effective internal control systems, internal credit rating systems,

and automated systems for calculating expected credit losses and appropriate screening and verification

procedures so that this system is able to reach results within adequate hedging against expected credit risks.

Ensuring that there is an independent body that has the power to decide on exception or amendment on the

calculation of ECL and to present these cases to the Board of Directors or its relevant committees at its first

meeting and to obtain its approval.

Reviewing the internal evaluation methodology of the Group’s capital adequacy and submitting the same to

the Board of Directors for approval, so that this methodology is comprehensive, effective and capable of

identifying all risks that the Bank may face and take into account the Group’s strategic plan and capital

plan. Reviewing this methodology periodically and verifying its application and ensuring that the bank

maintains sufficient capital to meet all the risks it faces.

As for compliance management, the Committee aims to add value to the Group’s operations by improving the

effectiveness of risk management, internal control systems and corporate governance, through ensuring that the

Group and its internal policies comply with all laws, regulations, instructions, orders, codes of conduct,

standards, and sound banking practices issued by local and international oversight bodies and reporting to the

Board of Directors on the Group’s compliance, the Committee carries out the following main tasks:



H - 

I - 

J - Reviewing and approving compliance programmers and plans annually.

- Risk Identification.

- Risk Assessment.

- Risk Control Mitigation.

- Risk Monitoring.

41/ A  Credit Risk

1 - 

Reviewing clients’ complaints reports and making sure that appropriate measures

are taken to follow up on these complaints.

Approving a document of acceptable risks, setting credit limits for credit risks and

monitoring them periodically to mitigate the credit risks that the Group can be 
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Taking the necessary measures to enhance the values of integrity and sound

professional practice within the Bank in a manner that makes compliance with

applicable laws, regulations, instructions, orders and standards a primary goal to

be achieved.

In addition, the bank has established an Executive Risk Management Committee, tasked

with overseeing efforts to manage all types of risks that the bank may encounter, as

well as enhancing and supporting the regulatory environment within the group. This

committee also discusses recent events related to group risks, and reviews new laws

and regulations in this regard.

The Risk Management Function undertakes the process of managing the Bank's various

risks on a daily basis (credit, operating and market risks) within the general framework

of the approved risk management policies, through:

Noting that the Group adheres to the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan related

to each of the Basel III decisions and the process of (ICAAP) in addition to the

requirements of stress tests and the requirements of the IFRS No. (9).

Credit risk is defined as: “the probability that the principal or interest will not be

recovered on time and completely, resulting in a financial loss for the Group.

Given the importance of credit risks as the largest part of the risks to which the Group

is exposed in general, the Group has given credit management great importance by

activating the appropriate tools to monitor and identify these risks at the level of the

credit portfolio. To achieve this, the Group, based on its risk management strategy,

conducted the following:



2 - 

- Through the system, the clients’ credit rating is obtained as follows:

• Large corporate

• SMEs

-

-

-

-

3 - 

4 - Preparing and conducting stress testing for credit risk.

5 - 

- Specific powers of approval of granting credit

-

-

121

Approved business policies and procedures that cover the approved basis for managing

credit related operations and which include the following:

Defining the tasks and responsibilities of all parties and departments related to the

credit granting process.

Defining the necessary supervisory reports and statements that ensure that activities

related to credit granting operations are monitored and followed up by the various

departments involved in credit granting operations.

The Group implements a credit risk rating system from Moody’s for clients of major

companies and commercial companies, which would reflect on the quality of the credit

portfolio and help in making appropriate credit decisions as follows:

Classification of clients on the system to ten levels, where the rating scores are

distributed from 1 (high quality companies with few risks) to 10 (classified company

not preforming), as the classification system includes classification of performing

debts within (7) degrees and non-performing.

Analyzing the borrower’s risks as per economic sector, management, financial

status, experience, etc.

Analyzing client’s data and financial statements to extract the most important

financial ratios and indicators that help in making credit decisions.

There is a specific matrix for each credit rating on the Moody’s system, as the rating

is correlated with the likelihood of default corresponding to that rating.

Mitigating credit risk through credit risk mitigators (cash, real estate, shares or other

guarantees) that are commensurate with the credit risk to which the Group is exposed

and in a manner that ensures that appropriate guarantees are met.



6 - 

- Specialized committees for the approval of credit.

- Specialized departments for reviewing credit.

- Specialized departments for managing credit.

- A specialized unit for legal documentation.

- Specialized departments for following up the collection of receivables and past-due debts.

7 - 

8 - 

- Descriptive disclosure (IFRS 9)

Duties and responsibilities of the board of directors and its (related committees):

-

-

-

-

-
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The existence of departments and committees to manage credit granting operations, in a

manner that ensures separation of duties between the various business departments and the

credit monitoring and reviewing of credit risk management departments, as follows:

The Group ensures that it is committed to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan

regarding credit concentrations in addition to preparing and monitoring credit

concentrations and declaring banking risks to the Group's customers.

Sound and appropriate legal and credit documentation for all conditions associated with

credit facilities, including legal documentation required for the Group’s guarantees.

Provide an appropriate governance’s structure and procedures that ensure the proper

application of the standard by defining the role of the committees, department and units.

Approval or rejection of exceptional cases and the justifications in which amendments are

requested to the outputs of calculate (ECL).

Ensuring that the control units in the bank, in particular the risk management and the

internal audit department , curry out all the necessary work to verify the correctness and

integrity of the methodologies and systems used in the framework of implementing (IFRS

9) and work to provide the necessary support for these control units .

Adopting the mythology through which the expected credit losses (ECL) are calculated

according to the requirements of (IFRS 9).

Adopting a business models/model through which the objectives and bases for the

acquisition and classification of financial instruments are defined, in a manner that

guarantees integration with other business requirements.



-

-

- Detailed explanation of the Group internal credit rating system and it work: 

- Through the system, the credit rating of customers is obtained as follows: 

· Large companies

· Small and medium size companies

-

-

-

-

General framework for the application of the requirements of IFRS (9):

-

1.
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The audit committee verifies the adequacy of the expected credit loss (impairment

loss) allocated by the Group.

The Group implements a credit risk rating system for MOODY’S for large corporate and

commercial companies, which would be reflected in the quality of the credit portfolio and

assist in making appropriate credit decision as follows: 

Reviewing the methodology by which the expected credit loss (ECL) is calculated, or

any amendments that was submitted to the Board of Directors.

Based on INVESTBANK’s keenness to adhere to the IFRS (9), and based on the

instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan regarding the implementation of the IFRS

(9), INVESTBANK implemented the standard within the following:

Engaging with a specialized company to provide necessary consultations on the

application of the standard.

Classification of customers on the system into ten levels, where the classification

degrees are distributed from 1 (High quality companies with low risk) to 10

(companies classified as non-operating), where the classification systems includes

the classification of operating debts within (7) grades and non-operating working

with (3) grades.

Analyzing customer data and financial statements to extract the most important

financial ratios and indicators that help in making decisions fiduciary.

There is specific matrix for each credit rating on the system (MOODY’S) where the

rating is linked with the probability of default corresponding to this rating.

Analyzing borrower risks by economic sector, management, financial status,

experience … etc.



2. Purchasing an automated system specialized to apply the standard requirements.

3.

4.

5.

- Stage 1: This represents the expected credit loss weighted with PD for credit

exposure/ debt instrument during the next (12) months, as credit exposures/

debt instruments have been included in this item, which did not have a

significant increase or affecting its credit risks since the initial recognition of

exposure/ instrument or that which has low credit risk at the date of

preparing the financial statements, and credit risk is considered low if the

conditions mentioned within the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan

based on the requirements of the standard are met, and examples of these

indicators include the following:

· Low default risk.

· The debtor has a high ability in the short term to meet commitments.

- Stage 2: This stage includes credit exposure/ debt instruments, which had a

significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition but have not yet

reached a default stage due to the lack of objective evidence to establish

default. The expected credit loss for the entire lifetime of the credit exposure/

debt instrument is calculated as the ECL resulting from all PDs over the

remaining time period of the credit exposure/ debt instrument.

- Stage 3: The Bank is taking into account the indicators included in the

instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan, which is derived from the

requirements of the standard relative to the classification of credit exposures/

debt instruments within this stage. Examples of these indicators are as follows:

124

Recognizing (classifying) all credit exposures/ debt instruments that are subject

to the measurements and calculation of ECL within one of the following stages:

Developing the framework document for the implementation of the standard and

its approval by the Board of Directors.

Contracting with another specialized company, and independent third party, to 

evaluate the general framework documents for the application.



●

● The existence of clear indications that the debtor is near bankruptcy.

●

6.

-

ECL = PD% x EAD (JOD) x LGD%

ECL: : Expected credit loss

PD: Probability of default

EAD: Exposure at Default 

LGD: Loss Given Default

- Scope of application/ ECL:

-

● Loans and credit facilities (direct and indirect).

● Debt instruments carried at amortized cost.

● Debt instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.

● Financial guarantees provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

● Receivables related to leases are within the requirements of IAS (17) and IFRS (16).

● Trade receivables.

●

The calculation of ECL depends on the PD, which is calculated according to credit risk

and economic factors, and the LGD ratio, which is based on the collectible value of the

collateral, the EAD. Accordingly, the Bank adopted the following mathematical model

to calculate the ECL in accordance with IFRS No. (9). The following equation applies

to all exposures as follows:
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In accordance with the requirements of IFRS (9), ECL measurement model is applied

within the following framework (except as measured at fair value through the

consolidated statement of profit or loss):

Non-compliance with contractual conditions such as the existence of maturities

equal to or greater than (90) days.

The mechanism adopted to calculate expected credit losses (ECL) on financial 

instruments for each item:

In addition to the indicators received in the instructions of the Central Bank No.

2009/47.

Credit exposures to banks and financial institutions [excluding current balances

used to cover bank transactions such as remittances, guarantees and credits

within a very short period of time (days)].



7. Calculation of the PD: The Group calculates the PD according to the following data:

-

-

8.

● Credit exposure type.

● Balance of credit exposure.

9.
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Economic indicators and macroeconomic factors (GDP, unemployment and

inflation, real interest rates) to be used in calculating ECL (PD) were taken into 

With regard to clients who are treated on an individual basis and classified

through the credit rating system, the PD extracted from the credit rating system

has been relied upon as a calibration of the default rates on the system to align

with the requirements of the standard and after taking into account the historical

defaults data of the Group. 

Calculation of (EAD): The Group has taken the following data into account when

calculating EAD:

Calculating LGD, as the Group made the calculation by analyzing historical data of

the Group's recovery rates (recovery rates), after taking into consideration a set of

factors, the most important of which are the nature of guarantees and products and

clients’ classification. Accordingly, LGD ratios have been developed either on

individual level for clients classified through the credit rating system or at collective

basis for exposures that bear similar characteristics to clients not rated on the credit

rating system.



1-

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

On-Balance Sheet Items:

Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 122,237,382 68,447,555

Balances at banks and financial institutions 46,206,056 73,657,044

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 7,088,366 3,544,932

Credit facilities:

Individuals 385,574,480 320,853,057

Real estate mortgage 117,821,249 123,419,048

corporates

Large corporate 276,047,666 278,389,694

SMEs 35,958,043 33,358,217

government and public sector 245,451,960 93,599,640

Bills and bonds:

Financial assets at amortized cost 369,724,473 231,184,848

Other assets 41,443,762 20,957,446

Total On-Balance Sheet Items: 1,647,553,437 1,247,411,481

Off-Balance Sheet Items:

Guarantees 58,420,394 62,167,820

Letters of credit 20,456,188 14,019,628

Acceptances and time-drawings 4,239,346 5,490,386

Unutilized direct credit facilities limits 18,042,102 24,771,030

Unutilized indirect credit facilities limits 26,897,392 31,395,217

Total off-Balance sheet items 128,055,422 137,844,081

Total 1,775,608,859 1,385,255,562

1 - Cash margins.

2 - Bank guarantees accepted.

3 - Real estate guarantees.

4 - Mortgage of shares traded.

5 - Mortgage of vehicles and machineries.

6 - Collateral of funded goods
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To hedge the credit exposures mentioned above, the Bank uses the following mitigators and within 

specific conditions in the Bank's credit policy:

Credit risk exposures (after provision for impairment, interest in suspense, collaterals and other risk 

mitigation)



2 - Distribution of credit exposure by risk degree:

The credit exposures are distributed according to the risk degrees as per the following table:

Retail

Real estate 

loans Large corporate SMEs

Government and 

public sector

Banks and 

other financial 

institutions Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

2023

Low risk 6,017,787       -               13,583,792     92,511          678,147,512     -               697,841,602      

Acceptable risk 362,306,889  107,601,230 296,760,143   35,863,937  26,176,554      81,993,977   910,702,730      

Of which are matured (*):

Up to 30 days 215,071          303,635        2,730,970      12,762          -                  -               3,262,438          

31 to 60 days 176,932          253,461        822,461          22,162          -                  -               1,275,016          

Watch list 12,952,099     14,828,432   4,906,490      3,112,080     -                  -               35,799,101        

Non-performing:

Sub-standard 4,775,503       738,546        273,403          533,484       -                  -               6,320,936         

Doubtful 7,519,168       120,125         18,443,204     774,812        -                  -               26,857,309       

Defaulted 23,282,209    3,404,939    19,461,629     11,531,747    -                  -               57,680,524       

Total 416,853,655   126,693,272 353,428,661   51,908,571   704,324,066   81,993,977   1,735,202,202   

Expected credit loss 25,243,712     5,964,599    20,152,133      11,892,057   -                  8,703            63,261,204        

Interests in suspense 6,035,463      2,907,424    11,386,203     4,058,471    -                  -               24,387,561        

Net 385,574,480  117,821,249  321,890,325   35,958,043  704,324,066   81,985,274   1,647,553,437   

The credit exposures (financial assets and financial investments) are distributed as per the credit rating:

Retail

Real estate 

loans Large corporate SMEs

Government and 

public sector

Banks and 

other financial 

institutions Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

2022

Low risk 8,309,792      -               332,140          2,243           313,479,056    -               322,123,231       

Acceptable risk 305,996,103  111,345,290  322,032,021   33,182,660  32,619,280      95,290,418   900,465,772     

Of which are matured (*): -                    

Up to 30 days 195,799          112,909        2,925,798       15,755          -                  -               3,250,261          

31 to 60 days 62,100            25,739          1,224,310       24,917          -                  -               1,337,066          

Watch list 6,556,860      14,524,513    10,246,153     4,710,123     -                  -               36,037,649       

Non-performing: -                    

Sub-standard 2,482,311       594,405       311,108           208,147       -                  -               3,595,971          

Doubtful 4,881,375       671,397        1,029,689       1,683,295     -                  -               8,265,756          

Defaulted 17,280,398     3,158,791      15,754,158      11,237,422   -                  -               47,430,769       

Total 345,506,839  130,294,396 349,705,269  51,023,890  346,098,336   95,290,418   1,317,919,148    

Expected credit loss 19,729,466     4,454,694    13,248,467     14,190,264   -                  8,390            51,631,281         

Interests in suspense 4,924,316       2,420,654    8,056,007      3,475,409    -                  -               18,876,386        

Net 320,853,057  123,419,048 328,400,795  33,358,217   346,098,336   95,282,028   1,247,411,481    
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704,324,066                            81,985,274                               

(BB+ to -B)

Less than (-B)

Unclassified 

704,324,066                             

-                                            

139,610                                      

-                                            

42,819,091                                -                                            

Companies

Credit rating

(AAA to -AA) 

(A+ to -A) 

(BBB+ to -BBB)

Government and public sector Financial institutions 

-                                            

-                                            

-                                            

4,772,048                                  

33,753,015                                 

501,510                                      



The credit exposures (financial assets and financial investments) are distributed as per the credit rating:

Credit rating

(AAA to -AA) 

(A+ to -A) 

(BBB+ to -BBB)

(BB+ to -B)

Less than (-B)

Unclassified 

*

Credit exposures include facilities, bank balances and deposits, as well as financial assets.

The following is the distribution of the fair value of collaterals provided against facilities:

Retail
Real estate 

loans
Large corporate SMEs Total

JD JD JD JD JD

2023

Collaterals against:

Low risk 6,017,787      -                 13,583,792      92,511            19,694,090           

Acceptable risk 98,565,997    114,318,843   222,653,574    21,455,878    456,994,292         

Watch list 181,445          74,587           13,858,769      225,698         14,340,499           

Non-performing:

Sub-standard 2,899,728      993,688         88,547             198,563         4,180,526             

Doubtful 3,086,880     305,350         12,965,697      55,214            16,413,141             

Defaulted 6,801,359      2,677,445      888,547          532,471          10,899,822           

117,553,196  118,369,913  264,038,926  22,560,335   522,522,370        

Including:

Cash margins 6,017,787      -                 13,583,792      92,511            19,694,090           

Real estate 79,461,397    118,369,913   215,414,557     11,213,710      424,459,577         

Trade stocks -                402,145           -                402,145                

Vehicles and equipment 32,074,012    34,638,432     11,254,114     77,966,558           

117,553,196  118,369,913  264,038,926  22,560,335   522,522,370        

2022

Collaterals against:

Low risk 8,309,792      -                 332,140           2,243             8,644,175             

Acceptable risk 156,984,269  129,389,175   230,391,445    20,425,247    537,190,136          

Watch list 51,254            48,474           13,521,226       352,958         13,973,912            

Non-performing: -                  -                

Sub-standard 2,562,147      452,362         55,222             257,829         3,327,560             

Doubtful 3,813,250      152,365          259,658           31,433            4,256,706             

Defaulted 8,811,039      252,020         166,588           379,854         9,609,501             

180,531,751  130,294,396 244,726,279   21,449,564   577,001,990        

Including:

Cash margins 8,311,748       -                 332,140           2,243             8,646,131              

Real estate 89,656,338    130,294,396  206,536,998   9,922,547      436,410,279         

Trade stocks -                -                 311,254            -                311,254                 

Vehicles and equipment 82,563,665    -                 37,545,887      11,524,774     131,634,326          

180,531,751  130,294,396 244,726,279   21,449,564   577,001,990        

Government and public sector Financial institutions 

The entire debt balance is considered due in the event of a premium or interest being due, and the overdraft

accounts is considered receivable and due if the ceiling is exceeded the limit.

9,847,122                                    

346,098,336                              

346,098,336                             

46,686,585                                 

7,893,443                                   

7,055,061                                    

-                                              

23,799,817                                  

95,282,028                                

-                                             

-                                             

-                                             

-                                             

-                                             
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The fair value of collateral is valued upon granting the facilities based on the valuation techniques usually

adopted for these collaterals, and in subsequent periods the value is updated at market prices or the prices of

similar assets.

Companies



- Rescheduled debts

- Restructured debt

3 - Bills, bonds and notes

2023

Rating grade

Within financial 

assets at fair 

value through 

statement of P&L

Within 

financial assets 

at amortized 

cost Total

JD JD JD

Unrated -                      31,096,000      31,096,000      

Rated (A - B+) -                      1,993,749         1,993,749         

According to the Bank's internal rating -                      -                   -                   

Governmental and under its guarantee -                      336,634,724     336,634,724     

Total -                      369,724,473    369,724,473    

2022

Rating grade

Within financial 

assets at fair 

value through 

statement of P&L

Within 

financial assets 

at amortized 

cost Total

JD JD JD

Unrated -                      43,588,733       43,588,733       

Rated (A - B+) -                      3,544,974         3,544,974         

According to the Bank's internal rating -                      -                   -                   

Governmental and under its guarantee -                      184,051,141      184,051,141      

Total -                      231,184,848    231,184,848    

These are the debts that were previously classified as non-performing credit facilities and were taken

out of the framework of non-performing credit facilities under a fundamental schedule and classified

as watch list debt or transferred to performing and they amounting to 8,971,403 as at December 31,

2023 compared to JD 9,403,335 as at December 31, 2022

Restructuring means re-arranging the status of credit facilities in terms of adjusting the premiums,

extending the life of credit facilities, postponing some of the instalments or extending the grace period,

amounting to JD 66,740,644 as at December 31, 2023 compared to JD 131,601,799 for the year 2022.
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The following table shows the classifications of bills, bonds and notes according to the external rating

institutions and the internal classification of the Bank:



Distribution of credit exposures

Bank’s internal rating grade

Rating category as per 

the instructions (47/ 

2009)

 Gross amount 

of exposure

Expected 

credit losses 

(ECL)

Probability of Default 

(PD)

Rating according 

to external rating 

institutions

Exposure at 

default (EAD)

Loss given 

default 

(LGD)%

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Performing exposures

1 Performing exposures 232,502,615     -                 ( 00.00% - 00.92% ) - 232,502,615    3.98%

2+ Performing exposures -                   -                 - - - -

2 Performing exposures 8,780,163         -                 ( 00.00% ) - 8,780,163        2.70%

2- Performing exposures 9,318,966         2,102              ( 00.00% - 00.92% ) - 9,318,966        3.15%

3+ Performing exposures 17,854,733       8,638             ( 00.00% - 06.01% ) - 17,854,733      3.14%

3 Performing exposures 36,358,782       927                ( 00.00% - 01.21% ) - 36,358,782      2.85%

3- Performing exposures 41,230,624       5,927              ( 00.00% - 01.21% ) - 41,230,624      7.04%

4+ Performing exposures 41,611,241        759,549         ( 00.00% - 04.31% ) - 41,611,241       8.89%

4 Performing exposures 65,639,242       53,099           ( 00.00% - 31.51% ) - 65,639,243      13.05%

4- Performing exposures 26,786,204      32,517            ( 00.00% - 38.57% ) - 26,786,204     3.47%

5+ Performing exposures 10,421,296       20,923           ( 00.04% - 04.31% ) - 10,421,296      4.24%

5 Performing exposures 76,759,977       198,516          ( 00.07% - 77.33% ) - 76,759,976      13.86%

5- Performing exposures 40,910,236       777,201          ( 00.00% - 04.31% ) - 40,910,237      2.66%

6+ Performing exposures 9,227,493         71,902            ( 00.01% - 04.31% ) - 9,227,493        8.10%

6 Performing exposures 14,774,861       77,522            ( 00.04% - 16.22% ) - 14,774,861      10.05%

6- Performing exposures 48,978,392      983,021          ( 00.00% - 85.67% ) - 48,978,392     11.47%

7+ Performing exposures 1,364,185         17,950            ( 04.31% - 18.37% ) - 1,364,184        4.78%

7 Performing exposures 12,623,108       981,332          ( 04.31% - 100.00% ) - 12,458,453      11.23%

7- Performing exposures 14,559,623       2,369,944      ( 04.31% - 74.88% ) - 12,986,913      2.57%

Unclassified Performing exposures 940,172,142     7,194,293       ( 00.00% - 100.00% ) ( +3 - 7-) 939,749,323    11.33%

Gross performing exposures/ current year 1,649,873,883  13,555,363     1,647,713,699 

Gross performing exposures/ comparative year 1,328,254,665  11,489,184     1,324,271,287  
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Bank’s internal rating 

grade

Rating category as per the 

instructions (47/ 2009)

 Gross amount 

of exposure

Expected 

credit losses 

(ECL)

Probability 

 of Default 

(PD)

Rating 

according to 

external rating 

institutions

Exposure at 

default (EAD)

Loss given 

default (LGD)%

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Non-performing exposures

8 Sub-standard 850,563             279,946         ( 100.00% ) - 826,858             21.7%

Unclassified Sub-standard 5,491,226          1,507,464      ( 100.00% ) - 5,364,957          22.7%

9 Doubtful 18,951,949        2,874,134      ( 100.00% ) - 14,348,156         3.6%

Unclassified Doubtful 8,046,385         3,899,792      ( 100.00% ) - 7,610,481          44.6%

10 Defaulted 25,262,174        17,626,094    ( 100.00% ) - 18,591,033         53.2%

Unclassified Defaulted 33,058,941        24,033,290   ( 100.00% ) - 22,692,376        81.6%

Total non-performing exposures/ current year 91,661,238        50,220,720   69,433,861        

Total non-performing exposures/ comparative year 59,813,870        40,895,380   44,920,862       

Total exposures/ current year 1,741,535,121     63,776,083    1,717,147,560    

Total exposures/ comparative year 1,388,068,535   52,384,564    1,369,192,149    
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4. Total distribution of exposures by financial instruments

Item Financial

Manufacturin

g Trade Real Estate Agricultural Individuals

Government 

and public 

sector Other Total

Interest in 

suspense Provision Net

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Balances at banks and financial institutions46,206,874     -              -               -               -                 -                     -                -               46,206,874      -             818             46,206,056      

deposit at banks and financial institutions7,090,000      -              -               -               -                 -                     -                -               7,090,000       -             1,634          7,088,366        

Credit facilities 49,903,387     55,449,598 109,449,987 156,246,416 195,993          418,890,184       245,451,960  112,405,935  1,147,993,460 24,387,561  62,752,501 1,060,853,398 

bonds and Bills: -                  -                   

Within financial assets at amortized cost2,000,000      -              -               -               -                 -                     301,634,724  66,596,000  370,230,724    -             506,251      369,724,473    

Other Assets -                 -              -               441,618        -                 -                     -                41,093,087   41,534,705      -             90,943       41,443,762       

Total/ current year 105,200,261    55,449,598 109,449,987 156,688,034 195,993          418,890,184       547,086,684 220,095,022 1,613,055,763  24,387,561  63,352,147 1,525,316,055  

Total/ comparative year 124,905,549   65,972,110  111,615,647  170,928,291 826,259          337,940,494       277,650,781  159,638,700 1,249,477,831  18,876,386 51,637,940 1,178,963,926  

guarantees 10,962,745     3,454,339   8,452,170     17,441,532    1,150,839       5,000                 8,560,401     8,644,408    58,671,434      -             251,040      58,420,394      

Letters of credit 18,715,704      674,569      848,465       92,516          -                 -                     -                128,753        20,460,007     -             3,819          20,456,188      

Acceptances and time-drawing 1,243,302       205,156       -               2,795,835     -                 -                     -                -               4,244,293        -             4,947          4,239,346        

Other obligations (un-utilized) 1,611,587        9,623,339   14,390,648   6,871,096     -                 415,883              9,292,570     2,898,501     45,103,624      -             164,130      44,939,494      

Including direct credit limits 714,537           6,548,667   8,120,309     510,806        -                 415,883              -                1,839,227     18,149,429      -             107,327      18,042,102       

Including indirect credit limits 897,050          3,074,672   6,270,339     6,360,290    -                 -                     9,292,570     1,059,274     26,954,195      -             56,803       26,897,392      

Grand total/ current year 137,733,599    69,407,001 133,141,270  183,889,013 1,346,832       419,311,067        564,939,655 231,766,684 1,741,535,121   24,387,561  63,776,083 1,653,371,477   

Grand total/ comparative year 147,771,451     81,438,243  148,280,258 196,693,488 1,927,516        339,032,315       296,249,762 176,675,503 1,388,068,536 18,876,386 52,384,564 1,316,808,007 

 B. Distribution of exposures by classification stages under (IFRS 9):

Item Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total

Interest in 

suspense Provision Net

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Financial 136,096,025   -              716,239        -               921,335          137,733,599        122,602         856,926        136,754,071     

Manufacturing 55,944,026     -              8,399,913     -               5,063,062       69,407,001         1,633,774      3,711,189      64,062,038     

Trade 99,189,523     -              23,760,016   -               10,191,731      133,141,270        4,026,713      9,960,361     119,154,196     

Real Estate 132,517,588    -              40,042,112   -               11,329,313      183,889,013       4,787,124      8,986,894    170,114,995     

Agricultural 1,142,445        -              183,163        -               21,224            1,346,832           2,483            20,861          1,323,488        

Individuals 382,786,974   -              18,476,706   -               18,047,387     419,311,067        2,052,817      10,304,616   406,953,634    

Government and public sector 564,939,655   -              -               -               -                 564,939,655       -                -               564,939,655    

Other 134,756,357    -              41,119,726    -               55,890,601     231,766,684       11,762,048    29,935,236   190,069,400   

Grand total/ current year 1,507,372,593 -              132,697,875 -               101,464,653   1,741,535,121      24,387,561    63,776,083   1,653,371,477  

Grand total/ comparative year 1,183,946,877 -              121,393,384 -               82,728,275     1,388,068,536    18,876,386   52,384,564   1,316,808,007 
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5. Total distribution of exposures by geographical areas:

Item Inside the Kingdom Europe Asia Africa America Other countries Total Provision Net

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institution
27,343,457             1,785,931            16,977,641           -                       -                       -                        99,845                 46,206,874           -                         818                  46,206,056            

deposit at banks and financial 

institutions
7,090,000              -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       7,090,000            -                         1,634               7,088,366               

Credit facilities 1,147,993,460        -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       1,147,993,460      24,387,561            62,752,501     1,060,853,398        

Bills, bonds and notes: -                        -                          

Within financial assets at 

amortized cost
370,230,724          -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       370,230,724         -                         506,251           369,724,473           

Other Assets 41,534,705             -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       41,534,705           -                         90,943            41,443,762             

Grand total/ current year 1,594,192,346        1,785,931            16,977,641           -                       -                       -                        99,845                 1,613,055,763       24,387,561            63,352,147      1,525,316,055         

Grand total/ comparative year 1,183,396,936        4,179,511            38,016,755          89,887                 -                       23,140,320            654,422               1,249,477,831       18,876,386            51,637,940     1,178,963,926        

Financial guarantees 58,671,434             -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       58,671,434           -                         251,040          58,420,394             

Letters of credit 20,460,007            -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       20,460,007          -                         3,819               20,456,188             

Acceptances and time-drawings 4,244,293              -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       4,244,293             -                         4,947              4,239,346               

Other obligations (un-utilized 

credit limits)
45,103,624             -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       45,103,624           -                         164,130           44,939,494             

Including direct credit limits 18,149,429             -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       18,149,429            -                         107,327           18,042,102             

Including indirect credit limits 26,954,195             -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       26,954,195           -                         56,803            26,897,392             

Total/ current year 1,722,671,704        1,785,931            16,977,641           -                       -                       -                        99,845                 1,741,535,121        24,387,561            63,776,083     1,653,371,477         

Total/ comparative year 1,321,987,641        4,179,511            38,016,755          89,887                 -                       23,140,320            654,422               1,388,068,536      18,876,386            52,384,564     1,316,808,007        

Distribution of exposures by classification stages under IFRS 9:

Item Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Inside the Kingdom 1,488,509,176        -                     132,697,875        -                       101,464,653         1,722,671,704       24,387,561          63,775,606           1,634,508,537       

Other Middle East 1,785,931               -                     -                       -                       -                       1,785,931              -                       -                        1,785,931               

Europe 16,977,641             -                     -                       -                       -                       16,977,641            -                       477                        16,977,164             

Asia -                         -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                        -                         

Africa -                         -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                        -                         

America -                         -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                        -                         

Other countries 99,845                    -                     -                       -                       -                       99,845                   -                       -                        99,845                   

Total/ current year 1,507,372,593        -                     132,697,875        -                       101,464,653         1,741,535,121        24,387,561          63,776,083           1,653,371,477        

Total/ comparative year 1,183,946,877        -                     121,393,384         -                       82,728,275          1,388,068,536      18,876,386          52,384,564           1,316,808,007       
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Distribution of fair value of collaterals against credit exposures:

A. Distribution of fair value of collaterals against gross credit exposures as at 31/12/2023 according to requirements of IFRS (9):

Cash margins Trade shares

Bank 

guarantees 

accepted Real estate

Vehicles and 

equipment Other

Gross amount of 

collaterals

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 46,206,874        -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     46,351,229        818                  

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 7,090,000         -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     7,090,000        1,634               

Credit facilities: 1,147,993,460    21,068,349    598,815            -                    166,862,930     874,738            30,060,389     219,465,221        996,143,553      62,752,501      

Individuals 416,853,655       9,585,350      -                   -                    6,430,549        649,416            -                  16,665,315          405,456,459     25,243,712      

Real estate loans 126,693,272       253,000         -                   -                    73,709,715       52,429              -                  74,015,144         63,061,788       5,964,599       

Large corporate 307,086,002      11,129,999     586,072           -                    85,495,944      65,355              12,628,720      109,906,090      235,547,820     19,652,133      

SMEs 51,908,571         100,000         12,743              -                    1,226,722         107,538            17,431,669      18,878,672         46,625,526       11,892,057      

Government and public sector 245,451,960      -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     245,451,960     -                  
-                     

Bills and bonds: 370,230,724      -                 3,136,806         -                    -                   -                   -                  3,136,806           367,093,918     506,251           

Including Financial assets at fair value 

through the statement of profit or loss
-                     -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  

Including  Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income
-                     -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     -                    -                  

Including Financial assets at amortized 

cost
370,230,724      -                 3,136,806         -                    -                   -                   -                  3,136,806           367,093,918     506,251           

-                     

Other assets 41,534,705         -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     41,534,705        90,943            

Total/ current year 1,613,055,763    21,068,349    3,735,621         -                    166,862,930     874,738            30,060,389     222,602,027       1,458,213,405   63,352,147      

Total/ comparative year 1,249,477,831    13,664,180     2,955,929         -                    217,132,841      6,102,336         28,238,194     268,093,480      1,059,063,123   51,637,940      

Financial guarantees 58,671,434         7,352,022       88,525              -                    13,734,579       -                   -                  21,175,126          46,972,192       251,040           

Letters of credit 20,460,007        13,335,324     -                   -                    1,814,487         -                   -                  15,149,811          7,403,878         3,819               

Acceptances and time-drawings 4,244,293          -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     4,244,292         4,947              

Other obligations (un-utilized credit limits) 45,103,624         -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     44,697,867       164,130           

Including direct credit limits 18,149,429         -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     17,800,475       107,327           

Including indirect credit limits 26,954,195         -                 -                   -                    -                   -                   -                  -                     26,897,392       56,803            

Grand total/ current year 1,741,535,121     41,755,695     3,824,146         -                    182,411,996     874,738            30,060,389     258,926,964      1,561,531,634   63,776,083     

Grand total/ comparative year 1,388,068,536   51,083,115      3,048,870        -                    227,779,039     6,102,336         28,238,194     316,251,554        1,176,737,206   52,384,564     
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Distribution of fair value of collaterals against credit exposures:

 B . Distribution of fair value of collaterals against gross credit exposures listed within (stage 3) as at 31/12/2022 according to requirements of IFRS (9):

Cash margins Trade shares

Bank 

guarantees 

accepted Real estate

Vehicles and 

equipment Other

Gross amount 

of collaterals

 JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD  JD 

Balances at banks and financial institutions -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Deposits at banks and financial institutions -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Credit facilities: 96,541,309     136,999       -                -                 20,225,743    265,302             1,040,988     21,669,032     81,470,614     51,714,921      

Individuals 36,025,000    107,000       -                -                 241,405         115,624              -                464,029         36,274,009    20,550,223     

Real estate loans 7,234,605      -              -                -                 1,948,889      42,140               -                1,991,029       4,919,290      2,948,086      

Large corporate 40,767,409    29,999         -                -                 17,778,563     -                    536,602        18,345,164     28,274,194     16,558,863     

SMEs 12,514,295     -              -                -                 256,886         107,538             504,386        868,810         12,003,121     11,657,749     

Government and public sector -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 
-                 

Bills and bonds: 4,096,000      -              3,136,806      -                 -                -                    -                3,136,806       959,194          500,000         

Including Financial assets at fair value through 

the statement of profit or loss -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Including  Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income
-                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Including Financial assets at amortized cost 4,096,000      -              3,136,806      -                 -                -                    -                3,136,806       959,194          500,000         

Other assets -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Total/ current year 100,637,309  136,999       3,136,806      -                 20,225,743    265,302             1,040,988     24,805,838    82,429,808    52,214,921     

Total/ comparative year 81,854,786     220,899       2,378,245      -                 21,538,310     6,102,336          1,229,134      31,468,924     55,312,176      44,715,964     

Financial guarantees 827,244         103,088       -                -                 -                -                    -                103,088          724,733          129,304          

Letters of credit -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Acceptances and time-drawings -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Other obligations (un-utilized credit limits) -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Including direct credit limits -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Including indirect credit limits -                 -              -                -                 -                -                    -                -                 -                 -                 

Grand total/ current year 101,464,553   240,087       3,136,806      -                 20,225,743    265,302             1,040,988     24,908,926    83,154,541     52,344,225     

Grand total/ comparative year 82,728,273     359,614       2,378,245      -                 21,538,310     6,102,336          1,229,134      31,607,639     56,047,547     44,869,670    
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6. Reclassified credit exposures:

A. Total credit exposures classified:

Item 

Gross Amount 

of Exposure

Exposures 

Reclassified

Gross Amount of 

Exposure

Exposures 

Reclassified

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions
                   -                     -                       -                     -                         -   -               

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions
                   -                     -                       -                     -                         -   -               

Credit facilities 118,037,262 57,125,373  96,541,308    22,872,946  79,998,319     37.28%

Bonds and Bills

Including financial assets at 

amortized cost
-               -              4,096,000     -               -                  -               

Other assets -               -              -                -               -                  -               

Total/ current year 118,037,262 57,125,373  100,637,308 22,872,946  79,998,319     36.58%

Total/ comparative year 109,509,781 51,790,390 81,854,787    14,562,735   66,353,125      34.67%

Financial guarantees 8,391,202     4,453,674   827,245         59,550         4,513,224        48.96%

Letters of credit 454,756        -              -                -               -                  -               

Acceptances and time-drawings 116,532         -              -                -               -                  -               

Other obligations (un-utilized 

credit limits)
4,174,166     1,745,689   -                -               1,745,689       41.82%

Including direct credit limits 1,606,315     500,000     -                -               500,000         31.13%

Including indirect credit limits 2,567,851     1,245,689   -                -               1,245,689       48.51%

Grand total/ current year 131,173,918  63,324,736 101,464,553  22,932,496  86,257,232     37.08%

Grand total/ comparative year 121,393,384 54,223,775  82,728,274   14,761,635   68,985,410     33.80%

B. Reclassified exposures of ECL:

Item 

Gross 

reclassified 

exposures to 

Stage 2 

Gross 

reclassified 

exposures to 

Stage 3

Gross 

reclassified 

exposures

Stage 2 

Individual Stage 2 Collective

Stage 3 

Individual

Stage 3 

Collective Total

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions
                   -                     -                       -                     -                         -                 -                    -   -             

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions
                   -                     -                       -                     -                         -                 -                    -   -             

Credit facilities 57,125,373   22,872,946 79,998,319    1,546,455                          -   455,421                    -   2,001,876   

Bills, bonds and notes:                    -                     -                       -                     -                         -                 -                    -                    -   

Within financial assets at 

amortized cost
                   -                     -                       -                     -                         -                 -                    -                    -   

other assets                    -                     -                       -                     -                         -                 -                    -                    -   

Total/ current year 57,125,373   22,872,946 79,998,319    1,546,455    -                  455,421   -              2,001,876   

Total/ comparative year 51,790,390   14,562,735  66,353,125    694,705       -                  489,298  -              1,184,003   

Financial guarantees 4,453,674    59,550        4,513,224      13,833          -                  1,282       -              15,115         

Letters of credit -               -              -                -               -                  -          -              -             

Acceptances and time-drawings -               -              -                -               -                  -          -              -             

Other obligations (un-utilized 

credit limits)
1,745,689     -              1,745,689      5,738           -                  -          -              5,738          

Including direct credit limits 500,000       -              500,000        4,545           -                  -          -              4,545          

Including indirect credit limits 1,245,689     -              1,245,689      1,193            -                  -          -              1,193           

Grand total/ current year 63,324,736   22,932,496 86,257,232    1,566,026    -                  456,703  -              2,022,729   

Grand total/ comparative year 54,223,775   14,761,635  68,985,410   700,279       -                  489,988  -              1,190,267   
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Distribution of the total ECL by classification stages:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions 818             -             -               -            -              818               

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions 1,634           -             -               -            -              1,634            

Credit facilities 3,564,540   -             7,473,040    -            51,714,921   62,752,501   

Financial assets at amortized cost 6,251           -             -               -            500,000      506,251        

Financial guarantees 55,774        -             65,963         -            129,303       251,040        

Un-utilized credit limits 87,527        -             76,603         -            -              164,130        

Letters of credit 6,583          -             2,183            -            -              8,766           

Other assets 90,943        -             -               -            -              90,943         

Total 3,814,070   -             7,617,789     -            52,344,224 63,776,083  

2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions 1,029          -             -               -            -              1,029            

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions 68               -             -               -            -              68                

Credit facilities 2,529,397   -             4,377,530    -            44,715,964  51,622,891   

Financial assets at amortized cost 7,293          -             -               -            -              7,293            

Financial guarantees 46,399        -             111,398         -            153,609       311,406        

Un-utilized credit limits 220,875      -             137,679        -            97                358,651        

Letters of credit 70,404        -             6,163            -            -              76,567          

Other assets 6,659          -             -               -            -              6,659           

Total 2,882,124   -             4,632,770    -            44,869,670 52,384,564  
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Distribution of the total ECL on financial assets (deducted from the income statement) by classification stages:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions (211)                -              -               -            -                 (211)                 

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions 1,566              -              -               -            -                 1,566               

Credit facilities 1,035,143       -              3,095,510     -            7,152,542        11,283,195       

Financial assets at amortized cost (1,042)            -              -               -            500,000         498,958          

Financial guarantees 9,375              -              (45,435)        -            (24,306)          (60,366)           

Un-utilized credit limits (133,348)        -              (61,076)         -            (97)                  (194,521)          

Letters of credit (63,821)          -              (3,980)          -            -                 (67,801)           

Other assets 84,284           -              -               -            -                 84,284            

Total 931,946         -             2,985,019    -            7,628,139       11,545,104      

2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balances at banks and financial 

institutions 992                -              -               -            -                 992                 

Deposits at banks and financial 

institutions 68                  -              -               -            -                 68                   

Credit facilities (707,000)       -              1,391,768     -            7,042,171        7,726,939       

Financial assets at amortized cost (17,602)          -              -               -            (680,000)        (697,602)         

Financial guarantees (30,876)          -              (113,377)        -            (417,734)         (561,987)         

Un-utilized credit limits (3,434)            -              (241,273)       -            97                   (244,610)         

Letters of credit 37,969           -              3,905            -            -                 41,874             

Other assets (2,293)            -              -               -            -                 (2,293)             

Total (722,176)        -             1,041,023    -            5,944,534      6,263,381       
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41 / B Operational risk

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Preparing the procedures of stress testing of operational risk.

-

41 / Cـ Compliance risks:
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Preparing a policy for managing operational risks and adopting it by the Bank's Board

of Directors.

Preparing the Operational Risk Accountability Policy and approving it by the Bank’s

Board of Directors.

Building a database of events resulting from risks and operational errors.

Compliance risks are defined as the risks of legal and regulatory penalties, material loss

or reputation risks to which the Bank may be exposed due to non-compliance with laws,

regulations, instructions, orders, codes of conduct, standards and sound banking practices.

Expressing an opinion on work procedures to state the risks contained therein and

adequacy of control procedures associated with them.

Providing the risk management committees (the Risk Management Committee of the

Board of Directors and the Executive Risk Management Committee) with the necessary

reports.

Applying an automated system for operating risk management (core system) to

implement the methodology of self-assessment of risks and control procedures.

This represents the “loss resulting from the failure or inadequacy of internal procedures,

human element, systems, or external events. This definition includes legal risk.

The Invest Bank adopted the Control and Risk Self-Assessment methodology for managing

operational risks through the use of an automated system designed for this purpose (CARE 

System). The Invest Bank manages operational risk within the following data:

Preparing the Invest Bank Anti-Fraud Policy and approving it by the Bank’s Board of

Directors.

Preparing the Reputable Risk Management Policy and approving it by the Bank’s Board

of Directors.

Creating risk profiles (risk profile) through which risks and control measures that

limit them are identified for the important departments of the Bank, and work is

underway to complete all the Bank’s departments within the plans of approved work

programs.



41 / D Market Risk

1- Value at Risk  (VaR).

2- Stress Testing .

3- Stop Loss Limit.

4- Monitoring open financial positions in foreign currencies.
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Non-compliance with the instructions and laws issued by the various supervisory

authorities is considered one of the most important risks that any bank can be exposed

to, due to the large financial losses resulting from violating these instructions and laws,

which in turn are reflected in the bank's reputation. Recent years witnessed a significant 

increase in issuing instructions and laws related to organizing the work of various

institutions. In view of this, the need to manage compliance risks across the Bank has

become an imperative, as the existence of the compliance function leads to increased

efficiency in risk management and a reduction in the costs to which the Bank may be

exposed as a result of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Market risks are defined as the risks that affect the value of investments and financial

assets of the Bank resulting from a change in market factors (such as interest rates,

exchange rates, stock prices, commodity prices ...).

The Bank monitors market risks through the use of appropriate methodologies to

evaluate and measure these risks in addition to conducting stress tests based on a set of

assumptions and changes in different market conditions and according to the

instructions of the regulatory authorities. These methods include:

VaR is determined by using special calculation models such that the standard

deviation is calculated and then VaR is at the confidence levels (99% - 95%) of

the total investment portfolio and the ratio is extracted via dividing the result

by equity.



D / 1 Interest rate risk

- Sensitivity analysis:

31 December 2023

Currency

Change of increase in interest 

rate (percentage point)

Sensitivity of interest and 

profit and (loss) income

Sensitivity of 

equity

% JD JD

US Dollar 2 226,482                            -                 

Euro 2 (197,027)                           -                 

Sterling Pound 2 (2,499)                              -                 

JPY 2 16                                     -                 

Other currencies 2 21,168                               -                 

Currency

Change of (decrease) in 

interest rate (percentage 

point)

Sensitivity of interest and 

profit and (loss) income

Sensitivity of 

equity

% JD JD

US Dollar 2 (226,482)                          -                 

Euro 2 197,027                            -                 

Sterling Pound 2 2,499                                -                 

JPY 2 (16)                                    -                 

Other currencies 2 (21,168)                             -                 

31 December 2022

Currency

Change of increase in interest 

rate (percentage point)

Sensitivity of interest and 

profit and (loss) income

Sensitivity of 

equity

% JD JD

US Dollar 2 (181,228)                           -                 

Euro 2 (13,400)                            -                 

Sterling Pound 2 (2,325)                               -                 

JPY 2 37                                     -                 

Other currencies 2 12,452                              -                 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility of a change in interest rates and thus affects cash flows

or the fair value of financial instruments. The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk due to the

existence of a time gap for re-pricing between assets and liabilities. These gaps are monitored

periodically by ALCO.
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Currency

Change of 

(decrease) in 

interest rate 

(percentage point)

Sensitivity of 

interest and profit 

and (loss) income

Sensitivity 

of equity

٪ JD JD

US Dollar 2 181,228                   -             

Euro 2 13,400                     -             

Sterling Pound 2 2,325                       -             

JPY 2 (37)                          -             

Other currencies 2 (12,452)                    -             

D / 2 Currency risk

2023

Currency

Change (increase) 

in exchange rate

Impact on profit 

and loss

Impact on 

equity

٪ JD JD

Euro +5 (492,568)                 159,301      

Sterling Pound +5 (6,247)                     -             

JPY +5 39                            -             

Other currencies +5 72,014                     18,577        

2022

Currency

Change (increase) 

in exchange rate

Impact on profit 

and loss

Impact on 

equity

٪ JD JD

Euro +5 (33,499)                   103,585      

Sterling Pound +5 (5,813)                      -             

JPY +5 92                            -             

Other currencies +5 31,131                      17,930        

The table below shows the currencies that the Bank is exposed to and the effect of a

possible and reasonable change on their prices against the Jordanian Dinar on the

statement of profit or loss, given that the currency centers are monitored on a daily basis

to verify they remain within the specified ceilings and the market risk unit submits a daily

report thereon to the Head of Risk Management Function.

In the case that there is a negative change in the exchange rate, the effect will be equal

to the change above, with a reversed sign.
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D / 3 Risk of change in shares prices:

2023

Index

Change in index

(٪)

Impact on profit and 

loss

Impact on 

quity

Amman market index 5 -                           (1,177,644)     

Palestine market index 5 -                           (91,828)          

International markets index 5 -                           (653,351)        

2022

Index

Change in index

(٪)

Impact on profit and 

loss

Impact on 

quity

Amman market index 5 -                           (1,188,905)     

 Palestine market index 5 -                           (105,121)         

International markets index 5 -                           (570,499)       
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It is the risk of a decrease in the fair value of the shares portfolio because of the change in the

value of shares indices and the change in the value of individual shares



- Re-pricing interest gap: 

The following  shows interest rate re-pricing or maturity dates, whichever is earlier:

Interest rate sensitivities are as follows:

Less than 1 

month 1 to 3 months 3 to 6 months

6 months to 1 

year 1 to 3 years

3 years and 

above

Non-interest-

bearing Total

31 December 2023

Assets:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 122,237,382     -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 15,361,075       137,598,457       

Balances at banks and financial Institutions 33,947,510      -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 12,258,546       46,206,056        

Deposit at banks and financial Institutions -                  -                    -                    7,088,366        -                 -                 -                  7,088,366          

-                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 
2,799               2,799                 

Direct credit facilities - net 32,010,037      70,756,260       105,069,412      116,548,305     396,048,363  340,421,021   -                  1,060,853,398   

-                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 63,441,895      63,441,895        

Financial assets at amortized cost 4,999,986       13,000,520       25,601,413        15,440,420       158,694,951   151,987,183    -                  369,724,473      

Property and equipment- net -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 31,440,219       31,440,219         

Intangible assets -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 3,815,941         3,815,941           

Deferred tax assets -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 19,943,770      19,943,770        

Right of use of leased assets -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 4,068,172        4,068,172          

Other assets -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 71,343,006      71,343,006        

Assets held for sale -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 145,188            145,188              

Total assets 193,194,915     83,756,780       130,670,825     139,077,091     554,743,314   492,408,204  221,820,611     1,815,671,740    

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 27,722,000      -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 24,359,563      52,081,563        

Customers’ deposits 247,445,063    211,640,028     235,632,230     251,903,804     21,711,820     -                 210,246,709    1,178,579,654    

Cash margins 726,973           4,218,077         6,586,897         6,495,240         20,405,471     18,031,702     -                  56,464,360        

Borrowed funds 2,940,512        12,552,223        42,020,504       110,647,099     68,738,744    20,477,244     -                  257,376,326      

Bonds 1,050,000       -                    -                    16,670,000      -                 -                 -                  17,720,000        

Lease liabilities 55,054             145,073             191,334             356,600           1,250,001       1,106,011        -                  3,104,073          

Sundry provisions -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 680,760           680,760             

Income tax provision -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 8,228,335        8,228,335          

Deferred tax liabilities -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 1,345,153         1,345,153           

Other liabilities -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 27,660,513       27,660,513        

Liabilities directly connected to assets held for sale -                  -                    -                    -                   -                 -                 335                  335                    

Total Liabilities 279,939,602    228,555,401     284,430,965     386,072,743     112,106,036   39,614,957     272,521,368     1,603,241,072    

Repricing interest gap (86,744,687)    (144,798,621)    (153,760,140)    (246,995,652)   442,637,278  452,793,247   (50,700,757)     212,430,668      

31 December 2022

Total assets 166,212,587     106,166,185      109,982,579     139,196,150      356,867,537   321,420,375   228,174,733     1,428,020,146   

Total Liabilities 248,891,622    155,085,716      169,508,556     296,415,804     97,825,657     33,682,814     231,161,804     1,232,571,973    

Re-pricing interest gap (82,679,035)    (48,919,531)      (59,525,977)      (157,219,654)    259,041,880  287,737,561   (2,987,071)       195,448,173       

Re-pricing interest gap
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Financial assets at fair value through statement of 

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income



- Foreign currency risk:

2023 US Dollar Euro GBP JPY Others Total

Item

Assets:

15,569,964    608,745      446,927      -            654,954       17,280,590    

28,997,421    7,662,003   2,703,982   102,472     1,396,107     40,861,985    

7,088,366     -              -             -            -              7,088,366      

1                    -              2,798          -            -              2,799             

Direct credit facilities - net 37,710,835    199,117        84,862        -            74,977         38,069,791    

11,717,575     3,186,016    -             -            371,547        15,275,138     

Financial assets at amortized cost 114,331,291   -              -             -            -              114,331,291    

Other assets 30,477,940   17,396         9,628          7,622         1,085           30,513,671     

Total assets 245,893,393 11,673,277   3,248,197   110,094     2,498,670    263,423,631   

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 24,936,740   4,046,864   -             -            77,644         29,061,248    

Customers’ deposits 176,605,898 14,997,150  3,340,259   109,309     1,353,771     196,406,387  

Cash margins 25,199,456    749,005      12,823        -            7,066           25,968,350    

Borrowed funds 7,270,795      -              -             -            -              7,270,795      

Other liabilities 556,389        1,731,609    20,056        -            1,801           2,309,855      

Total liabilities 234,569,278 21,524,628  3,373,138    109,309     1,440,282    261,016,635   

11,324,115     (9,851,351)   (124,941)     785            1,058,388    2,406,996      

45,062,539   2,750,065    -             -            427,877       48,240,481    
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Net concentration in the statement of financial 

position

Contingent liabilities off the statement of 

financial position

Currency (equivalent to JD)

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through statement 

of profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income



2022 US Dollar Euro GBP JPY Others Total

Assets:

17,139,135       725,931         293,859      -            547,737        18,706,662      

37,881,622     15,802,104    5,112,612     89,887      3,648,652    62,534,877      

3,544,932       -                -              -            -               3,544,932        

1                      -                -              -            -               1                       

Direct credit facilities - net 23,191,393      156,706         61,596         -            64,671          23,474,366      

10,829,279     2,683,121      -              -            362,355        13,874,755      

Financial assets at amortized cost 91,412,162      -                -              -            -               91,412,162       

Other assets 14,360,954     17,893           10,042        8,040        996              14,397,925      

Total assets 198,359,478   19,385,755    5,478,109   97,927       4,624,411     227,945,680   

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 7,987,276       464,709        -              -            125,556        8,577,541        

Customers’ deposits 171,116,461     17,197,051    5,571,214    96,087      3,865,257    197,846,070    

Cash margins 17,281,641      737,847        12,127         -            7,841            18,039,456      

Borrowed funds 10,828,557     -                -              -            -               10,828,557      

Other liabilities 206,958          1,656,137      11,022         -            3,139            1,877,256        

Total liabilities 207,420,893   20,055,744   5,594,363   96,087      4,001,793    237,168,880    

(9,061,415)      (669,989)      (116,254)      1,840         622,618       (9,223,200)      

42,420,824     2,396,818     -              -            537,610        45,355,252      

Currency (equivalent to JD)

147

Financial assets at fair value through statement 

of profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

Net concentration in the statement of financial 

position

Contingent liabilities off the statement of 

financial position



41 / E Liquidity risk

Noting that the Bank prepares the procedures of stress testing of operational risk.

First:

Less than 1 

month 1 to 3 Months 3 to 6 Months

6 months to 1 

year 1 to 3 Years

3 years and 

above

Non-matured 

elements Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

31 December 2023

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 52,243,020     -                   -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  52,243,020               

Customers’ deposits 329,177,224    248,984,648   270,086,011    286,114,864    66,793,853     -                  -                  1,201,156,600           

Cash margins 728,463          4,231,043        6,647,642        6,615,039        21,158,196      19,362,022      -                  58,742,405               

Borrowed funds 2,958,975       12,670,445      43,207,801      116,899,805    76,507,644    25,105,948      -                  277,350,618              

Bonds 1,056,729       -                   -                   17,631,447      -                 -                  -                  18,688,176                

Operating lease liabilities 55,054            145,073            191,334            356,600          1,250,001       1,106,011         -                  3,104,073                  

Sundry provisions -                  -                   -                   -                  -                 -                  680,760         680,760                    

Income tax provision 1,768,578       6,459,757        -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  8,228,335                  

Deferred tax liabilities -                  -                   -                   -                  -                 -                  1,345,153        1,345,153                   

Other liabilities 2,355,178        16,777,293       -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  19,132,471                 

Liability directly associates with assets held for sale -                  335                   -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  335                            

Total liabilities 390,343,221   289,268,594   320,132,788    427,617,755    165,709,694  45,573,981      2,025,913       1,640,671,946           

Total assets 228,821,861   83,756,780      130,670,825    139,077,091    554,743,314   492,408,204   186,193,665   1,815,671,740           

Less than 1 

month 1 to 3 Months 3 to 6 Months

6 months to 1 

year 1 to 3 Years

3 years and 

above

Non-matured 

elements Total

31 December 2022 JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 26,835,919     12,070,785      -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  38,906,704               

Customers’ deposits 290,558,651   160,580,545    141,379,816     241,532,767    60,886,410    -                  -                  894,938,189             

Cash margins 1,229,883       3,180,714         4,408,929       4,686,488       11,928,516      11,989,275      -                  37,423,805                

Borrowed funds 12,624,138      12,055,210       53,302,100      67,488,548     69,789,357     25,601,764      -                  240,861,117              

Bonds -                  -                   -                   14,539,750      -                 -                  -                  14,539,750                

Operating lease liabilities 93,271             131,342            146,560           339,720           1,179,379        1,103,787        -                  2,994,059                 

Sundry provisions -                  -                   -                   -                  -                 -                  421,029          421,029                     

Income tax provision 3,753,214        5,629,822        -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  9,383,036                 

Deferred tax liabilities -                  -                   -                   -                  -                 -                  3,981,771        3,981,771                   

Other liabilities 1,788,140        13,138,861       -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  14,927,001                

Liability directly associates with assets held for sale -                  2,360               -                   -                  -                 -                  -                  2,360                         

Total liabilities 336,883,216   206,789,639   199,237,405    328,587,273    143,783,662   38,694,826     4,402,800      1,258,378,821           

Total assets 212,429,878   106,166,185     109,982,579    139,196,150    356,867,537   321,420,375    181,957,021    1,428,019,725           

Liquidity risk is the Bank’s inability to provide the necessary financing to fulfil its liabilities at their maturity dates. In order to prevent these risks, the Bank adopts a conservative policy in

managing liquidity risk, which includes managing assets and liabilities, aligning and analyzing their maturities, and meeting short or long-term maturities of assets and liabilities with a

sufficient balance of cash and cash equivalents and negotiable securities. The cash liquidity is reviewed and managed periodically and at several levels. According to the instructions issued

by the Central Bank of Jordan, the Bank maintains cash reserves with the Central Bank of Jordan to reduce liquidity.
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The table below summarizes the distribution of liabilities (not discounted) based on the remaining time period for contractual maturity at the date of the consolidated financial

statements.



Second: Items off the statement of financial position: 

Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

JD JD JD JD

31 December 2023

24,695,534                    -                                -                                24,695,534                    

Utilized credit limits 44,939,494                   -                                -                                44,939,494                   

Guarantees 56,600,642                   1,288,002                     531,750                         58,420,394                   

Capital commitments 581,964                         -                                -                                581,964                         

126,817,634                  1,288,002                     531,750                         128,637,386                  

31 December 2022

19,510,014                    -                                -                                19,510,014                    

Utilized credit limits 56,166,247                    -                                -                                56,166,247                    

Guarantees 58,818,354                    2,817,716                       531,750                         62,167,820                    

Capital commitments 431,216                          -                                -                                431,216                          

134,925,831                  2,817,716                       531,750                         138,275,297                  

(42) Segment analysis

(A) Information on the Bank’s segments and subsidiaries:

-

-

-

- Financial leasing services: include granting customers credit facilities and other services.

-
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The Bank is organized for administrative purposes. This is used by the general manager and decision makers of the Bank through

three main business sectors shown below. The Bank also owns subsidiaries that are specialized in the following areas: financial

brokerage services, financial leasing services, operating services and management of bounded warehouses.

Corporates’ accounts: Includes handling deposits, credit facilities, and other credit facilities granted to customers services

related to corporates’ customers.

Letters of credits and acceptances

Letters of credits and acceptances

Retail accounts: Includes handling individual customers' deposits, and providing credit facilities, credit cards and other services.

Treasury: Includes providing trading and treasury services and the management of the Bank's funds.

Operating and managing bonded warehouses: includes providing operating services and managing the bonded warehouses.



The following is information on the Bank's business sectors distributed by according to activity:

Individuals Corporate Treasury Financial Leasing 

Bonded 

Management Others 2023 2022

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Gross income 42,285,600     25,949,158      7,328,489      1,290,100              1,881,645               901,322             79,636,314                63,694,357         

(5,520,022)      (5,403,958)      -                (202,608)               (156,607)                -                    (11,283,195)                (7,726,939)          

-                   -                   (500,313)        -                         -                         238,404            (261,909)                    1,463,558           

Bargain on purchase of a subsidiary -                   -                   -                -                         -                         -                    -                             3,596,992           

Sundry provisions -                   -                   -                -                         -                         (273,448)           (273,448)                    (17,427)               

Segment operations results 36,765,578      20,545,200      6,828,176      1,087,492              1,725,038               866,278            67,817,762                61,010,541          

Undistributed expenditures -                   -                   -                (1,345,645)             (1,646,859)             (31,655,017)       (34,647,521)               (31,046,570)        

Profits before taxes 36,765,578      20,545,200      6,828,176      (258,153)                78,179                    (30,788,739)      33,170,241                 29,963,971         

Income tax -                   -                   -                33,033                   (18,095)                  (8,185,127)         (8,170,189)                 (9,570,577)          

-                   -                   -                -                         -                         -                    -                             (143,374)             

Net Income for the year 36,765,578      20,545,200      6,828,176      (225,120)                60,084                   (38,973,866)      25,000,052               20,250,020        

#REF! -                      

Individuals Corporate Treasury Financial Leasing 
Bonded 

Management
Others 2023 2022

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Sector’s assets 464,370,705    589,599,962    623,166,248  109,215,450           25,673,035             -                    1,812,025,400           1,407,191,996     

Assets not distributed on sectors -                   -                   -                -                         -                         3,501,152           3,501,152                   20,682,500        

Assets held for sale -                   -                   -                145,188                  -                         -                    145,188                      145,229              

Total assets 464,370,705    589,599,962    623,166,248  109,360,638          25,673,035             3,501,152           1,815,671,740            1,428,019,725    

#REF!

Sector’s liabilities 749,388,432    503,556,265    70,792,601    87,119,749             21,621,248             -                    1,432,478,295           1,101,105,041     

liabilities not distributed on sectors -                   -                   -                -                         -                         170,762,442      170,762,442              131,464,151         

-                   -                   -                335                         -                         -                    335                             2,360                  

Total liabilities 749,388,432    503,556,265    70,792,601    87,120,084            21,621,248             170,762,442      1,603,241,072           1,232,571,552     

Capital expenditures 5,478,515                   3,908,664          

Depreciation and amortization 3,667,863                  3,076,229           

(B) Information on the geographical distribution.
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Total

For the year ended 31 December

(Provision for) reversed from expected 

credit loss provision on financial assets 

and off-balance sheet items

For the year ended 31 December

Expected Credit Loss against direct 

credit facilities at amortized cost

Total

Loss for the period from discontinued 

operations - net of tax

Liabilities associated with assets held 

for sale

The Bank performs most of its activities and operations inside the Kingdom which represent local activities. Accordingly, most of the Bank’s revenues, assets and capital expenditures are in the

Kingdom.



(43) Capital Management

(A) Description of what is considered to be capital:

Regulatory qualified capital comprises the following elements:

•

1- Common equity tier 1. (CET1).

2- Additional Tier 1 (AT1).

•

•

(B) Regulatory requirements for capital, and how to meet these requirements:

1-

2-

3-

(C) How to achieve capital management objectives:

Tier 1 of capital (capital that guarantees the going concern). This comprises the

following:

Tier 2 (T2) is the capital used in case of failure of going concern (liquidation).

The minimum of (CET1) should not be less than (6%) of the risk weighted assets.

The minimum of (Tier 1) should not be less than (7.5%) of the risk weighted assets.

The minimum (CAR) should not be less than (12%) of the risk weighted assets.
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Each of the three types of capital (CET1, AT1, T2) has a specific set of criteria that a

financial instrument must meet before including it in the relevant category.

The bank is also committed, according to Article (62) of the Banking Law, to deduct

annually 10% of its net profit to the legal reserve account and continues to deduct it

until the reserve reaches the equivalent of the Bank’s subscribed capital.

The management of the Bank aims to achieve the goals of managing the Bank’s capital,

achieving a surplus in operating profits and revenues, and optimizing the operation of

available sources of funds in order to achieve the targeted growth in shareholders’

equity through growth in the legal reserve, realized profits and retained earnings. 

When entering into investments, effects on the capital adequacy ratio are carried and

capital and adequacy are monitored periodically as the capital adequacy ratio is

calculated by the Risk Management. 

The capital adequacy ratio is calculated according to the instructions of the Central

Bank of Jordan based on Basel III decisions as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December

2022. 

Banks must meet the minimum capital requirements in relation to risk-weighted

assets, and they should be as follows:



(D) Liquidity coverage ratio:

•

•

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

In Thousands JDs In Thousands JDs

Total high-quality liquid assets before adjustments 410,399               275,863               

Total high-quality liquid assets after adjustments 410,399               275,863               

Total cash outflows 208,476              247,236               

Total cash inflows before applying the 75% ceiling 70,755                 68,213                 

Total cash inflows after applying the 75% ceiling 70,755                 68,213                 

Net cash outflows 137,721                179,023               

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 298.0٪ 154.1٪

The average liquidity coverage ratio in total for the consolidated financial statements based

on the end of monthly average amounted to (394.4%) as of 31 December 2023, against

(209.9%) as of 31 December 2022. 

The average liquidity coverage ratio in JD for the consolidated financial statements based on

the end of monthly average was (379.1%) as of 31 December 2023 against (228.1%) as of 31

December 2022. 
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(D) The amount the Bank considers as capital and capital adequacy ratio according to the table below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

JD JD

Primary capital items for common shares

Subscribed capital (paid-in) 100,000,000         100,000,000         

Retained earnings (less any restricted amounts) 59,376,259            47,547,498            

8,766,780              6,435,777               

Statutory reserve 37,075,439            34,583,047            

Total primary capital for common shares 205,218,478          188,566,322           

Regulatory amendments (deductions from capital):

Goodwill and intangible assets (3,815,941)             (3,063,082)             

Deferred tax assets resulting from debts provisions (19,943,770)           (18,853,869)           

Dividend expected to be distributed (10,000,000)          (10,000,000)          

-                         -                         

Net common shareholders 171,458,767           156,649,371           

Capital (Tier 2)

3,814,070              2,881,699               

Total cushion capital 3,814,070              2,881,699               

Regulatory amendments (deductions from capital):

-                         -                         

Net cushion capital (Tier 2) 3,814,070              2,881,699               

Total regulatory capital 175,272,837           159,531,070           

Total risks weighted assets 1,206,850,747       1,119,484,052        

Capital adequacy ratio (%) 14.52٪ 14.25٪

Percentage of ordinary shareholders’ equity (%) 14.21٪ 13.99٪

Basic capital percentage (%) 14.21٪ 13.99٪
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Financial assets revaluation reserve-net

Investments affecting the capital of banks, financial 

companies and insurance companies in which the Bank 

owns less than 10%

Provisions balance against debt instruments included in 

(Stage 1) not exceeding 1,25% of total credit risk 

weighted assets according to the standard method

Investments affecting the capital of banks, financial 

companies and insurance companies in which the Bank 

owns less than 10%



(44) Analysis of Maturities of Assets and Liabilities

Up to 1 year Over 1 year Total

31 December 2023 JD JD JD

Assets:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 137,598,457       -                    137,598,457         

Balances at banks and financial institutions 46,206,056        -                    46,206,056          

Deposit at banks and financial institutions 7,088,366          -                    7,088,366            

2,799                  -                    2,799                   

-                     63,441,895        63,441,895          

Financial assets at amortized cost 59,042,339         310,682,134      369,724,473        

Direct credit facilities - net 324,384,014       736,469,384      1,060,853,398     

Property and equipment- net 1,971,330            29,468,889       31,440,219           

Intangible assets 726,887              3,089,054         3,815,941             

Deferred tax assets 2,935,694           17,008,076        19,943,770          

Right of use assets 923,637              3,144,535           4,068,172            

Other assets 45,434,536         25,908,470        71,343,006          

Assets held for sale 145,188               -                    145,188                

Total assets 626,459,303       1,189,212,437    1,815,671,740      

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 52,081,563         -                    52,081,563          

Customers' deposits 1,116,385,362     62,194,292        1,178,579,654      

Cash margins 18,027,187         38,437,173         56,464,360          

Borrowed funds 168,160,338       89,215,988        257,376,326        

Bonds 17,720,000         -                    17,720,000          

Operating lease liabilities 748,061              2,356,012          3,104,073            

Sundry provisions -                     680,760            680,760               

Income tax provision 8,228,335           -                    8,228,335            

Deferred tax liabilities -                     1,345,153           1,345,153             

Other liabilities 27,660,513         -                    27,660,513          

Liabilities directly related to assets held for sale 335                     -                    335                      

Total liabilities 1,409,011,694    194,229,378      1,603,241,072      

Net (782,552,391)      994,983,059     212,430,668        
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The following table shows the analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected period of recovery or

settlement:

Financial assets at fair value through statement 

of profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income



Up to 1 year Over 1 year Total

31 December 2022 JD JD JD

Assets:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 84,081,624         -                  84,081,624       

Balances at banks and financial institutions 73,657,044         -                  73,657,044       

Deposit at banks and financial institutions 3,544,932           -                  3,544,932          

1                          -                  1                        

303,079,942       546,539,714    849,619,656     

Financial assets at amortized cost -                      61,794,622      61,794,622        

Direct credit facilities - net 99,436,650         131,748,198     231,184,848      

Property and equipment- net 1,969,133            28,138,997      30,108,130        

Intangible assets 707,745              2,355,337        3,063,082         

Deferred tax assets 2,260,832           16,593,037      18,853,869       

Right of use assets 24,901,793         42,956,623      67,858,416        

Other assets 886,382              3,221,890        4,108,272          

Assets held for sale 145,229               -                  145,229             

Total assets 594,671,307       833,348,418    1,428,019,725   

Liabilities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 38,730,800        -                  38,730,800       

Customers' deposits 824,006,548      57,698,264      881,704,812      

Cash margins 13,408,892         23,024,164      36,433,056       

Borrowed funds 140,591,916        84,376,986     224,968,902     

Bonds 13,960,000         -                  13,960,000       

Operating lease liabilities 710,893              2,283,166        2,994,059         

Sundry provisions -                      421,029           421,029             

Income tax provision 9,383,036           -                  9,383,036         

Deferred tax liabilities -                      3,981,771         3,981,771          

Other liabilities 19,992,148          -                  19,992,148        

Liabilities directly related to assets held for sale 2,360                  -                  2,360                

Total liabilities 1,060,786,593    171,785,380     1,232,571,973    

Net (466,115,286)      661,563,038    195,447,752      

(45) Accounts Managed For the Interest of Clients

There are no portfolios guaranteed by capital managed by the Bank or its subsidiaries for the interest of clients.
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Financial assets at fair value through statement of 

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income



(46) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As of 31 December 2023 JD JD JD JD

2,799                     -                        -                        2,799                     

38,006,500           -                        25,435,395            63,441,895            

38,009,299          -                        25,435,395           63,444,694          

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As of 31 December 2022 JD JD JD JD

1                            -                        -                        1                            

36,840,529           -                        24,954,093           61,794,622            

36,840,530          -                        24,954,093          61,794,623           

(47) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

-

-

The following table represents financial instruments carried at fair value based on the valuation method, where different levels are defined as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through statement of 

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through statement of 

profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income
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There are no material differences between the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value on the consolidated statement of

financial position and their book value recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Moreover, there are no material differences between the

fair value and the book value of the direct credit facilities, financial assets at amortized cost, banks and financial institutions eposits, customers’

deposits, cash margins and borrowed funds stated at amortized costs in consolidated financial statements, due to the immaterial difference in the

market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the contractual prices and due to the short terms of maturity of the banks and financial

institutions deposits. The fair value of financial assets at amortized cost is determined through the quoted prices if vailable or through the valuation

models used for fixed price bonds.

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

The other assets include non-financial assets, which represent real estate investments in subsidiaries (Jordan Trade Facilities Company and Bindar

Trade and Investment Company), and are not measured at fair value in the financial statements. The fair value of real estate investments within Level

2 amounted to 3,099,925 JD as of 31 December 2023, against 3,204,444 JD as of 31 December 2022.



(48)Contingent Liabilities  (Off-Balance Sheet)

(A) Credit commitments and contingencies:

259,807-         

Letters of credit

Acceptances and time withdrawals

Guarantees:

Payment

Performance bonds

Other

Unutilized direct credit facilities credit limits

Unutilized indirect credit facilities credit limits

Total

(B) Contractual liabilities:

Project construction contracts

Contingent liabilities movement per stage:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 125,833,613   -              11,883,604  -           873,488       138,590,705  

New exposures during the year/ Additions 43,023,253    -              3,348,430    -           -              46,371,683     

Matured / derecognized exposures (44,527,014)  -              (2,432,655)   -           (42,793)        (47,002,462)  

Transferred to stage 1 5,666,044     -              (5,666,044)  -           -              -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (6,136,363)     -              6,199,363    -           (63,000)       -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (11,550)          -              (48,000)       -           59,550         -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments (9,332,526)    -              (148,042)      -           -              (9,480,568)    

Written off balances -                -              -               -           -              -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -              -               -           -              -                 

114,515,457  -              13,136,656  -          827,245      128,479,358 

-                 

31,395,217                         

128,055,422                          

19,098,708                             

24,626,911                              

14,694,775                              

18,042,102                              

26,897,392                             

31 December 2023

JD

20,456,188                             

4,239,346                               

581,964                                   

31 December 2022

JD

14,019,628                        

5,490,386                          

17,727,592                         

27,585,564                        

16,854,664                        

24,771,030                        

137,844,081                     

431,216                              

Total

157

Total balance at the end of the year

2023

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

581,964                                  431,216                             



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 107,384,374  -              21,748,578  -          722,574        129,855,526   

New exposures during the year/ Additions 48,911,073    -              2,670,955    -          568               51,582,596     

(39,320,559)  -              (5,785,687)  -          (43,554)         (45,149,800)   

Transferred to stage 1 8,527,826     -              (8,522,826)  -          (5,000)          -                  

Transferred to stage 2 (2,433,385)    -              2,433,385    -          -               -                  

Transferred to stage 3 (138,400)       -              (60,500)       -          198,900        -                  

Changes resulting from adjustments 2,902,684     -              (600,301)     -          -               2,302,383       

Written off balances -                -              -              -          -               -                  

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -              -              -          -               -                  

125,833,613 -              11,883,604 -          873,488       138,590,705  

-                  
Expected credit loss provision on commitments and contingencies in the aggregate:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 337,678         -              255,240       -          153,706        746,624          

95,121            -              26,761         -          469               122,351           

(156,020)       
-              

(138,034)     
-          

(30,242)        (324,296)         

Transferred to stage 1 119,808         -              (119,808)     -          -               -                  

Transferred to stage 2 (9,932)           -              19,571          -          (9,639)          -                  

Transferred to stage 3 (20)                -              (1,262)          -          1,282            -                  

(152,470)        -              134,770       -          17,700          -                  

Changes due to adjustments (84,281)         -              (32,489)       -          (3,973)           (120,743)         

Written off balances -                -              -              -          -               -                  

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -              -              -          -               -                  

149,884        -              144,749      -          129,303        423,936         

-                  

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 

stages

Total balance at the end of the 

158

Matured / derecognized exposures

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2023

Impairment loss over new balances during 

the year

Total balance at the end of the 

2022 Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 334,019          -           605,985       -           571,343       1,511,347      

188,158           -           43,668         -           11,722         243,548        

(122,219)          
-           

(307,367)      
-           

(443,553)     (873,139)       

Transferred to stage 1 269,402          -           (265,218)      -           (4,184)         -               

Transferred to stage 2 (5,574)             -           5,574           -           -             -               

Transferred to stage 3 (145)                -           (545)             -           690             -               

(287,939)         -           251,707        -           36,232        -               

Changes due to adjustments (38,024)          -           (78,564)        -           (18,544)       (135,132)        

Written off balances -                  -           -               -           -             -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                  -           -               -           -             -               

337,678          -           255,240      -          153,706      746,624       

-                

Movement on commitments and contingent liabilities – Letters of credit:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 14,058,298     -           26,609         -           -             14,084,907   

New exposures during the year/ Additions 19,914,944      -           454,756       -           -             20,369,700  

(13,968,717)    -           (26,609)       -           -             (13,995,326)  

Transferred to stage 1 -                  -           -               -           -             -               

Transferred to stage 2 -                  -           -               -           -             -               

Transferred to stage 3 -                  -           -               -           -             -               

Changes resulting from adjustments 726                 -           -               -           -             726               

Written off balances -                  -           -               -           -             -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                  -           -               -           -             -               

20,005,251    -           454,756      -          -             20,460,007 

-                

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

2023

Total2022

Total balance at the end of the year

Impairment loss over new balances during the 

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three stages

Total balance at the end of the year

159

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Matured / derecognized exposures



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 5,177,498      -            106,832      -          -           5,284,330      

New exposures during the year/ Additions 13,343,976    -            26,609        -          -           13,370,585     

Matured / derecognized exposures (4,461,956)    -            (106,832)     -          -           (4,568,788)     

Transferred to stage 1 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Transferred to stage 2 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments (1,220)           -            -              -          -           (1,220)             

Written off balances -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -              -          -           -                 

14,058,298   -            26,609        -          -           14,084,907    

-                 

Movement on expected credit losses - letters of credit:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 59,730          -            5,549          -          -           65,279            

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 2,518             -            1,279           -          -           3,797              

(59,037)         -            (5,549)         -          -           (64,586)          

Transferred to stage 1 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Transferred to stage 2 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -              -          -           -                 

-                -            -              -          -           -                 

Changes due to adjustments (671)              -            -              -          -           (671)                

Written off balances -                -            -              -          -           -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -              -          -           -                 

2,540            -            1,279           -          -           3,819              

-                 
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Total

Total balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2023

2022 Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3

Total balance at the end of the year

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 

stages



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 11,223         -          934          -          -          12,157          

59,675        -          5,552       -          -          65,227         

(10,815)       -          (937)         -          -          (11,752)        

Transferred to stage 1 -             -          -          -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 2 -             -          -          -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 3 -             -          -          -          -          -              

-             -          -          -          -          

-              

Changes due to adjustments (353)           -          -          -          -          (353)             

Written off balances -             -          -          -          -          -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -             -          -          -          -          -              

Total balance at the end of the year 59,730       -          5,549      -          -          65,279        

Movement on contingent commitments and contingent liabilities - Acceptances and time withdrawals:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 5,442,062  -          59,612     -          -          5,501,674    

4,127,762   -          116,531    -          -          4,244,293   

Matured / derecognized exposures (5,442,063) -          (59,611)    -          -          (5,501,674)  

Transferred to stage 1 -             -          -          -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 2 -             -          -          -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 3 -             -          -          -          -          -              

Changes resulting from adjustments -             -          -          -          -          -              

Written off balances -             -          -          -          -          -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -             -          -          -          -          -              

4,127,761   -          116,532   -          -          4,244,293   

-              

Stage 2

Total2022

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three stages

Stage 3

Stage 1

Impairment loss over new balances during the 

year

Total balance at the end of the year
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

New exposures during the year/ Additions



2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 5,662,223      -            151,130       -           -          5,813,353     

New exposures during the year/ Additions 5,442,063     -            59,611         -           -          5,501,674     

Matured / derecognized exposures (5,662,224)    -            (151,129)      -           -          (5,813,353)   

Transferred to stage 1 -                -            -             -           -          -               

Transferred to stage 2 -                -            -             -           -          -               

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -             -           -          -               

Changes resulting from adjustments -                -            -             -           -          -               

Written off balances -                -            -             -           -          -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -             -           -          -               

5,442,062    -           59,612        -           -          5,501,674    

-               

Movement on expected credit loss provision - acceptances and time withdrawals:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,674           -            614             -           -          11,288          

4,044            -            904             -           -          4,948           

(10,675)         -            (614)            -           -          (11,289)         

Transferred to stage 1 -                -            -             -           -          -               

Transferred to stage 2 -                -            -             -           -          -               

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -             -           -          -               

-                -            -             

-           

-          

-               

Changes due to adjustments -                -            -             -           -          -               

Written off balances -                -            -             -           -          -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -             -           -          -               

4,043            -           904            -           -          4,947           

-               

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Stage 3

Stage 1 Stage 2

Total balance at the end of the year

Impairment loss over new balances during 

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 

stages

Total balance at the end of the year
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2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 21,212          -              1,324         -          -            22,536         

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 10,673          -              615            -          -            11,288         

(21,211)         -              (1,325)        -          -            (22,536)       

Transferred to stage 1 -               -              -            -          -            -              

Transferred to stage 2 -               -              -            -          -            -              

Transferred to stage 3 -               -              -            -          -            -              

-               -              -            -          -            -              

Changes due to adjustments -               -              -            -          -            -              

Written off balances -               -              -            -          -            -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -               -              -            -          -            -              

Total balance at the end of the year 10,674         -             614            -         -            11,288         

Movement on contingent commitments and contingent liabilities - letters of guarantee:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 54,010,186   -              7,596,120  -          872,920     62,479,226  

New exposures during the year/ Additions 14,998,270  -              1,111,587   -          -            16,109,857  

Matured / derecognized exposures (17,659,891)  -              (1,872,277) -          (42,225)     (19,574,393) 

Transferred to stage 1 2,702,011     -              (2,702,011) -          -            -              

Transferred to stage 2 (4,390,674)   -              4,453,674  -          (63,000)     -              

Transferred to stage 3 (11,550)         -              (48,000)     -          59,550       -              

Changes resulting from adjustments (195,365)      -              (147,891)    -          -            (343,256)     

Written off balances -               -              -            -          -            -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -               -              -            -          -            -              

Total balance at the end of the year 49,452,987 -             8,391,202 -         827,245    58,671,434 

-              
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Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– due 

to reclassification between the three stages

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total



2022 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 58,841,229    -               13,011,615   -           722,574       72,575,418     

New exposures during the year/ Additions 15,630,734    -               1,208,954   -           -              16,839,688     

Matured / derecognized exposures (22,213,952)   -               (3,552,058)  -           (43,554)       (25,809,564)   

Transferred to stage 1 4,356,255      -               (4,351,255)   -           (5,000)         -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (1,472,260)     -               1,472,260    -           -              -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (138,400)       -               (60,500)      -           198,900       -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments (993,420)       -               (132,896)     -           -              (1,126,316)       

Written off balances -                 -               -              -           -              -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                 -               -              -           -              -                 

54,010,186   -               7,596,120   -           872,920      62,479,226    

Movement on expected credit loss provision – letters of guarantee:

2023 Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 46,399           -               111,398       -           153,609       311,406           

44,049           -               16,536         -           469              61,054            

(26,906)         -               (43,709)       -           (30,145)        (100,760)        

Transferred to stage 1 43,873           -               (43,873)       -           -              -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (4,194)            -               13,833         -           (9,639)         -                 

Transferred to stage 3 (20)                 -               (1,262)         -           1,282           -                 

(49,521)          -               31,821         -           17,700         -                 

Changes due to adjustments 2,094             -               (18,781)        -           (3,973)          (20,660)          

Written off balances -                 -               -              -           -              -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                 -               -              -           -              -                 

55,774           -               65,963        -           129,303      251,040         

-                  

Impairment loss over new balances during 

the year

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 

stages

Total balance at the end of the year
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Total

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Total balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 77,275           -          224,775     -          571,343   873,393       

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 73,485          -          26,906       -          11,625      112,016        

(59,187)         -          (116,617)     -          (443,553) (619,357)      

Transferred to stage 1 93,643          -          (89,459)     -          (4,184)     -              

Transferred to stage 2 (969)             -          969            -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 3 (145)              -          (545)           -          690         -              

(132,023)       -          95,791       -          36,232     -              

Changes due to adjustments (5,680)          -          (30,422)     -          (18,544)   (54,646)       

Written off balances -               -          -            -          -          -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -               -          -            -          -          -              

Total balance at the end of the year 46,399         -          111,398      -          153,609  311,406       

Movement on unutilized direct credit limits:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 22,925,788   -          2,108,137   -          568          25,034,493 

New exposures during the year/ Additions 2,464,156     -          696,800    -          -          3,160,956    

(2,608,346)   -          (337,171)     -          (568)        (2,946,085)  

Transferred to stage 1 1,431,616      -          (1,431,616)  -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 2 (500,000)      -          500,000    -          -          -              

Transferred to stage 3 -               -          -            -          -          -              

Changes resulting from adjustments (7,170,100)    -          70,165       -          -          (7,099,935)  

Written off balances -               -          -            -          -          -              

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -               -          -            -          -          -              

Total balance at the end of the year 16,543,114   -          1,606,315  -          -          18,149,429 

-               

Matured / derecognized exposures
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Total2022

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 

stages

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2023

Stage 3

Stage 1 Stage 2



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 19,311,011      -          2,668,734    -          -          21,979,745     

New exposures during the year/ Additions 1,230,771       -          1,051,735     -          568          2,283,074       

(4,308,887)    -          (723,711)       -          -          (5,032,598)     

Transferred to stage 1 1,310,675       -          (1,310,675)   -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (31,176)          -          31,176          -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments 5,413,394      -          390,878       -          -          5,804,272       

Written off balances -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 22,925,788   -          2,108,137    -          568         25,034,493   

Movement on expected credit loss provision - unutilized direct credit limits:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 166,858         -          96,508         -          97            263,463          

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 35,628           -          5,076           -          -          40,704           

(52,481)          -          (68,219)        -          (97)           (120,797)         

Transferred to stage 1 54,155            -          (54,155)        -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (4,545)            -          4,545           -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -          -              -          -          -                 

(77,943)          -          77,943         -          -          -                 

Changes due to adjustments (68,534)         -          (7,509)         -          -          (76,043)          

Written off balances -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 53,138           -          54,189        -          -          107,327          

-                  

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– due 

to reclassification between the three stages
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Stage 3

Stage 3 Total2022

Matured / derecognized exposures

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 1 Stage 2

Total2023



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 179,040        -            192,749       -          -          371,789       

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 22,367           -            13,277         -          97            35,741          

(12,313)          -            (78,091)       -          -          (90,404)       

Transferred to stage 1 41,492           -            (41,492)       -          -          -               

Transferred to stage 2 (1,114)            -            1,114            -          -          -               

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -              -          -          -               

(40,040)        -            40,040        -          -          -               

Changes due to adjustments (22,574)         -            (31,089)       -          -          (53,663)        

Written off balances -                -            -              -          -          -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -              -          -          -               

Total balance at the end of the year 166,858        -            96,508        -          97            263,463      

Movement on unutilized indirect facilities limits:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 29,397,279   -            2,093,126    -          -          31,490,405  

New exposures during the year/ Additions 1,518,121       -            968,756      -          -          2,486,877    

Matured / derecognized exposures (4,847,997)   -            (136,987)     -          -          (4,984,984)  

Transferred to stage 1 1,532,417      -            (1,532,417)   -          -          -               

Transferred to stage 2 (1,245,689)    -            1,245,689    -          -          -               

Transferred to stage 3 -                -            -              -          -          -               

(1,967,787)    -            (70,316)       -          -          (2,038,103)  

Written off balances -                -            -              -          -          -               

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -            -              -          -          -               

Total balance at the end of the year 24,386,344  -            2,567,851   -          -          26,954,195 

Total2023
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Changes resulting from adjustments

Stage 2

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– due 

to reclassification between the three stages

Stage 1

Stage 3

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2022



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Total balance at the beginning of the year 18,392,413     -          5,810,267    -          -          24,202,680    

New exposures during the year/ Additions 13,263,529    -          324,046       -          -          13,587,575     

Matured / derecognized exposures (2,673,540)    -          (1,251,957)   -          -          (3,925,497)     

Transferred to stage 1 2,860,896     -          (2,860,896)  -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (929,949)       -          929,949       -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Changes resulting from adjustments (1,516,070)     -          (858,283)     -          -          (2,374,353)      

Written off balances -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 29,397,279   -          2,093,126   -          -          31,490,405    

Movement on expected credit loss provision - unutilized indirect facilities limits:

Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 54,017           -          41,171          -          -          95,188            

8,882             -          2,966           -          -          11,848            

(6,921)            -          (19,943)        -          -          (26,864)          

Transferred to stage 1 21,780           -          (21,780)        -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (1,193)            -          1,193            -          -          -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                -          -              -          -          -                 

(25,006)         -          25,006         -          -          -                 

Changes due to adjustments (17,170)          -          (6,199)          -          -          (23,369)          

Written off balances -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                -          -              -          -          -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 34,389          -          22,414         -          -          56,803           

Impairment loss over new balances during 

the year

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– 

due to reclassification between the three 
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Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2023

Stage 1 Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2022



Individual Collective Individual Collective

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,269           -                 186,203         -                 -                 231,472          

Impairment loss over new balances during the year 21,958            -                 (2,682)            -                 -                 19,276            

(18,693)          -                 (110,397)         -                 -                 (129,090)        

Transferred to stage 1 134,267          -                 (134,267)        -                 -                 -                 

Transferred to stage 2 (3,491)            -                 3,491              -                 -                 -                 

Transferred to stage 3 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

(115,876)         -                 115,876          -                 -                 -                 

Changes due to adjustments (9,417)            -                 (17,053)          -                 -                 (26,470)          

Written off balances -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total balance at the end of the year 54,017           -                41,171            -                -                95,188           

(49) Lawsuits against the bank and its subsidiaries

 

Stage 2

Stage 3 Total2022

Recovered from impairment loss over settled 

balances (Repaid/Derecognized)

Stage 1
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Lawsuits raised against Trade Facilities for Financial Leasing (Subsidiary of Jordan Trade Facilities Company) amounted to JD 10,001 as of 31 December

2023 against JD 10,601 as of 31 December 2022. The total booked provisions against these lawsuits amounted to JD 65,000 as of 31 December 2023 against

JD 12,357 as of 31 December 2022. based on the management’s assessment and the Company’s legal consultant; no additional liabilities would rise from

these lawsuits.

Impact on provision –at the end of the year– due to 

reclassification between the three stages

Lawsuits raised against the Bank are mounted to JD 3,306,907 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 4,646,217 as at 31 December 2022. The total booked

provisions against these lawsuits amounted to JD 176,537 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 17,537 as at 31 December 2022. Based on the management’s

assessment and the Bank’s legal consultant, the Bank will not incur any additional liabilities with regard to these lawsuits.

The lawsuits raised against Jordan Trade Facilities amounted to JD 153,045 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 79,090 as of 31 December 2022. The total

booked provisions against these lawsuits amounted to JD 220,000 as of 31 December 2023 and as of 31 December 2022 Based on the management’s

assessment and the Company’s legal consultant, the company will not incur any additional liabilities with regard to these lawsuits.

The lawsuits raised against Tamkeen Financial Leasing amounted to JD 2,219,240 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 167,979 as of 31 December 2022. Based

on the management’s assessment and the Company’s legal consultant, the company will not incur any additional liabilities with regard to these lawsuits.

Additionally, there is a lawsuit raised against Al Istethmari Letamweel Selselat Al Imdad as of 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2022 and based on

the management’s assessment and the Company’s legal consultant, there is no need for the company to take any provisions against this case.



(50) Discontinued Operations

A- Assets held for sale and Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale

1- Jordanian Factoring Co. (Former subsidiary)

31 December 

2023

31 December 

2022

JD JD

Assets

Cash and balances at Banks -                    55,822           

Total assets held for sale                        -               55,822 

                       -             (55,822)

Total assets held for sale -                    -                

Liabilities

Other liabilities -                    -                

-                    -                

-                    -                

-                    -                
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Lawsuits raised against Bindar Trading and Investments Company (Subsidiary of the Bank) amounted

to JD 171,995 as of 31 December 2023 against JD 64,995 as of 31 December 2022. The total booked

provisions against these lawsuits amounted to JD 103,913 as of 31 December 2023, against JD 64,995 as

of 31 December 2022, based on the management’s assessment and the Company’s legal consultant; the

company will not incur any additional liabilities with regard to these lawsuits.

No lawsuits were raised against Bindar for Financial Leasing, Robou Alsharq, and Rakeen Investment

Company (Subsidiaries of Bindar for Trading and Investments Company) as of 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2022.

During the first half of 2022, the Bank's Board of Directors approved the liquidation of the Jordanian

Factoring Company, and accordingly, the Company's assets and liabilities were classified under a

separate item in accordance with the requirements of IFRS No. (5). The total assets of the company

amounted to zero JD as of 31 December 2023 against JD 55,822 as of 31 December 2022, and the total

liabilities of the company amounted to zero JD as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The

details of each of the company's assets and liabilities are as follows:

Total liabilities directly associated 

with assets held for sale

Total liabilities directly associated 

with assets held for sale

Eliminations as a result of transactions between 

the Company and the Bank

Eliminations as a result of transactions between 

the Company and the Bank



2- Bindar for Financial Leasing (under liquidation subsidiary)

31 December 

2023

31 December 

2022

JD JD

Assets

Cash and balances at Banks 144,354             144,396         

Due from related parties 945,132             950,301         

Other assets 834                   833                

Total assets held for sale           1,090,320        1,095,530 

Eliminations as a result of intergroup transactions             (945,132)         (950,301)

Total assets held for sale               145,188            145,229 

Liabilities

Other liabilities 335                    2,360             

                     335               2,360 

Eliminations as a result of intergroup transactions -                    -                 

                     335               2,360 

During the last quarter of the year 2022, the Board of Director of Bindar trading and investment

company (a subsidiary) decided to liquidate Bindar financial leasing company (a subsidiary),

accordingly each of the company’s assets and liabilities classified under separate item in accordance

with requirements of (IFRS5) . The total assets of the company amounted to JD 1,090,320 as of 31

December 2023 against JD 1,095,530 as of 31 December 2022. and the total liabilities amounted to 335

JD as of 31 December 2023 against JD 2,360 as of 31 December 2022. The details of each of the

company's assets and liabilities are as follows:
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Total liabilities directly associated with 

assets held for sale

Total liabilities directly associated with 

assets held for sale



B-

2023 2023

JD JD

Net cash flows generated from operating activities -                     848,861

Net cash flows used in investing activities -                     727

Net cash flows generated from financing activities -                     (1,047,781)

Net cash flows                       - (198,193)

C- (Loss) Gain From Discontinued Operations - Net After Tax:

C - 1 Gain from discontinued operations - Al Mawared Company (former subsidiary):

2023 2022

JD JD

Revenues -                     680,520        

-                                (17,091)

Total revenues -                               663,429 

Expenses -                             (471,636)

-                                    2,171 

Total expenses -                             (469,465)

Gross profit from discontinued operation -                               193,964 

Income tax -                              (58,500)

-                              (119,246)

Net profit from discontinuing operations -                                 16,218 

-

The Cash Flows (used in) Discontinued Operations - Jordanian Factoring Co. (Former subsidiary):

For the year ended 31 

December

For the year ended 31 

December

During the first half of 2022, the Bank sold its entire invested share investment in Al-Mawared Financial

Brokerage Company capital, which cost JD 3,000,000 distributed over 3 million shares, and the sale value

of 4,798,993 JD.
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Eliminations as a result of transactions 

between the Company and the Bank

Eliminations as a result of intergroup 

transactions

Tax expense and and waiver fees which 

resulted from a sale transaction



C - 2 Loss from discontinued operations - Jordanian Factoring Company (former subsidiary):

2023 2022

JD JD

Revenues 865               63,321          

              (865)            (9,576)

Total revenues                    -              53,745 

Expenses                    -          (124,468)

                   -                2,162 

Total expenses                    -          (122,306)

Gross profit from discontinued operation                    -            (68,561)

Income tax                    -            (91,031)

Net loss from discontinuing operations                    -          (159,592)

-

(51) Bargain on purchase of a subsidiary

For the year ended 31 

December

During the year, and through its subsidiary company (Bindar for Trade and Investment), the

Bank acquired 100% of the Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company, through the purchase of

2,130,000 shares at a nominal value of 1.6 Jordanian dinars per share, where the investment

cost was 3,438,366 Jordanian dinars and the fair value of the net assets acquired upon

acquisition are 7,035,358 dinars, which resulted in a profit of 3,596,992 JD.
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Based on the decision of the Bank’s Board of Directors in its first meeting for the year 2022,

it was approved to close the Jordanian Factoring Company. it was approved to reduce the

Company’s capital by an amount JD 950,788, so that the authorized and paid-in capital

becomes JD 208,000, and the reduction procedures were completed on 15 December 2022.

the period's losses amounting to (152,187) JD have been recorded as an impairment of

investment capital during the year 2022.

Eliminations as a result of transactions 

between the Company and the Bank

Eliminations as a result of transactions 

between the Company and the Bank


